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OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 

$73,905,000 TAX-EXEMPT TELECOMMUNICATIONS REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS, 
SERIES 2017AAND 

$3,500,000 TAXABLE TELECOMMUNICATIONS REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2017B 

INTRODUCTION 

The purpose of this Official Statement is to set forth certain infonnation concerning the 
Utah Infrastructure Agency (the "Agency"), in connection with the offering and sale of its 
Tax-Exempt Telecommunications Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 20l7A (the 
"Series 2017A Bonds"), and Taxable Telecommunications Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2017B (the "Series 2017B Bonds" and, together with the Series 2017A Bonds, the 
"Series 2017 Bonds ''). 

The information in this Introduction is subject in all respects to more complete 
infonnation contained elsewhere in this Official Statement. The order and placement of 
materials in this Official Statement, including the Appendices hereto, are not to be deemed a 
determination of relevance, materiality or relative importance, and this Official Statement, 
including the Appendices, should be read in its entirety. The offering of the Series 2017 Bonds 
to potential investors is made only by means of this entire Official Statement. 

Certain capitalized terms used in this Official Statement, unless otherwise defined in this 
Official Statement, have the meanings set forth in "ApPENDIX B--Extracts of Certain Provisions 
of the Indenture" and "APPENDIX E-Service Contract." 

This Official Statement contains "forward-looking statements" that are based upon the 
Agency's current expectations and its projections about future events. When used in this Official 
Statement, the words "project," "estimate," "intend," "expect," "scheduled," "pro-forma" and 
similar words identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are subject to 
known and unknown risks, uncertainties and factors that may be outside the control of the 
Agency. Actual results could differ materially from those contemplated by the forward-looking 
statements. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking 
statements, which speak only as of the date hereof. Neither the Agency nor any other party plans 
to issue any updates or revisions to these forward-looking statements based on future events. 

DESCRIPTION OF THE AGENCY 

The Agency is a political subdivision of the State of Utah (the "State''), and was created 
in 2010 pursuant to the Utah Interlocal Cooperation Act, Title 11, Chapter 13, Utah Code 
Annotated 1953, as amended (the "Interlocal Cooperation Act''), and the Second Amended and 
Restated Interlocal Cooperative Agreement of the Utah Infrastructure Agency originally dated as 
of June 7, 2010, and amended and restated as of November 1,2010 (the "Interlocal Agreement'') 



among Brigham City, Centerville City, Layton City, Lindon City, Midvale City, Murray City, 
City of Orem, Payson City and West Valley City (each a "Member" and collectively, the 
"Members ') With the exception of Payson City, all of the Members are contracting members 
as described herein (each a "Contracting Member" and collectively, the "Contracting 
Members "). See "CoNTRACTING MEMBERS" herein. Pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act 
and the Interlocal Agreement, the Members organized the Agency to provide for the acquisition, 
construction and installation of advanced communication lines together with related 
improvements and facilities (the "UIA Networ~') for the purpose of connecting properties within 
the Members to the VIA Network, all of which will directly or indirectly benefit each of the 
Members. See "THE AGENCY" herein for more detailed information about the Agency, including 
management and financial information. 

The UIA Network is a fiber optic network enabling high-speed broadband services, such 
as voice, video and data access. The physical assets of the VIA Network include fiber optic 
lines, transmitters, power sources and backups, switches and access portals. The VIA Network 
operates under an open access model which allows qualified service providers to provide voice, 
video and data services to serve customers within the reach of the VIA Network. See "THE UIA 
NETWORK" herein. 

The operations of the VIA Network is dependent on its connection to, and the continued 
operations of, the fiber optic network (the "UTOPIA Network") of the Utah Telecommunication 
Open Infrastructure Agency ("UTOPIA "), as the UTOPIA Network provides critical 
infrastructure necessary for the operations of the UIA Network. The VIA Network is connected 
to the UTOPIA Network pursuant to an Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement, dated May 1, 
2011, as amended and supplemented (the "IRU Agreement"), which grants to the Agency an 
indefeasible right of use (the "IRU') that provides the Agency access to certain facilities of and 
capacity in the UTOPIA Network through at least April 30, 2042. The Agency currently has 
only two employees, a Chief Executive Officer and a Secretaryrrreasurer, both of whom are also 
UTOPIA employees and have their salaries paid by UTOPIA. The Agency has engaged 
UTOPIA for the management of various services for certain portions of the VIA Network, 
including planning and pre-construction management services to build the VIA Network and 
administration, operations management and service provider management related to the UIA 
Network, all pursuant to an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement for Services, dated July 29, 2010, 
as amended and supplemented (the "UTOPIA Service Agreement ') The continued operations 
of the Agency and the VIA Network are heavily reliant on the continued operations of UTOPIA 
and the UTOPIA Network. See "THE NETWORK" and "RISK FACTORS" herein. 

AUTHORITY AND PuRPOSE OF THE SERIES 2017 BONDS 

The Series 2017 Bonds are being issued pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, the 
Utah Refunding Bond Act, Title 11, Chapter 27, Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended (the 
"RtifUnding Bond Act"), the General Indenture of Trust, dated as of December I, 2017 (the 
"General Indenture '), the First Supplemental Indenture of Trust between the Agency and the 
Trustee, dated as of December 1,2017 (the "First Supplemental Indenture" and, together with 
the General Indenture, the "Indenture ') , each between the Agency and ZB, National 
Association, dba Zions Bank, Salt Lake City, Utah, as trustee (the "Trustee 'J, and an authorizing 
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resolution adopted on October 16, 2017 (the "Bond Resolution "), by the Governing Board of the 
Agency (the "Board"). 

Proceeds of the Series 2017 Bonds will be used to (i) finance the acquisition, 
construction, and installation of advance communication lines, equipment and improvements, 
and related improvements and facilities as part of a fiber optic advance communications network 
(the "2017 Project"), (ii) refund all of the Agency's outstanding Tax-Exempt 
Telecommunications and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 201lA (the "Series 201lA 
Bonds"), Taxable Telecommunications and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 20llB (the 
"Series 20 II B Bonds ''), Telecommunications and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 
(the "Series 2013 Bonds''), and Telecommunications and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2015 (the "Series 2015 Bonds " and, together with the Series 20llA Bonds, the 
Series 201lB Bonds and the Series 2013 Bonds, the "Rejitnded Bonds ''), (iii) fund separate debt 
service reserve accounts for each series of the Series 2017 Bonds and (iv) pay costs associated 
with the issuance of the Series 2017 Bonds. See "PLAN OF FINANCE" herein. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The Agency believes that much of the current infrastructure and technology utilized by 
the telecommunications industry will need to be replaced in the future with faster and higher 
capacity fiber optic infrastructure to best serve the evolving and growing demands of users. The 
Agency believes that it is well positioned to meet the emerging needs of the industry within its 
service area. 

The UIA Network is a fiber optic network providing high-speed broadband voice, video 
and data access. The UIA Network is connected to the UTOPIA Network pursuant to the IRU 
Agreement. The UTOPIA Network is an open-access system where UTOPIA designs, builds 
and operates a fiber infrastructure that multiple competing service providers utilize to connect to 
end-customers. The synergy provided by the Agency's partnership with UTOPIA allows both 
organizations to provide citizens a state-of-the-art broadband network. The project is facilitating 
economic development throughout the Agency's (and UTOPIA's) member cities. 

The Agency, working in conjunction with the UTOPIA Network, has established a track 
record of successfully building out fiber infrastructure that brings fast and reliable internet 
service to customers within the boundaries of the Members. Competition among service 
providers within the UIA Network has helped ensure competitively priced internet services and 
excellent customer support. If a specific service provider fails to provide reliable and affordable 
service, the open-access system allows a customer to switch to a new service provider while 
utilizing the same UTOPIA fiber connection. 

As of June 30, 2017, more than 35 residential and business internet service providers 
were actively providing services utilizing the UTOPIA Network and the UIA Network and a 
total of 16,539 homes and businesses had subscribed for services on the combined UTOPIAIUIA 
Networks. Future growth of the VIA Network will be largely demand-based, bringing the 
network first to those areas that will generally bring the best return on investment. The Agency 
continues to make significant progress towards the project's original mission: to build and 
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maintain a fiber optic network to service all of the businesses and residents in UTOPIA's 
member cities. All of June 30, 2017, more than 3,266 miles of fiber cable have been placed 
within the boundaries of the 11 UTOPIA member cities. Within footprints serviced by 153 hut 
sites, there are approximately 86,946 addresses, of which approximately 71,775 are able to 
receive services of the combined UTOPIAIUIA Networks. The remaining addresses are located 
in apartment buildings, condominium developments or in areas isolated by right-of-way or pole 
access issues. The combined UTOPIAlUIA Networks have together grown to become the 
largest open-access system of its kind in North America and is now available to over 70,000 
addresses throughout the service area. 

Financial results for the Agency for its fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, were generally 
very positive. Revenues were up $1,366,245, a 17.8% increase from fiscal year 2016. Operating 
expenses were up $965,092, or 25.7% from 2016, resulting in positive net operating revenues of 
$4,339,392, an increase of 10.2% from 2016. Customers of the Agency increased by 1,280, a 
19.4% increase from 2016. Average Recurring Monthly Revenue increased by $125,093, a 
19.6% increase from 2016. See ' 'NET REVENUES OF THE AGENCY" herein for a more complete 
discussion. For fiscal year 2018, the Agency is budgeting for continued increases in revenues 
and operating income based on customer trends and expected margins. 

Certain recent trends in the industry should benefit both the near-term success and long­
term viability of UTOPIA and the Agency. Consumer demand in the service area continues to 
outpace available incumbent provider options, which has led to significant customer growth for 
the Agency and UTOPIA. UTOPIA and the Agency are adding customers at the fastest pace in 
their history, with growth coming from all areas where their service is available. Subscriber 
disconnections (known as churn) for UTOPIA «4% annually) are well below industry averages, 
and the low chum rate has helped to contribute to net growth of customers over time. 
Additionally, based on an independent third-party survey conducted early in 2017 and contracted 
for by UTOPIA, UTOPIA's Net Promoter Score, an industry metric for measuring customer 
satisfaction, was significantly higher than any other known Net Promoter Score for broadband 
options in Utah. 

Further, the industry trend of "cord-cutting," a practice where customers cancel 
traditional cable related services in favor of internet only delivered services, should greatly 
benefit UTOPIA and the Agency. Much of the cable and telecom industries are threatened by 
new internet-delivered services for phone (such as Ooma and Vonage) or video streaming (such 
as NetfJix, Rulu, SlingTV and Y ouTube TV) because the cable and telecom providers often 
depend on bundled revenues for profitability. The trend of increased cord-cutting is driving 
consumers to cancel cable TV and phone services in favor of faster internet connections and 
internet delivered services. Because the Agency's and UTOPIA's revenue models are generally 
based on connection revenues and higher speed internet access at competitive rates and are not 
reliant on providing bundled services, the Agency and UTOPIA believe they are well positioned 
to benefit from the cord-cutting trend. 

The result of these industry trends, many of which should provide increased demand for 
broadband services of the type provided by UTOPIA and the Agency, together with improving 
economies of scale for UTOPIA and the Agency related to continued growth, should collectively 
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better ensure the long-term viability of UTOPIA and the Agency as they finish the buildout of 
member cities and potentially expand into new cities. 

CONTACf INFORMATION 

The primary contact person for the Agency concerning the Series 2017 Bonds is: 

GENERAL 

Kirt Sudweeks 
SecretaryfTreasurer 

Utah Infrastructure Agency 
5858 South 900 East 
Murray, Utah 84121 

(801) 613-3800 
e-mail: ksudweeks@utopiafiber.com 

NET REVENUES OF THE AGENCY 

Debt service on the Series 2017 Bonds is payable from Net Revenues and from certain 
other funds pledged under the Indenture. Pursuant to the General Indenture, "Net Revenues" 
means all Revenues after payment of all Operation and Maintenance Expenses. 

"Revenues" is defined under the General Indenture as all revenues, fees, income, rents, 
sale proceeds and receipts received or earned by the Agency from or attributable to the 
ownership or operation of the UIA Network, including moneys received from the imposition of 
fees and charges to providers and end users and all payments received pursuant to the 
Communications Service Contract, dated as of May 1, 2011, among the Agency and the 
Contracting Members (the "Service Contract"), including any Franchise Tax Revenues, together 
with all interest earned by and profits derived from the sale of investments in the related funds 
thereof. Revenues do not include gifts or grants received by the Agency. 

"Operation and Maintenance Expenses" is defmed under the General Indenture as all 
expenses reasonably incurred by the Agency in connection with the operation and maintenance 
of the UIA Network, whether incurred by the Agency or paid to any other entity, including 
UTOPIA or any Member, pursuant to contract or otherwise, necessary to keep the UIA Network 
in efficient operating condition, including cost of audits required, payment of promotional and 
marketing expenses and real estate brokerage fees, payment of premiums for insurance and, 
generally all expenses, exclusive of depreciation (including depreciation related expenses of any 
joint venture) which under generally accepted accounting practices are properly allocable to 
operation and maintenance; provided, however, only such expenses as are reasonably and 
properly necessary to the efficient operation and maintenance of the UIA Network shall be 
included. 
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As described under "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2017 BONDS -
Flow of Funds," Revenues are available to pay debt service on the Series 2017 Bonds after the 
payment of all Operation and Maintenance Expenses. Revenues are expected to consist 
primarily of amounts paid to the Agency from (I) the service providers pursuant to each 
respective non-exclusive network access and use agreement entered into between the Agency 
and the respective service provider (each a "Service Provider Agreement" and collectively, the 
"Service Provider Agreements "), and (2) the Contracting Members and Customers pursuant to 
the Service Contract. 

SERVICE PROVIDER AGREEMENTS 

Approximately 71.66% of the Agency's Revenues for fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, 
were derived from Service Provider Agreements. Each Service Provider Agreement intends to 
memorialize a relationship between the Agency and the respective qualified service provider 
pursuant to which the Agency builds and operates the UIA Network, and the service provider is 
expected to actively market to potential users and provide high quality services. Pursuant to each 
Service Provider Agreement, the respective service provider pays the Agency to use the VIA 
Network to provide services, on a non-exclusive basis, to end residential and business users 
within the Members' boundaries. The payments to the Agency are paid monthly by the service 
provider, and the amounts are determined pursuant to the prices and fees identified in the 
UTOPIAlUIA Product Catalog. Prices vary based on the products and services provided by such 
service provider, whether the user is a residence or business, connection speed and capacity and 
other variables. Each Service Provider Agreement has an initial term of one year, which 
automatically renews for additional one year terms, unless either party at its sole discretion elects 
not to renew such agreement by providing at least 90 days written notice of termination prior to 
the expiration of the term. 

SERVICE CONTRACT 

General. Approximately 19.89% of the Agency's Revenues for fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2017, were derived from the Service Contract. Pursuant to the Service Contract, the 
Agency provides advanced telecommunications services via the VIA Network to residents and 
businesses of the Contracting Members in exchange for the Service Fees (defined below). The 
Agency markets to and subsequently facilitates connection to the VIA Network for the residents 
and businesses of each Contracting Member (each, a "Customer" and collectively, the 
"Customers "), and the fees charged by or on behalf of each Contracting Member to its 
Customers for such connections are the "Service Fees." The stated termination date of the 
Service Contract is April 15, 2041, and pursuant to its terms, the Service Contract cannot be 
terminated while any Bonds are outstanding. See "APPENDIX E-Service Contract." 

With respect to connection services the Agency provides to each Customer, such 
Customer pays a monthly fee pursuant to one of the following options: 

(1) The Customer makes a monthly payment for a contractual utility enhancement 
("CUE"), the same being the connection of the VIA Network to its residence or business, for a 
term of 1 0 or 20 years. Upon full payment at the end of the term, such residence or business will 
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never need to pay additional connection or access fees related to the UIA Network. The Member 
passes through to the Agency 95% of the amounts payable under the CUE agreements and 
retains the remaining 5%. 

(2) The Customer pays a monthly fee to access a connection to the UIA Network 
pursuant to a lease agreement (the "Lease Agreement"). The Customer pays the fee for as long 
as it desires such connection. The Agency bills the Customer on behalf of the Member and 
receives 100% of the receipts pursuant to such Lease Agreement. 

Operation of the Service Contract. If the Service Fees are not sufficient to meet the UIA 
Revenue Requirement (which is the sum of Operation and Maintenance Expenses and Capital 
Costs, including debt service on the Bonds) under the Service Contract, each Contracting 
Member is obligated, if requested by the Agency, to remit to the Agency a portion of its 
Franchise Tax Revenues to fund the difference between the UIA Revenue Requirement and the 
Service Fees (the "Revenue Difference ') The obligation of each Contracting Member to remit a 
portion of its Franchise Tax Revenues (its "Franchise Tax Obligation ") is limited to a percentage 
of the Revenue DiJIerenceand to a maximum annual amount. For a list of the Contracting 
Members and their respective Franchise Tax Obligations, see "FRANCHISE TAX OBLIGATION" 
below. Each Contracting Member is required to meet its Franchise Tax Obligation to the extent 
necessary to cover its applicable portion of the Revenue Difference, regardless of the amount of 
Service Fees it pays to the Agency. Under the Service Contract, the Agency is required to repay 
any Franchise Tax Obligation payment made by a Contracting Member. Such repayment would 
be made on a subordinate basis to payment of any debt service on the Series 2017 Bonds. See 
"SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2017 BoNDS - Flow of Funds." Since 
inception of the Agency, Franchise Tax Obligations have not been requested or required by the 
Agency to meet its obligations. 

A Contracting Member's other obligations payable from its Franchise Tax Revenues (the 
"City Debt') are required to be payable on a parity with or subordinate to its Franchise Tax 
Obligation, except for obligations that existed at the time of the execution of the Service Contract 
or future City Debt issued on a parity with obligations that existed at the time of execution of the 
Service Contract. See "CONTRACTING MEMBERS" for a description of City Debt. 

Payment obligations of Contracting Members under the Service Contract are not joint and 
several obligations, and no Contracting Member is obligated to satisfy the Franchise Tax 
Obligation of any other Contracting Member. Further, such payment obligations are not general 
obligations of the Contracting Members and are payable solely from the Service Fees and the 
Franchise Tax Obligations. Moreover, the Contracting Members have agreed to make all 
payments under the Service Contract, including Franchise Tax Obligation payments, whether or 
not the UIA Network or any portion thereof is acquired, completed, operable or operating. In any 
such scenario, the Franchise Tax Obligations may become the primary source of funds to meet 
the UIA Revenue Requirement. The obligations of the Contracting Members to pay the Service 
Fees to UIA are irrevocable, absolute and unconditional and are not subject to any reduction, 
whether by defense, recoupment, counterclaim or offset or otherwise. 
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FRANcmSE TAX OBLIGATION 

Franchise Tax Revenues are included as a component of Revenues under the General 
Indenture. The Franchise Tax Obligation of each Contracting Member is limited to a maximum 
annual amount specific to each Contracting Member. Set forth below is a list of the Contracting 
Members, the allocated percentages of any Revenue Difference and the respective maximum 
Franchise Tax Obligations. 

CONTRACfING PERCENTAGE OF MAXlMUMANNuAL 
MEMBER REVENUE DIFFERENCE FRANcmSE TAX OBLIGATION 

Brigham City 0.62% $ 31,831 
Centerville City 3.63% 186,737 
Layton City 18.20% 937,272 
Lindon City 3.35% 172,516 
Midvale City 6.60% 339,988 
Murray City 13.40% 690,241 
City of Or em 23.76% 1,223,786 
West Valley City 30.44% 1.568,781 

Total 100.00% $5.151 152 

The Franchise Tax Revenues pledged under the Service Contract by the Contracting 
Members represent a portion of those revenues received from the levy of the Municipal Energy 
Sales and Use Tax (defmed below). 

The Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax Act of the State, Title J 0, Chapter I , Part 3 
Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended, provides that a municipality may levy a municipal 
energy sales and use tax (the "Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax ") on the sale or use of gas 
and electricity within the municipality, including sales by the municipality, for the purpose of 
raising revenue and to create a more competitive environment for the energy industry in 
accordance with the limitations and provisions set forth in the Municipal Energy Sales and Use 
Tax Act. The municipality may levy a Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax at a rate not to 
exceed 6% of the delivered value of the taxable energy. All of the Contracting Members 
currently levy the Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax at the maximum rate of 6%. 

The Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax is imposed on the "delivered value" of taxable 
energy provided within the Contracting Member. "Delivered value" refers to the fair market 
value of the taxable energy and includes the value of the energy itself and any transportation, 
freight, customer demand charges, service charges or other costs typically incurred in providing 
taxable energy in usable form to customers within the Contracting Member. Each Contracting 
Member has either contracted with the Utah State Tax Commission to perform all functions 
incident to the collection and administration of the revenues derived from the levy of the 
Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax, or if the municipality operates its own utility, collects the 
revenues as part of the utility bill that it sends to its customers. Each Contracting Member 
receives such revenues on a monthly basis. 

-8-



REVENuE AND EXPENSE DETAlLS 

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the sources of the Revenues of the Agency 
for the past five fiscal years by type of Customer. The Revenues shown in this table do not 
include Franchise Tax Obligations in the annual aggregate amount of $5,151,152, which have 
not been requested or required to meet the obligations of the Agency since its inception. 

FY2017 FY2016 FY2015 FY 2014 FY 2013 

Residential $3,158,626 $2,590,554 $2,024,352 $1,953,296 $2,181,883 
Business 5,099,823 4,320,214 3,426,470 1,917,818 1,068,604 
Installation 167,615 176,741 410402(2) , 230,916 173,979 
Miscellaneous(l) 629,496 601.806 466,116 220,912 15,994 

Total $9,055,560 $7,689,315 $6,327,340 $4,322,942 $3,440,460 

Source: The Agency. based on audited financial statements for the fiscal yoars ended June 30, 20J 3 through June 30, 7.017. 
(1) Misce1laneous sources of Revenues include fees and charges paid by the service providen; to connect and interface with the UIA Network. 

bandwidth fees and charges paid by certain service providers, repair charges paid by the user and miscellaneous other charges paid by the 
service providen for services provided by the Agency. 

(2) Increue in installation fees for FY 20ts were due to ono-time, up-front installation fees paid by ODC urvice provider desiring expansion to 
particular business customers beyond the UIA Network. 

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Revenues of the Agency for the past 
three fiscal years by contractual relationship: 

FY 2017 FY2016 FY2015 

Service Contract 
(Lease Agreements) $1,312,274 13.9% $ 940,608 12.2% $ 702,769 11.1% 
Service Contract 
(CUE agreements) 563,978 6.0% 519,787 6.8% 418,315 6.6% 
Service Provider 

Agreements 6,382,197 71.7% 5,450,373 70.9% 4,329,738 68.4% 
Installation 167,615 1.8% 176,741 2.3% 410,402 6.5% 
Miscellaneous(l) 629,496 6.7% 60\,806 7.8% 466,116 7.4% 

Total $9,055,560 100.0% $7,689,315 100.0% $6,327,340 100.0% 

Amounts arc roundl:d. 
Source: The Agency, based on audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 20lS dlrOUgh June 30, 2017. 
(I) Miscellaneous sources of Revenucs include fees and charges paid by the scMce providers 10 connect and interface with the VIA Network, 

bandwidth fees and charges paid by certain service providen, repair charges paid by the user and miscellaneous other charges paid by the 
service providers for services provided by the Agency. 

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the operating expenses of the Agency for 
the past five fiscal years. The Agency's operating expenses primarily consist of the monthly fees 
it pays to UTOPIA pursuant to the UTOPIA Service Agreement. Such fees may be adjusted by 
the Agency and UTOPIA from time to time as the UIA Network grows and the costs incurred by 
UTOPIA to operate the UlA Network pursuant to the UTOPIA Service Agreement, including, 
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for example, personnel and maintenance costs, increase. See "The Network - Intersection of 
VIA Network and Utopia Network" herein for a further discussion of the UTOPIA Service 
Agreement. 

FY2017 FY2016 FY2015 FY2014 FY2013 

Marketing costs $ 323,884 $ 231,039 $ 86,013 $ 85,778 $ 161,626 
Professional 

services 138,352 97,680 78,238 65,765 41,484 
Network 

maintenance 704,047 420,302 364,212 321,543 255,417 
Depreciation 3,549,885 3,002,055 2,653,388 2,251,384 1.716.158 

Total $4,716,168 $3,751,076 $3,181,851 $2,724,470 $2,174,685 

Source The Agency, bllSCd on audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended lune 30, 2013 through June 3D, 2017. 

CUSTOMER CONCENTRATION 

As measured by Revenues generated per Customer, the Agency does not have a 
concentration of end users. No single Customer provides more than 5% of Recurring Monthly 
Revenue (defmed below), and the 10 largest Customers provide less than 10% of Recurring 
Monthly Revenue. The following chart provides a breakdown of residential and business 
Customers and the Recurring Monthly Revenue for the past five fiscal years: 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 

Residential Customers 6,195 5,190 4,389 3,875 3,193 
Business Customers .L§2Q 1.415 1.225 919 529 

Total Customers 7,885 6,605 5,614 4,794 3,722 
Average Recurring Monthly 

Revenue(l) S761 ,768 $636,675 $510,990 $341,157 5207,805 

Source: The Agency 
(I) "Recurring Monthly Revenue" is revenue derived from Service Fecs and other recurring operating revenues, excluding one-time only fees. 

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2017 BONDS 

PLEDGE OF THE INDENTURE 

The Series 2017 Bonds are the initial obligations issued pursuant to the Indenture and are 
special limited obligations of the Agency, secured equally and ratably by and payable exclusively 
from the Net Revenues of the Agency and certain other funds and accounts pledged under the 
Indenture. 

The Bonds are not a general obligation of the Agency, any Member, the State or any 
agency, instrumentality or political subdivision thereof. Neither the faith and credit nor the ad 
valorem taxing power of any Member, the State or any agency, instrumentality or political 
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subdivision thereof is assigned or pledged for payment of the Bonds. The Agency will not 
mortgage or grant a security interest in the physical assets of the UIA Network to secure payment 
of the Bonds. The Agency has no taxing power. 

To secure the timely payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, the Agency 
has pledged and assigned to the Trustee the Net Revenues and certain other funds and accounts 
established by the Indenture. 

FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 

The following funds and accounts are created under the Indenture: 

(i) Revenue Fund, held by the Agency 

(ii) Construction Fund, held by the Trustee 

(iii) Bond Fund, including the Sinking Fund Account, held by the Trustee 

(iv) Debt Service Reserve Fund, held by the Trustee 

(v) Reserve Instrument Fund, held by the Trustee 

(vi) Repair and Replacement Fund, held by the Agency 

(vii) Rebate Fund, held by the Trustee 

Additionally, the Agency may authorize the creation of additional funds and accounts in a 
Supplemental Indenture. 

FLow OF FuNDs 

The General Indenture provides that: 

(a) All Revenues shall be deposited in the Revenue Fund and accounted for by the 
Agency separate and apart from all other moneys of the Agency. 

(b) As a first charge and lien on the Revenues, the Agency will cause to be paid from 
the Revenue Fund from time to time as the Agency will determine, all Operation and 
Maintenance Expenses of the Agency as the same become due and payable, and thereupon such 
expenses will be promptly paid. 

(c) So long as any Bonds are Outstanding, as a second charge and lien on the Revenues, 
i.e. from Net Revenues, the Agency will, on or before the 15th Business Day of each month, 
transfer to the Trustee for deposit into the Bond Fund from the Revenue Fund an amount equal 
to: 
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(i) one sixth (1/6) of the interest falling due on the Bonds on the next 
succeeding Interest Payment Date established for the Bonds (provided, however, that so 
long as there are moneys representing capitalized interest on deposit with the Trustee to 
pay interest on the Bonds next coming due, the Ageocy need not allocate from the 
Revenue Fund to pay interest on the Bonds); plus 

(ii) one twelfth (1/12) of the principal and premium, if any, falling due on the 
next succeeding principal payment date established for the Bonds; plus 

(iii) one twelfth (1/12) the Sinking Fund Installments, if any, falling due on the 
next succeeding Sinking Fund Installment paymeot date; 

(iv) the sum of which will be sufficient, when added to the existing balance in 
the Bond Fund, to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds 
promptly on each such Interest Payment Date as the same become due and payable. The 
foregoing provisions may be revised by a Supplemental Indenture for any Series of 
Bonds having other than semi-annual Interest Paymeot Dates. 

(d) As a third charge and lien on the Revenues (on a parity basis), the Agency will 
make the following transfers to the Trustee on or before the 1 st day of each month of each year: 

(i) To the extent the Debt Service Reserve Requirement, if any, is not funded 
with a Reserve Instrument or Instruments, (A) to the accounts in the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund any amounts required by the Supplemental Indeoture to accumulate therein 
the applicable Debt Service Reserve Requirement with respect to each Series of Bonds at 
the times and in the amounts provided in the Indenture and (B) if funds will have been 
withdrawn from an account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund or any account in the Debt 
Service Reserve Fund is at any time funded in an amount less than the applicable Debt 
Service Reserve Requirement, the Agency will deposit Revenues in such account(s) in 
the Debt Service Reserve Fund sufficient in amount to restore such account(s) within one 
year with twelve (12) substantially equal payments during such period (unless otherwise 
provided for by the Supplemental Indeoture governing the applicable Debt Service 
Reserve Requiremeot); or a ratable portion (based on the amount to be transferred 
pursuant to the General Indeoture) of remaining Revenues if less than the amount 
necessary; and 

(ii) Equally and ratably to the accounts of the Reserve Instrument Fund with 
respect to all Reserve Instruments which are in effect and are expected to continue in 
effect after the end of such month, such amount of the remaining Revenues, or a ratable 
portion (based on the amount to be transferred pursuant to the General Indenture) of the 
amount so remaining if less than the amount necessary, that is required to be paid, on or 
before the next such monthly transfer or deposit of Revenues into the Reserve Instrument 
Fund, to the Reserve Instrument Provider pursuant to any Reserve Instrument Agreement, 
other than Reserve Instrument Costs, in order to cause the Reserve Instrument Coverage 
to equal the Reserve Instrument Limit within one year from any draw date under the 
Reserve Instrumeot. 
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(e) As a fourth charge and lien on the Revenues, the Agency will deposit in the Repair 
and Replacement Fund any amount required by the Indenture to accumulate therein the Repair 
and Replacement Reserve Requirement. In the event that the amount on deposit in the Repair 
and Replacement Fund will ever be less than the Repair and Replacement Reserve Requirement 
for the Bonds then Outstanding (or, after the issuance of Additional Bonds, the amount required 
to be on deposit therein), from time to time, the Agency will deposit to the Repair and 
Replacement Fund from the Revenue Fund all remaining Revenues of the VIA Network after 
payments required under the General Indenture have been made until there is on deposit in the 
Repair and Replacement Fund an amount equal to the Repair and Replacement Reserve 
Requirement. Subject to the provisions of the General Indenture, this provision is not intended 
to limit, and will not limit, the right of the Agency to deposit additional moneys in the Repair and 
Replacement Fund from time to time as the Agency may determine. 

The Repair and Replacement Reserve Requirement at the time of issuance of the Series 
2017 Bonds is $0. 

(f) Subject to making the foregoing deposits, the Agency may use the balance of the 
Revenues accounted for in the Revenue Fund for any of the following: 

(i) redemption of Bonds; 

(ii) refinancing, refunding or advance refunding of any Bonds 

(iii) any amounts owed by the Agency to any Contracting Member under the 
Service Contract; or 

(iv) for any other lawful purpose, including any intergovernmental transfers, 
including but not limited to transfers to UTOPIA. 

DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCOUNTS 

The General Indenture establishes a Debt Service Reserve Fund, held by the Trustee. 
Each Supplemental Indenture authorizing the issuance of a Series of Bonds will specify if a Debt 
Service Reserve Account will be established for such Series and the Debt Service Reserve 
Requirement, as applicable. The Debt Service Reserve Requirement will be deposited: 

( a) immediately upon the issuance and delivery of such Series of Bonds from 
(i) proceeds from the sale thereof or from any other legally available source, (ii) by a 
Reserve Instrument or Instruments, or (iii) any combination thereof; 

(b) from available Net Revenues over the period oftirne specified therein; or 

(c) from any combination of (a) and (b) above; provided however, the 
foregoing provisions will be subject to the requirements of any Security Instrument Issuer 
set forth in the related Supplemental Indenture. 
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In calculating the amount on deposit in each account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund, 
the amount of any Reserve Instrument Coverage will be treated as an amount on deposit in such 
account. If at any time the amount on deposit in any account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund 
is less than the minimum amount to be maintained, the Trustee is required to act in accordance 
with the provisions of the General Indenture to cure the deficiency. Moneys on deposit in any 
account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund will be used to make up any deficiencies in the Bond 
Fund only for the Series of Bonds secured by said account, and any Reserve Instrument will only 
be drawn upon with respect to the Series of Bonds for which such Reserve Instrument was 
obtained. For more information about the operation and use of the Debt Service Reserve Fund, 
see "APPENDIX B--Extracts of Certain Provisions of the Indenture." 

The Agency will fund a Series 2017A Debt Service Reserve Account and a Series 2017B 
Debt Service Reserve Account, each as established pursuant to the Indenture. The Series 2017 A 
Debt Service Reserve Requirement is $5,600,500.00, which will be funded by proceeds of the 
Series 2017 A Bonds. The Series 2017B Debt Service Reserve Requirement is $350,000.00, 
which will be funded by proceeds of the Series 2017B Bonds. Each of the two Debt Service 
Reserve Accounts is generally sized as the least of (i) 10% of the par amount of such Series of 
Bonds, (ii) the maximum annual debt service for such Series of Bonds or (iii) 125% of the 
average annual debt service for such Series of Bonds, calculated as of the date of issuance of the 
Series 2017 Bonds and to be maintained until all Bonds of such Series are no longer outstanding. 

ADDITIONAL BONDS 

The Agency may not issue additional indebtedness, bonds or notes payable from Net 
Revenues or any portion thereof on a priority basis senior to the Bonds or the Security 
Instrument Repayment Obligations. The Agency may issue Additional Bonds and other parity 
obligations if the following requirements have been met: 

(a) (i) A certificate, based upon the most recent audited financial statements of the 
Agency or a report prepared by the Agency's auditor, will be delivered to the Trustee by an 
Authorized Representative to the effect that the sum of the Net Revenues and any Available 
Franchise Tax Revenues (as defined in Appendix B) for any Year within the 24 months 
immediately preceding the issuance of the Additional Bonds was at least 150% of the maximum 
Aggregate Annual Debt Service for any Bond Fund Year on all of the Bonds that will be 
Outstanding upon the issuance of such Additional Bonds; or 

(ii) An Authorized Representative will have delivered to the Trustee a certificate from 
a Qualified Consultant: 

(I) setting forth projected Available Franchise Tax Revenues and the 
Estimated Net Revenues as herein described (assuming, if applicable, the completion of 
any contemplated additions, improvements, extensions, replacements or repairs to the 
VIA Network (collectively, the "Improvements"» either: 
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i. for each of the two Bond Fund Years succeeding the latest 
estimated date of completion of the Improvements, if proceeds of the Additional 
Bonds are used to fund interest during the construction period; or 

ii. if i. is not the case, for the then current Bond Fund Year and the 
next succeeding Bond Fund Year; and 

(2) verifying that the sum of the projected Available Franchise Tax Revenues 
and the Estimated Net Revenues as shown in (I) above for each Bond Fund Year during 
which Bonds are Outstanding is not less than 150% of the maximum annual debt service 
requirement for each of such Bond Fund Years with respect to all of the Bonds which 
would then be Outstanding upon the issuance of such Additional Bonds so proposed to be 
issued. 

For purposes of this subsection (ii) "Estimated Net Revenues" will be determined 
by the Qualified Consultant as follows: 

(A) The Net Revenues for any Year in the 24 months immediately 
preceding the delivery of the Additional Bonds shall first be determined. Net 
Revenues may be adjusted to give full effect to rate increases implemented prior 
to the issuance of the Additional Bonds. 

(B) Next, the additional Net Revenues, if any, resulting from the 
Improvements financed with proceeds of the Additional Bonds will be estimated 
by the Qualified Consultant for the applicable Bond Fund Years as determined in 
(ii)(I)i or ii above. 

(C) The Estimated Net Revenues will be the sum of the Net Revenues 
as calculated in (A) above, plus 75% of the estimated additional Net Revenues as 
calculated in (B) above. 

(b) All payments required by the General Indenture to be made into the Bond Fund 
must have been made in full, and there must be in the Debt Service Reserve Fund the full amount 
required by the General Indenture to be accumulated at such time, taking into account any 
Reserve Instrument Coverage. 

(e) The coverage test set forth in (a)(i) and (a)(ii) above will not apply to the issuance 
of any Additional Bonds to the extent such Bonds are issued for the purpose of refunding Bonds 
issued hereunder, and the Average Aggregate Annual Debt Service for such Additional Bonds 
does not exceed the then remaining Average Aggregate Annual Debt Service for the Bonds being 
refunded therewith. 

(d) All Repayment Obligations then due and owing will have been paid. 

( e) All payments required by the General Indenture to be made into the Bond Fund 
must have been made in full, and there must be on deposit in each account in the Debt Service 
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Reserve Fund (taking into account any Reserve Instrument Coverage) the full amount required 
by the General Indenture to be accumulated therein. 

(1) The proceeds of the Additional Bonds, less costs of issuance and funding of 
reserves, must be used in connection with (i) the refunding of Bonds issued hereunder or any 
borrowing of the Agency, (ii) the financing of a Project or (iii) any other lawful purpose. 

(g) No event of Default is existing under the General Indenture on the date of 
authentication of such Additional Bonds, unless (i) the Security Instrument Issuers, Reserve 
Instrument Issuers and Owners of all Outstanding Bonds (subject to the consent authorized by 
the General Indenture) have each consented to the issuance of such Additional Bonds or (ii) upon 
the issuance of such Additional Bonds and the application of the proceeds thereof, all such 
Events of Default will be cured. 
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DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE FOR THE SERIES 2017 BONDS 

PLUS: DEBT SERVICE 
UIA FRANCIDSE TOTAL ON THE 

FISCAL NETWORK TAX AVAILABLE LESS:O&M SERIES 2017 DEBT SERVICE 
YEAR REVENUES(l) REVENUES(l) REVEN1JIlS ExPENSES(IX3) NET REVENUES BONDS COVERAGE(4) 

2018 $9,055,560 $5,151,152 $14,206,712 $2,066,283 $12,140,429 SI,I72,824 10.35x 
2019 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 6,237,125 1.95x 
2020 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,781,575 2.10x 
2021 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,775,125 2.1Ox 
2022 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,751,600 2.llx 
2023 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,752,400 2.llx 
2024 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,743,125 2.llx 
2025 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,533,750 2.19x 
2026 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,528,750 2.20x 
2027 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,527,500 2.20x 
2028 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,529,500 2.20x 
2029 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,524,500 2.20x 
2030 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,522,250 2.2Ox 
2031 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,517,375 2.20x 
2032 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,504,750 2.21x 
2033 9,055,560 5,151 ,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,508,750 2.20x 
2034 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,503,750 2.21x 
2035 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,494,625 2.21x 
2036 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,490,875 2.21x 
2037 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,486,875 2.21x 
2038 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,477,250 2.22x 
2039 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,476,375 2.22x 
2040 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,473,500 2.22x 
2041 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 2,066,283 12,140,429 5,463,250 2.22x 

Source: The Agency and the Municipal Advisor, based on the Agency'IJ audited financial statement for the fiscal yeu ended June 30, 2017. AmountJ are rounded. 
(I) Projected based on the Agency's BUditcd fmancialstatcment for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. Does not include Available Franchise T'u. Revenues. 
(2) Pledged by the Contracting Memben pursuant to the Service Contract. 
(3) Excludes depreciation. The Agency's Operation and Maintenance Expenses primarily COTUlist of the monthly fees it pays to UTOPIA pursuant to the UTOPIA Service Agreement. Projected 

Operation and Maintenance Expenses.,. are based on the Operation and Maintenance Expenses from the Agency's audited financial statement {Or'the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. plws additional 
monthly fees to be paid to UTOPIA pursuant to an amendmeut to the UTOPIA Service Agreement approved by the Board on October 16, 2011. 

(4) Net Revenues divided by Debt Service on the Series 2017 Bonds. 
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HisTORICAL DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE FOR THE PRIOR BONDS 

DEBT 

PLUS: SERVICE 

UIA FllANcmSE TOTAL ON llIE DEBT 

FISCAL NETWORK TAX AVAILABLE LI!ss: O&M NET PRIOR S ERVICE 

YEAR REVENlJESil) REVENUES~) REVENUES EXPENSES(3) REvENUES BONDS COVERAGE" ) 

2013 $3,440,460 $5,151,152 $8,591,612 $ 458,527 $ 8,133,085 $2,124,523 3.83x 

2014 4,332,942 5,151 ,152 9,484,094 473,086 9,011,008 2,506,163 3.6Ox 

2015 6,327,340 5,151,152 11,478,492 528,463 10,950,029 2,907,703 3.77x 

2016 7,689,315 5,151,152 12,840,467 749,021 12,091,446 3,365,867 3.59x 

2017 9,055,560 5,151,152 14,206,712 1,166,283 13,049,429 4,502,775 2.90. 

Source: The Agency and the Municipal Advisor, based on the Agency's audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 
through June 30, 2017. 

(1) Does not include Available Franchise Tax Revenues. 
(2) Pledged by the Conmcting Memben pursuant to the Service Contract. 
(3) Excludes depreciation. The Agency's Operation and Maintenance Expenses primarily consist of the monthly fees i.t pays to UTOPIA 

pursuant to the UTOPIA Service Agreement. 
(4) Net Revenues divided by Debt Service on the Prior Bonds. 

THE SERIES 2017 BONDS 

GENERAL 

The Series 2017 Bonds will be dated the date of issuance thereof, will be in fully 
registered form, without coupons, and will be in denominations of $5,000 or any integral 
multiple thereof under a book-entry only system operated by The Depository Trust Company, 
New York, New York ("DTC"). Principal of and interest on the Series 2017 Bonds will be 
payable by the Trustee, acting as paying agent. 

The Series 2017 Bonds will mature as shown on the inside cover page hereof. Interest on 
the Series 2017 Bonds will be payable each April 15 and October 15, beginning April 15, 201S. 
The Series 2017 Bonds will bear interest from their dated date, or from the most recent interest 
payment date to which interest has been paid or provided for, computed on the basis of a 360-day 
year consisting of twelve 30-day months. 

Principal of and the interest on the Series 2017 Bonds will be payable in lawful money of 
the United States of America. Payment of the interest on any Series 2017 Bond will be made to 
the person appearing on the Register (as hereinafter defined) of the Registrar as provided in the 
Indenture as the Registered Owner thereof by check or draft mailed on the Interest Payment Date 
to the Registered Owner at his or her address as it appears on such registration books or to 
owners of $1,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of Series 2017 Bonds (or owners of 
100% of any Series then Outstanding) by wire transfer to a bank account designated by the 
Registered Owner in written instructions furnished to the Trustee no later than the Regular 
Record Date for such payment. The interest on the Series 2017 Bonds so payable, and 
punctually paid and duly provided for, on any Interest Payment Date will be paid to the person 
who is the Registered Owner thereof at the close of business on the Regular Record Date for 
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such interest immediately preceding such Interest Payment Date. Any such interest not so 
punctually paid or duly provided for will forthwith cease to be payable to the registered owner of 
any Series 2017 Bond on such Regular Record Date, and may be paid to the person who is the 
Registered Owner thereof at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of 
such defaulted interest to be fixed by the Trustee, notice thereof to be given to such Registered 
Owner not less than ten (10) days prior to such Special Record Date. The principal of and 
premium, if any, on Series 2017 Bonds are payable upon presentation and surrender thereof at 
the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee. All such payments will be valid and effectual 
to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Series 2017 Bond to the extent of the sum or sums 
so paid. 

REGISTRATION, TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE 

The Agency will cause books for the registration or transfer of the Bonds (the 
"Register' ) to be kept at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee and appoints the 
Trustee to act as its registrar and transfer agent to keep the Register and to make such registration 
and transfers. Upon surrender for transfcr of any Bond at the principal corporate trust office of 
the Trustee, the Agency will execute and the Trustee will authenticate and deliver in the name of 
the transferee or transferees, a new Bond or Bonds of authorized denomination for the aggregate 
principal amount which the registered Owner is entitled to receive. Bonds of authorized 
denominations may be exchanged for Bonds of other authorized denominations of the same 
maturity, series and interest rate upon request of the Owner thereof. 

All Bonds presented for transfer, exchange, or payment will be accompanied by a written 
instrument or instruments of transfer or authorization for exchange, in form and with guaranty of 
signature reasonably satisfactory to the Trustee, duly executed by the registered Owner or by his 
or her duly authorized attorney. 

New Bonds delivered upon any transfer or exchange will be valid obligations of the 
Agency, evidencing the same debt as the Bonds surrendered, will be secured by and entitled to 
all of the security and benefits of the Indenture to the same extent as the Bonds surrendered. No 
service charge will be made for any exchange, transfer, or registration of Bonds, but the Agency 
may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may 
be imposed in relation thereto. The Agency and the Trustee will not be required to transfer or 
exchange any Bond (a) during the period from and including any Regular Record Date, to and 
including the next succeeding Interest Payment Date, (b) during the period from and including 
the day fifteen days prior to any Special Record Date, to and including the date of the proposed 
payment pertaining thereto, (c) during the period from and including the day fifteen days prior to 
the mailing of notice calling any Bonds for redemption, to and including the date of such 
mailing, or (d) at any time following the mailing of notice calling such Bond for redemption. 

REDEMPTION 

Optional Redemption. The Bonds maturing on or after October 15, 2029, are subject to 
redemption prior to maturity at the option of the Agency in whole or in part on any date on or 
after October 15, 2027, in such order of maturity as may be designated by the Agency, at the 
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redemption price of 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed plus accrued 
interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption. 

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. The Series 2017A Bonds maturing on October 15 
of the years 2025, 2029, 2032, 2034, 2037 and 2040 and all of the Series 2017B Bonds are 
subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption, by lot in such manner as the Trustee may 
determine, at a price equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof plus 
accrued interest to the redemption date, on the dates and in the principal amounts as follows: 

FOR TIIE SERIES 2017A BONDS MATURING ON OCTOBER 15, 2025 

YEAR 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 

$1,705,000 
1,795,000 
1,880,000 
2,440,000 
2,560,000 (stated maturity) 

FOR TIlE SERIES 2017ABONDS MATURINGONOcrOBER 15, 2029 

YEAR 

2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 

$2,690,000 
2,830,000 
2,970,000 
3,120,000 (stated maturity) 

FOR THE SERIES 2017 A BONDS MATURING ON OCTOBER 15,2032 

YEAR 

2030 
2031 
2032 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 

$3,275,000 
3,430,000 
3,610,000 (stated maturity) 

FOR THE SERIES 2017 A BONDS MATURING ON OCTOBER 15, 2034 

YEAR 

2033 
2034 
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PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 

$3,790,000 
3,975,000 (stated maturity) 



FOR THE SERIES 2017 A BONDS MATURING ON OCTOBER 15, 2037 

YEAR 

2035 
2036 
2037 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 

$4,175,000 
4,385,000 
4,600,000 (stated maturity) 

FOR TIlE SERIES 2017A BONDS MATURING ON OCTOBER 15, 2040 

YEAR 

2038 
2039 
2040 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 

$4,835,000 
5,080,000 
5,330,000 (stated maturity) 

FOR THE SERIES 20 17B BONDS 

YEAR 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 

$450,000 
570,000 
590,000 
610,000 
630,000 
650,000 (stated maturity) 

If fewer than all of the Series 2017A Bonds maturing on October 15,2025,2029,2032, 
2034,2037 and 2040 and the Series 2017B Bonds are redeemed in a manner other than pursuant 
to a mandatory sinking fund redemption, the principal amount so redeemed will be credited at 
one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof by the Trustee against the obligation 
of the Agency on future mandatory sinking fund redemption dates for the Series 2017 A Bonds 
maturing on October 15,2025,2029,2032,2034,2037 and 2040 and the Series 2017B Bonds in 
such order as directed by the Agency. 

SELECTION OF SERIES 2017 BONDS FOR REDEMPTION 

Ifless than all of the Series 2017 Bonds of any maturity are to be redeemed, the particular 
Series 2017 Bonds or portion of the Series 2017 Bonds of such maturity to be redeemed will be 
selected by the Trustee by lot, in such manner as the Trustee in its discretion may deem fair and 
appropriate. The portion of any registered Series 2017 Bond of a denomination of more than 
$5,000 to be redeemed will be in the principal amount of$5,000 or integral multiples thereof (the 
"Minimum Denomination "), and in selecting portions of such Series 2017 Bonds for redemption 
the Trustee will treat each such Series 2017 Bond as representing that number of Series 2017 
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Bonds of the Minimum Denomination that is obtained by dividing the principal amount of such 
Series 2017 Bonds by the Minimum Denomination. 

NOTICE OF REDEMPTION; EFFECT OF REDEMPTION 

Notice of Redemption. In the event any of the Bonds are to be redeemed, the Registrar 
will cause notice to be given as provided in the Indenture. Notice of such redemption (i) will be 
filed with the Paying Agent designated for the Bonds being redeemed; and (ii) will be mailed by 
first class mail, postage prepaid, to all Registered Owners of Bonds to be redeemed at their 
addresses as they appear on the registration books of the Registrar at least thirty days but not 
more than sixty days prior to the date fixed for redemption. Such notice will include, among 
other information specified by the Indenture, the following: (i) the complete official name of the 
Bonds; (ii) in the case of partial redemption of any Bonds, the respective principal amounts 
thereof to be redeemed; (iii) the date of mailing of redemption notices and the redemption date; 
and (iv) the redemption price. 

In addition to the foregoing, further notice of any redemption of Bonds under the 
Indenture will be given by the Trustee, simultaneously with the mailed notice to Registered 
Owners, by registered or certified mail or overnight delivery service to the Municipal Securities 
Rulemaking Board (the "MSRB '), and all registered securities depositories (as reasonably 
determined by the Trustee) then in the business of holding substantial amounts of obligations of 
types comprising the Bonds. Such further notice will contain the information required for a 
notice of redemption under the Indenture. Failure to give all or any portion of such further notice 
will not in any manner defeat the effectiveness of a call for redemption. Upon the payment of 
the redemption price of Bonds being redeemed, each check or other transfer of funds issued for 
such purpose will bear the CUSIP number, if any, identifying, by issue and maturity, the Bonds 
being redeemed with the proceeds of such check or other transfer. 

If at the time of mailing of any notice of optional redemption there will not be on deposit 
with the Trustee moneys sufficient to redeem all the Bonds called for redemption, such notice 
will state that such redemption will be conditioned upon receipt by the Trustee on or prior to the 
date fixed for such redemption of moneys sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on such 
Bonds to be redeemed and that if such moneys will not have been so received said notice will be 
of no force and effect and the Agency will not be required to redeem such Bonds. In the event 
that such moneys are not so received, the redemption will not be made and the Trustee will 
within a reasonable time thereafter give notice, one time, in the same manner in which the notice 
of redemption was given, that such moneys were not so received. 

A second notice of redemption will be given, not later than ninety days subsequent to the 
redemption date, to Registered Owners of Bonds or portions thereof redeemed but who failed to 
deliver Bonds for redemption prior to the 60th day following such redemption date. 

Any notice mailed will be conclusively presumed to have been duly given, whether or not 
the owner of such Bonds receives the notice. Receipt of such notice will not be a condition 
precedent to such redemption, and failure to receive any such notice by any of such Registered 
Owners will not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of the Bonds. 
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In case any Bond is to be redeemed in part only, the notice of redemption which relates to 
such Bond will state also that on or after the redemption date, upon surrender of such Bond, a 
new Bond in principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of such Bond will be issued. 

Partial Redemption. In case any registered Bond will be redeemed in part only, upon the 
presentation of such Bond for such partial redemption, the Agency will execute and the Trustee 
will authenticate and will deliver or cause to be delivered to or upon the written order of the 
Registered Owner thereof, at the expense of the Agency, a Bond or Bonds of the same Series, 
interest rate and maturity, in aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of such 
registered Bond. Unless otherwise provided by Supplemental Indenture, a portion of any Bond 
of a denomination of more than the minimum denomination of such Series specified in the 
Indenture or in the related Supplemental Indenture to be redeemed will be in the principal 
amount of such minimum denomination or an integral multiple thereof and in selecting portions 
of such Bonds for redemption, the Trustee will treat each such Bond as representing that number 
of Bonds of such minimum denomination which is obtained by dividing the principal amount of 
such Bonds by such minimum denomination. 

PLAN OF FINANCE 

THE 2017 PROJECT 

The 2017 Project consists of the the acquisition, construction, and installation of advance 
communication lines, equipment and improvements, and related improvements and facilities as 
part of a fiber optic advance communications network. The 2017 Project includes the 
construction of "last mile" or access-level fiber in defmed footprints, lateral infrastructure to 
commercially zoned areas, "curb to the premises" construction and connection to the VIA 
Network and/or UTOPIA Network where available. The 2017 Project will be undertaken 
throughout the boundaries of the Contracting Members. 
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THE REFUNDING 

A portion of the proceeds of the Series 2017 Bonds will be used to refund the Refunded 
Bonds, further described as follows: 

SERIES 2011A BONDS 

AMOUNT 
REFUNDED BY 

PRINCIPAL THE 

MATURITY AMOUNT SERIES 2017A 
(OCTOBER 15) OursTANDING BONDS CALL PRICE CALL DATE 

2022 $ 385,000 $ 385,000 100% 10/15/2021 
2023 1,025,000 1,025,000 100% 10/15/2021 
2024 1,100,000 1,100,000 100% 10/15/2021 
2025 1,145,000 1,145,000 100% 10/15/2021 
2026 1,200,000 1,200,000 100% 10/15/2021 
2030 5,470,000 5,470,000 100% 10/15/2021 
2033 5,000,000 5,000,000 100% 10/15/2021 
2036 5,770,000 5,770,000 100% 10/1512021 

TOTAL $21,095,000 $21,095,000 

SERIES 2011B BONDS 

AMOUNT 
REFUNDED BY 

PRINCIPAL THE 
MATURITY AMOUNT SERIES 2017B 

(OcrOBER 15) OursTANDING BONDS CALL PRICE CALL DATE 

2018 $ 810,000 $ 810,000 Not Callable Not Callable 
2019 850,000 850,000 Not Callable Not Callable 
2020 890,000 890,000 Not Callable Not Callable 
2021 935,000 935,000 Not Callable Not Callable 
2022 600,000 600,000 Not Callable Not Callable 

TOTAL $4,085,000 $4,085,000 
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SERIES 2013 BONDS 

AMOUNT 
REFUNDED BY 

PRINCIPAL THE 
MATURITY AMOUNT SERIES 2017 A 

(OCTOBER 15) OUTSTANDING BONDS CALL PRICE CALL DATE 

2018 $ 300,000 $ 300,000 Not Callable Not Callable 
2019 315,000 315,000 Not Callable Not Callable 
2020 325,000 325,000 Not Callable Not Callable 
2021 340,000 340,000 Not Callable Not Callable 
2022 355,000 355,000 Not Callable Not Callable 
2023 365,000 365,000 Not Callable Not Callable 
2024 380,000 380,000 100% 10/15/2023 
2025 395,000 395,000 100% 10/15/2023 
2028 1,295,000 1,295,000 100% 10/15/2023 
2033 2,630,000 2,630,000 100% 10/15/2023 
2038 3.380,000 3.380,000 100% 10/15/2023 

TOTAL $10,080,000 $10,080,000 

-25-



SERIES 2015 BONDS 

AMOUNT 
REFUNDED BY 

PRINCIPAL THE 
MATURITY AMOUNT SERIES 2017A 

(OCTOBER 15) OUTSTANDING BONDS CALL PRICE CALL DATE 

2018 $ 630,000 $ 630,000 Not Callable Not Callable 
2019 635,aOO 635,000 Not Callable Not Callable 
2020 645,000 645,000 Not Callable Not Callable 
2021 660,000 660,000 Not Callable Not Callable 
2022 685,000 685,000 Not Callable Not Callable 
2023 710,000 710,000 Not Callable Not Callable 
2025 1,530,000 1,530,000 Not Callable Not Callable 
2026 825,000 825,000 100% 10/15/2025 
2027 865,000 865,000 100% 10/1512025 
2028 910,000 910,000 100% 10/15/2025 
2030 1,970,000 1,970,000 100% 10/15/2025 
2032 2,150,000 2,150,000 100% 10/15/2025 
2034 2,350,000 2,350,000 100% 10/15/2025 
2036 2,595,000 2,595,000 100% 10/15/2025 
2040 5,910,000 5,910,000 100% 10/15/2025 

TOTAL $23,070,000 $23,070,000 

Certain proceeds received from the sale of the Series 2017 Bonds and certain lawfully 
available funds of the Agency (the "Available Funds ") will be deposited in an Escrow Account 
(the "Escrow Account'') to be held by ZB, National Association, dba Zions Bank, Salt Lake 
City, Utah (the "Escrow Agent"), under the terms of an Escrow Deposit Agreement, expected to 
be dated as of December 1, 2017, between the Agency and the Escrow Agent. The moneys so 
deposited in the Escrow Account will be held in cash or applied by the Escrow Agent to 
purchase direct non-callable obligations of, or obligations guaranteed by the full faith and credit 
of, the United States of America (the "Government Securities '') and to provide an initial cash 
deposit. The Government Securities together with interest earnings thereon and the beginning 
cash deposit will be sufficient to pay when due the principal of and interest on the Refunded 
Bonds up to and including the maturity or prior redemption dates thereof 

VERIFICATION 

The accuracy of ( a) the mathematical computations regarding the adequacy of the 
maturing principal of and interest earnings on the Government Securities together with an initial 
cash deposit in the Escrow Account to pay the debt service described above on the Refunded 
Bonds, and (b) the mathematical computations supporting the conclusion that the Series 2017 A 
Bonds are not "arbitrage bonds" under Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
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amended (the "Code ") will be verified by Grant Thornton LLP (the "Verification Agent "). Such 
verification will be based upon infonnation supplied by the hereinafter dermed Underwriter. 

SOURCES AND USES OF FuNDs 

The sources and uses of proceeds of the Series 2017 Bonds and the Available Funds are 
shown below: 

SERIES 2017 A SERIES 2017B 
BONDS BONDS TOTAL 

SOURCES 
Principal Amount $73,905,000.00 $3,500,000.00 $77,405,000.00 
Available Funds 0.00 1,486,148.97 1,486,148.97 
Net Original Issue PremiumlDiscount 7,784,509.00 (104,895.00) 7.679.614.00 

Total Sources $81 689 509.00 $4 88 J 253.97 $86 570 762 27 

USES 
Deposit to Series 2017 Construction $12,947,489.66 $ 0.00 $12,947,489.66 

Account 
Deposit to Escrow Account to pay the 61,819,604.23 4,468,650.58 66,288,254.81 

Refunded Bonds 
Deposit to Series 2017 A Debt Service 5,600,500.00 0.00 5,600,500.00 

Reserve Account 
Deposit to Series 20 17B Debt Service 0.00 350,000.00 350,000.00 

Reserve Account 
Costs ofIssuance<l) 1,321,915.11 62,603.39 1,384,518.50 

Total Uses $8 J 682 S!l2,QQ $1881 ,2~J.2:Z SaMZ07622Z 

(1) Including undC1VlTiter's discount BDd other costs of issuance. 

THE AGENCY 

GENERAL 

Creation and Purpose. The Agency is a separate legal entity, body politic and corporate, 
and a political subdivision of the State regularly created, established, organized and existing 
under and by virtue of the provisions of the Interlocal Agreement, the Interlocal Cooperation Act 
and the State constitution. The Members include the following Utah municipalities: Brigham 
City, Centerville City, Layton City, Lindon City, Midvale City, Murray City, City of Orem, 
Payson City and West Valley City. A map showing the location of the Members is provided on 
page ii of this Official Statement. 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Interlocal Cooperation Act, cities may exercise and 
enjoy jointly with other cities any power, privileges or authority exercised or capable of being 
exercised by a city. State law pennits municipalities to purchase, lease, construct or equip 
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communications facilities that are designed to provide services within the municipality, and that 
the municipality uses for internal municipal government purposes, or by written contract, leases, 
sells capacity in or grants other similar rights to a private provider to use the facilities in 
connection with a private provider offering cable television services or public 
telecommunications services. The Interlocal Cooperation Act permits cities to make the most 
efficient use of their power by enabling them to cooperate with other cities on the basis of mutual 
advantage and thereby to provide services and facilities in a manner and under forms of 
governmental organization that will accord best with geographic, economic, population and other 
factors influencing the needs of development of local communities and will provide the benefit 
of economy of scale, economic development and utilization of natural resources for the overall 
promotion of the general welfare of the State. 

Corporate and Statutory Powers. Pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act and the 
Interlocal Agreement, the Agency has the power to: (i) issue bonds, and construct, lease, operate 
(or cause the same to occur) and own the VIA Network; (ii) enter into contracts with suppliers, 
contractors, providers and others to fucilitate the accomplishment of the purposes listed in (i); 
(iii) undertake such actions as are necessary or advisable to effectuate its general purpose; 
(iv) enter into contracts, bond, construct and undertake actions to effectuate such purposes, 
which may be done in series or phases, as determined by the Board; (v) upgrade and expand the 
VIA Network as new development occurs within the boundaries of the Member cities and as 
other municipalities join the Agency; and (vi) engage in such other lawful activity in which an 
interlocal cooperative may become involved and conduct any and all transactions and activities 
related thereto. 

Pursuant to the Interlocal Agreement, by a two-thirds vote of the Members as determined 
pursuant to the formula set forth in such Agreement, a formula is to be adopted to equitably 
distribute the Excess Revenues (as descnlled below) to Members. The specific timing, method, 
and interpretation of the sharing formula is to be determined by a two-thirds vote of the 
Members. The formula will attempt to calculate the Excess Revenues attributable to each 
Member. Until construction of the VIA Network is substantially completed within the 
boundaries of all Members, the Interlocal Agreement currently provides that there will be no 
distribution of Excess Revenues to the Members, and all Excess Revenues will be used to build 
out the UIA Network within the Members' boundaries as determined by a two-thirds vote of the 
Members according to the weighted voting of the Members set forth in the Interlocal Agreement. 

Discretionary Revenues is determined under the Interlocal Agreement to mean any 
remaining revenues after payment of all operation and maintenance expenses, all debt service 
payments with respect to bonds of the Agency, and all funding requirements for those funds and 
accounts as well as use of funds established with respect to the issuance of bonds of the Agency 
("Discretionary Revenues "). After payment of such itetns, Discretionary Revenues may be used 
to pay costs of construction of the VIA Network, and costs of redeeming bonds of the Agency, all 
at the discretion of the Board. Any remaining revenues ("Excess Revenues ") may be paid to 
Members pursuant to a formula determined by the Board, subject to the limitations described in 
the immediately preceding paragraph. 
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The Interlocal Agreement, including the provisions providing for distribution of Excess 
Revenues to the Members, is subject to amendment by the written approval of two-thirds of all 
Members. 

Organization. The Agency is governed by a nine-member governing board (the 
"Board"), consisting of representatives appointed from each of the Members. The present Board 
members are as follows: 

NAME CITY BOARD ROLE 

Alex Jensen Layton City Chair 
Jason Roberts Brigham City First Vice Chair 
Philip Hill Midvale City Second Vice Chair 
Sam Lentz CityofOrem Third Vice Chair 
Jeff Acerson Lindon City Director 
Danyce Steck Murray City Director 
Paul Isaac West Valley City Director 
Paul Cutler Centerville City Director 
Michael Hardy Payson City Director 

The Board is required to hold at least one regular meeting annually, but may call other 
meetings as necessary. Each Member is entitled to one vote for each one-thousand (1,000) 
residents, rounded to the nearest one thousand, as determined by the most recent official census 
or census estimate of the United States Census Bureau or the Utah Population Estimates 
Committee. There must be a quorum present at each meeting in order to take any action. A 
quorum consists of the presence of the Board members entitled to cast a majority of the votes, 
which is not a simple majority of Board members since votes are weighted based on population. 

MEMBER 

West Valley City 
CityofOrem 
Layton City 
Murray City 
Midvale City 
Payson City 

Brigham City 
Centerville City 

Lindon City 

2016 ESTIMATED 
POPULATION(I) 

136,574 
97,499 
75,655 
49,230 
33,035 
19,810 
18,975 
17,286 
10,939 

(1) Source: u.s. Census Bureau; population e&tirnate as of July 1. 2016. 

APPROXIMATE CURRENT 
VOTING % 

30 
21 
17 
11 
7 
4 
4 
4 
2 

The Board also elects from among its members a Chair, a First Vice Chair, a Second Vice 
Chair, a Third Vice Chair and a Fourth Vice Chair (currently vacant). The aforementioned 
officials serve as the Executive Committee of the Board. The Executive Committee has 
oversight over the operations of the Agency as delegated by the Board. 
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The Board appoints a Chief Executive Officer, who, subject to oversight by the Board, 
has general supervision, management, administration, direction and control of the business and 
officers of the Agency and has such other related duties as may be prescribed by the Board and 
the bylaws. The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to perform any function required of the 
Agency by the Interlocal Cooperative Agreement. The day-to-day operations are handled by the 
Chief Executive Officer. The following is a brief description of key administrative personnel of 
the Agency. 

Roger TImmerman, Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Timmerman has served as Chief 
Executive Officer of the Agency since 2016. He also serves as Executive Director of UTOPIA, a 
position he has also held since 2016. Prior to joining the Agency and UTOPIA, Mr. Timmerman 
was Vice President of Engineering for Vivint Wireless, one of the country's largest wireless 
internet service providers, and helped launch wireless ISP in Utah and Texas. Mr. Timmerman 
also previously served as the Chief Technology Officer for UTOPIA for five years. He also 
worked as a Network Engineer for the City of Provo for its iProvo fiber-to-the-home project. 
After graduation, he worked for the BYU Office of Information Technology as a Network 
Product Manager and oversaw the deployment of various network products. He graduated from 
Brigham Young University with a B.S. in Information Technology in 2004 and received a Master 
of Science degree in Information Technology from Brigham Young University in 2009. 

Kirt Sudweeks, SecretarylTreasurer. Mr. Sudweeks has served as Secretaryffreasurer of 
the Agency since 2010. He also serves as the Chief Financial Officer of UTOPIA, a position he 
has held since 2007. Prior to joining the Agency and UTOPIA, Mr. Sudweeks was the controller 
for Scotland Construction, a local residential construction company. Mr. Sudweeks worked for 
Flying J Communications for five years as Director of Financial Systems Development. He also 
worked for American Stores Company in various finance and accounting positions, including 
Director, Construction and Property Accounting, Director of Financial Accounting, and Manager, 
Corporate Financial Planning. He graduated from Brigham Young University with a B.S. in 
business management/finance in 1982 and received an MBA from the University of Utah in 
1985. 

David J. Shaw, General Counsel. Mr. Shaw of Kirton McConkie PC, serves as General 
Counsel to the Agency where he has responsibility for providing legal advice on policy and 
operational issues. Mr. Shaw takes a lead role in developing and negotiating contracts and 
service agreements and in assuring that the Agency's activities are consistent with federal and 
state laws. He oversees the activities of outside counsel hired as needed by the Agency. 
Mr. Shaw also serves as General Counsel to UTOPIA and was employed by UTOPIA as in-house 
counsel from 2004 until 2007, when he joined Kirton McConkie PC. Mr. Shaw also serves as 
special counsel to a variety of other publicly-owned telecommunications projects in the United 
States and internationally. Prior to joining UTOPIA, Mr. Shaw served as Assistant City Attorney 
for the City of Murray and, in that capacity, developed a recognized expertise in the legal issues 
facing municipal enterprise activities such as power, water, wastewater and telecommunications. 
Mr. Shaw holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in international relations and Spanish language from 
Brigham Young University. He graduated with a Juris Doctorate degree from the University of 
Utah Law School and received an LL.M. in information technology and telecommunications law 
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from the University of Strathclyde, Glasgow, Scotland. He is a member of the Utah Bar 
Association, the Wyoming Bar Association and the Federal Communications Bar Association. 

ADDITIONiWITHDRAwALIDlsSOUJ'nON 

Any municipality that wishes to become a Member of the Agency may do so upon 
approval of the governing body of the governmental entity and the Agency's Board. Entities that 
become members of the Agency subsequent to the original execution of the Interlocal Agreement 
have substantially similar rights, power and authority as the original Members. To date, no 
additional members have been added since the inception of the Agency. 

The Agency may be dissolved by a two-thirds vote of !he Members, so long as it has no 
outstanding bonds (including !he Series 2017 Bonds). Upon dissolution and after payment in full 
of all outstanding bonds and o!her obligations, the Board will equitably disburse !he assets of !he 
Agency to the !hen current Members . To the extent possible, each Member will receive 
ownership of !hat portion of !he UIA Network wi!hin its boundaries at no additional cost to each 
then current Member. 

OUTSTANDING BONDS AND NOTES OF THE AOENCY 

Upon issuance and the refunding of the Refunded Bonds, the Series 2017 Bonds will be 
!he only outstanding Bonds of the Agency. 

The Agency has outstanding its notes (the "Member Notes ") in the aggregate amount of 
$3,747,595 payable to certain of the Members. The Member Notes evidence working capital 
assessments made by the Agency to such Members for fiscal years 2013-2015 pursuant to the 
Interlocal Agreement in order to help the Agency meet ongoing operational expense obligations, 
including payments to UTOPIA for operational expenses of the UTOPIA Network. The Member 
Notes are payable from the Net Revenues on a subordinate basis to the Bonds. Assessments are 
subject to the budgetary processes and approvals of the Members. Although most of the 
Members agreed to pay at least some portion of the assessments in the past, no assurance can be 
given !hat the Members will agree to do so in the future in the event that any additional 
assessments are necessary. The Agency did not assess the Members (and no new notes were 
issued) for the past two fiscal years, and the Agency does not expect to issue any additional notes 
in the future. 

FUTIJRE FINANCING 

The Agency must satisfy certain conditions prior to the issuance of any Additional Bonds 
under the Indenture. See "SECURITY- Additional Bonds" herein. Currently, the Agency does not 
have plans to issue any Additional Bonds under the Indenture for the next year. 

As discussed herein, Layton City desires to expedite expansion of the UIA Network 
within its boundaries. The Agency and Layton City plan to enter into an agreement providing for 
the Agency to issue its bonds within the first six months of 2018 in the approximate amount of 
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$21,000,000 to finance such expansion. Such bonds are expected to be secured by a pledge of 
Layton City's Franchise Tax Revenues on a parity with its Franchise Tax Obligation. Such bonds, 
if issued, will be payable pursuant to the tenns of a separate indenture and will not be issued 
under or secured by the General Indenture. 

No DEFAULT 

The Agency has never been in default on any material contractual or financial obligation, 
including the punctual payment of principal or interest on any of its indebtedness. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARIES AND BUDGET 

The following tables summarize the Agency's recent fmancial history as well as its 
budget for fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. The Agency prepared the historical tables based on 
information set forth in the Agency's audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended 
June 30, 2013 through June 30, 2017. 
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET PosmON 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 
Operating Revenues 

Access fees $7,078,457 $6,059,951 $4,872,660 $3,038,824 $1,779,298 
Installations 123,933 258 ,449 472,018 514,871 1,294,842 
Reconnections 1,813,818 1,362,514 982,663 769,246 366,320 
Miscellaneous operating revenue 39,352 8,400 0 0 0 

Total Operating Revenues $9,055,560 $7,689,314 $6,327,341 $4,322,941 $3.440.460 

Operating Expenses 
Marketing $ 323,884 $ 231,039 $ 86,013 $ 85,778 $ 161,626 
Professional services 138,352 97,680 78,238 65,765 41,484 
Network 704,047 420,302 364,212 321,543 255,417 
Depreciation 3,549,885 3,002,055 2,653,388 2,251,384 1,116,158 

Total Operating Expenses $4,716,168 $3,751,076 $3,181,851 $~~4.470 $2.174.685 

Operating Income (Loss) $4.339.392 $3,938,238 $3,145.490 $1,598.471 $1.265.775 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 
Interest income $ 491,518 $ 386,958 $ 291,526 $ 329,094 $ 288,164 
Installation related capital contributions 376,682 247,294 799,864 577,877 840,840 
Bond interest and fees (2,174,126) (2,99~,006) 0,917,828) (2,374,095) (2,095,998) 

Total Non-Operating Revenues 
(Expenses) $(1,905,926) $(2358,754) $ (826.508) $(1.467,124) $ (966,994) 

Change in Net Position $2,433,466 $1,579,484 $2,318,982 $ 131,347 $ 298,781 

Total Net Position, July 1 $2,167,043 $ 587,559 $(1,731,423) $(1,862,770i') $(924,528) 
Total Net Position, June 30 $4,600.509 $2 167.Q43 $ 587559 $0,731,423) $(625,747) 

Source: The Agency has provided this unaudited summary based on its audited financial statements for the fiscal yeus ended June 30, 2013 through June 30, 2017. 
(1) Restated from fiscal year end 2013 ending balance to comply with requirements of GASB 63. 
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 

AssETS 

CUrrent Assets 

Cash S 6,185,494 S 3,146,791 $ 2,168,755 $ 996,661 $ 666,897 

Restricted cash equivalents 8,970,265 25,443,378 2,298,904 5,573,515 2,728,701 

Trade receivables, net 1,011,553 491,703 468,801 327,634 336,717 

InventoI}' 1,240,161 885,408 658,843 296,805 162,042 

Notes receivable 218,007 193,111 180,946 15 1,665 126,780 

Prepaid expenses 17212 Q Q Q Q 
Total CurrcntAsscts $116~2 !!B2 $3Q l~O J21 $ ~ 122 6.42 $ 13~{! 28Q $ 4 021 1~2 

Noncurrent Assets 
Notes receivable $ 3,208,739 S 3,275,771 $ 3,402,970 S 3,576,268 S 3,422,307 

Capital Assets: 
Construction in progress 749,640 109,706 13,230 2,852,028 918,369 

Land 500,000 0 0 0 0 

Property and equipment. net fiber optic network 51,856,193 40,519,444 40,129,117 36,506,565 32,354,791 

Deferred (huges cost of issuance 0 Q 0 Q 12;l1Q~ 

Total Noncurrent Assets S~~ ~14 ~12 $43904221 ~3 ~~ 317 $~2~861 S~7 232 ~2Q 
Total Assets $Z~ 251261 $14065 JI, ~2J~l5M $~8] ]41 $4] 253 fi~l 

DEFBlUUID OlTJ'FLOws OF REsouRCES 

Deferred iuuance costs on bonds S 0 S 0 S 0 S 0 $ 0 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources Q Q 0 Q 0 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows ofResourtes $Z~ 2512Cil $'HQ~~ JI. ~2 J~ I 566 $~28J ]~l $~] 2S~ ~~Z 

LlABJUTIES 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable S 957,025 S 409,987 S 238,511 S 380,330 S 191,740 

Liabilitie!! payablc from restricted assets 0 0 0 431,077 948,695 

Accrued liabilities 68,819 29,186 63,184 129,636 18,554 
UncamcdlDefcrred revcnue 9,675 0 0 300,000 0 
Interest payablc from restricted asscts 596,607 605,940 402,597 408,513 621 ,166 
Capitalleascs payable 640,171 620,709 595,117 655,000 6,529,073 

Revenuc bonds payable 1,690,000 ~ l.l!ill!QQ 980,000 ~ 
Total Current Liabilities S~ S J.llQ.m $~ S~ S~ 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Capital Leases Payable S 1,012,403 S 2,807,455 S ', 168,053 $ 7,540,602 S 4,344,199 

Notes Payable 3,835,636 3,417,291 3,352,210 2,248,467 798,754 

Revenue Bonds Payable ~Q~46~1~ 62 3~, ZQl JZ 2Q2llS 38 218 232 28 44~ 12l 
Total Noncurrent Liabilities S~2 ~94,4S2 $68 SIl1~Z ~42lM2g $!§ 72B,QQB: S;U S8S 14~ 

Total Liabilitiea S~~ 35615~ $11 828 ~~2 $~8 2J~tom $~~ 012 S~ S!12 572 J~ 

NETPosmON 
Net investment in capital assets S 2,076;379 $ 2,763,232 $ 3,384,664 $ 3,350,994 S (2,764,104) 

Restricted for: 
Debt service 2,559,705 2,543,594 1,635,981 1,133;381 789,593 

Unspent bond proceeds 5,813,952 22,293,844 260,326 3,600,544 369,247 

Unrestricted (S 849,521) (25,433,~l1l (4,~2l412l (2 B16,342} ill.ill 
TotBl Net Position $ ! 600 ~Q2 $2162~J S ~B:Z ~~2 S [I Z~l 42J} $ ~2~~:Z) 

TOTAL LlABn.ll1ES AND NET Posm oN S1~ 251261 $H065JI~ S!12 J1U ~~6 $SQ2811!11 S~J 253 6~2 

Sourcc: The Agency has provided this unaudited summary bascd on its audited fmancial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 through June 30, 2017. 

-34-



BUDGET, FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2018 

Total Revenues(') 

Expenses 
Marketing 
Administrative services 
Professional services 
Network management 
Depreciation(2) 
Bond interest and fees 

Total Expenses 

Net Income 

$10,772,700 

$ 519,600 
109,200 
25,200 

839,718 
4,800,000 
2.907.800 

$ 9,201,518 

$ 1,571,182 

Source: The Agmcy. The Budget for fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, was adopted by the Board of the Agency on June 12, 2017, 
(1) Consists of projected operating revenues in the amount of$10,735.200 and projected interest income in the amount of$37,5oo. 
(2) Depreciation expense is specifically excluded as an Operation and Maintenance Expense when calculating Net Revenues. 

TID NETWORK 

THE UIANETWORK 

The UIA Network is an advanced communications network built with fiber optic 
technology, providing transmission of voice, data and video at speeds that are significantly faster 
than those available through certain competing technologies. Fiber optic technology supports the 
long-term projected grow1h in bandwidth and capacity required for increasing usage demand and 
requirements. The use of fiber optic technology to support homes and businesses has become 
more accepted as the telecommunications industry continues to implement new infrastructure 
and technology to meet increasing demand and economic needs. The Agency provides the fiber 
optic cable, laid both underground and above-ground, necessary to connect each Member and the 
homes and businesses within each Member. Other elements of the VIA Network include 
conduits, fiber strands, splices, switches, transmitters, terminals, internal power sources and all 
other items necessary to operate the VIA Network. 

The VIA Network is based on providing transport services at layer 2 of the open systems 
interconnect (OSI) model. The core backbone is built around internet provider multi-protocol 
label switching (IP-MPLS). This structure gives the VIA Network a powerful, highly redundant 
core that remains transparent to customer traffic. The UIA Network employs an Active Ethernet 
architecture, meaning that customers are connected to community cabinets with active 
electronics. This architecture permits the Agency to scale economically and service business and 
residential customers over the same carrier grade network. It also allows the VIA Network to 
operate as an Open Access network with multiple internet service providers (ISPs) delivering 
customized services and products to customers. The VIA Network extends into the customer site 
with Customer Premise Equipment (CPE). The CPE device allows the conversion of optical 
signals to electrical signals that are separated by the ports on the CPE device. This device allows 
the VIA Network to deliver ISP services consisting of data, video and VoIP services with 
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minimum equipment investment on behalf of the ISP or the customer. This design makes it 
possible to support flexible customer service without requiring a service visit each time the 
customer makes a change in services. 

The UIA Network deploys a fiber-to-the-premises (FTIP) network with a minimum 
capacity of 250 Mbps (megabits per second) in both directions, upload and download. The UIA 
Network is Gigabit capable for residents and currently supports speeds of up to 100 Gigabit for 
commercial customers. The Agency believes that this bandwidth makes it possible for service 
providers using the UIA Network to deliver higher quality services and launch innovative new 
services that existing networks cannot currently support. Also, since the carrying capacity of 
fiber plant can be significantly increased by changing the electronics in the UIA Network, the 
Agency believes the UIA Network has a long useful life and is able to support innovations 
created by evolving technologies. 

The UIA Network operates as a network under an open access model which is available 
to all qualified service providers. The Agency provides carrier-class transport services to the 
Members and provides physical connections and transport services on behalf of the Members to 
end-users. Service providers contract with the Agency directly, or with UTOPIA, as the 
Agency's operator, for access to the UIA Network and then market and provide internet, video, 
telephone and other services to their customers. Such services will utilize the transport services 
provided by the Agency. The Agency, the Members and UTOPIA may also independently 
market and promote the benefits and uses of connecting to the UIA Network. 

The following table shows the five largest service providers on the UIA Network for the 
past three fiscal years, as measured by comparing the percentage of Revenues generated from 
such service provider against Revenues generated from all Service Provider Agreements: 

SERVICE PROVIDER 

Xmission 
Veracity 
Windstrearn 
Sumo 
First Digital 

Total 

Source: The Agency 

THE UTOPIA NETWORK 

FISCAL YEAR 2017 

22.7% 
18.9% 
11.4% 
7.8% 
7.4% 

68.1% 

FISCAL YEAR 20 16 

20.7% 
18.4% 
13.1% 
8.6% 
7.1% 

67.9% 

FISCAL YEAR2015 

19.4% 
18.8% 
14.0% 
9.7% 
6.4% 

68.2% 

UTOPIA is a separate legal entity and political subdivision of the State which was created 
under the Interlocal Cooperation Act by 15 Utah municipalities. UTOPIA is governed by the 
First Amended and Restated Interlocal Cooperative Agreement of the Utah Telecommunication 
Open Infrastructure Agency, dated as of June 1,2004. 
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UTOPIA has the following member cities: Brigham City, Cedar City, Cedar Hills City, 
Centerville City, Layton City, Lindon City, Midvale City, Murray City, City of Orem, Payson 
City, Perry City, Riverton City, Tremonton City, Town of Vineyard and West Valley City. 
UTOPIA was awarded a $17 million grant from the United States government to expand the 
UTOPIA Network. Receipt of moneys from the grant was conditioned upon provision by 
UTOPIA of $7 million in matching moneys, a portion of which was satisfied from proceeds of 
the Agency's Series 2013 Bonds. That project was completed in December 2013 and facilitated 
growth throughout its member cities. In December 2014, UTOPIA obtained a $10 million 
settlement from the USDA's Rural Utilities Service. UTOPIA used those funds to expand the 
UTOPIA Network and connect additional customers. 

The Agency connects the VIA Network to the UTOPIA Network pursuant to the IRU 
Agreement and other agreements. See "Intersection of VIA Network and Utopia Network" 
herein for a further discussion of the IRU Agremeent. As of June 30, 2017, the UTOPIA 
Network consisted of approximately 3,266 miles of fiber cable (and associated duct) within the 
boundaries of eleven of UTOPIA's member cities. 

The table below presents the percentages of addresses within the Members that are 
passed by the UTOPIA Network as of September 2017. 

Source: The Agency 

MEMBER 

Centerville City 
Brigham City 
Lindon City 
Murray City 
Midvale City 
City of Or em 
Payson City 

West Valley City 
Layton City 

% OF ADDRESSES 
PASSED BY UTOPIA 

NETWORK 

99% 
96% 
95% 
69% 
57% 
45% 
53% 
32% 
43% 

INTERSECTION OF VIA NETWORK AND UTOPIA NETWORK 

The physical location of the UTOPIA Network is critical to the Agency's success because 
the Agency does not have the backbone telecommunications infrastructure in place nor the 
financing available to provide for such a large construction endeavor. Technically, the VIA 
Network could connect to many other networks other than the UTOPIA Network; however, no 
other fiber optic networks have the physical connections to the homes that the Agency intends to 
connect to the VIA Network, and the costs of connecting to different networks would be 
prohibitive. The IRU Agreement provide's long-term rights to the Agency to connect the VIA 
Network to the UTOPIA Network. The initial term of the IRU Agreement runs until April 30, 
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2042, and the IRU Agreement will automatically renew in additional five (5) year increments, 
unless either party gives the other party at least 365 days written notice of such party's intent to 
terminate at the expiration of the then current term. A party under the IRU Agreement may 
deliver to the other party a written notice of default for (i) failing to make any payment of any 
amounts owed under the IRU Agreement, when no bona fide dispute exists, (ii) the breaching by 
either party or its agents, assigns or affiliates of any material provision (as defined in the IRU 
Agreement), or (iii) the filing or initiating of bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings or certain 
similar actions. If the Agency receives a notice of default related to the occurrence of an event 
described in (i) above, the Agency will have 30 days to cure. If the Agency fails to cure such 
event within the cure period, UTOPIA will have the right to either (a) suspend its performance 
obligations under the IRU Agreement, (b) seek an award for the past due balance, including 
interest and reasonable attorneys' fees, and/or (c) require the Agency to post a reasonable deposit 
or other adequate assurance of payment as a condition of continuing performance by UTOPIA. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, UTOPIA may not disconnect service or revoke the indefeasible 
right of use of the Agency with respect to any additional capacity except for non-payment of any 
additional indefeasible right of use fee with respect to that additional capacity. A party that has 
received a notice of default related to the occurrence of an event described in (ii) above will have 
30 days to cure the alleged breach. If the defaulting party has commenced actions in good faith 
to cure such defaults which are not susceptible of being cured during such 30-day period, such 
period will be extended (but not in excess of 90 additional days) while such party continues such 
actions to cure. If such party fails to cure the breach within the applicable cure period, the IRU 
Agreement will not be terminated, but as long as such default shall be continuing, the 
non-defaulting party shall have the right to either (a) suspend its performance or payment 
obligations under the IRU Agreement, (b) seek an order of specific performance, and/or (c) seek 
the award of compensatory damages. Upon the expiration of the term of the IRU Agreement, or 
as a result of a material breach of a component set forth in the IRU Agreement which has gone 
uncured as set forth in the IRU Agreement, the IRU Agreement will terminate and the Agency 
shall owe UTOPIA no additional compensation. 

The Agency does not have a payroll, and both employees of the Agency are also 
employees of UTOPIA and are paid by UTOPIA. Pursuant to the UTOPIA Service Agreement, 
the Agency has contracted for UTOPIA to provide for the management of various services for 
certain portions of the VIA Network, including planning and pre-construction management 
services to build the VIA Network and administration and operations management of the UIA 
Network, including service provider management. The initial term of the UTOPIA Service 
Agreement was for 5 years (beginning June 29, 2010), and the Agency has continued rights to 
renew such Agreement, unless UTOPIA later objects in writing within 30 days, for successive 
one-year periods, on the same terms and conditions existing on the date of such renewal by 
delivering written notice to UTOPIA at least 30 days prior to the end of the then existing term. 
The UTOPIA Service Agreement may be terminated as follows: (a) as required by law, 
(b) 30 days after a non-breaching party has delivered written notice of a material breach of the 
UTOPIA Service Agreement to the breaching party and such breach remains uncured, (c) by 
written mutual agreement of the parties, or (d) immediately, without delivery of notice, upon the 
insolvency or bankruptcy of a party, or upon the occurrence of certain similar events set forth in 
the UTOPIA Service Agreement. A party is required under the UTOPIA Service Agreement to 
immediately notify the other party in writing upon the occurrence of any of the events listed in 

-38-



(d). Failure to do so constitutes a material breach of the UTOPIA Service Agreement and will 
result in automatic termination of the UTOPIA Service Agreement. The UTOPIA Service 
Agreement is also subject to termination by the Agency for business convenience, for any or no 
reason, and without penalty, liability or obligation of any kind (except for payment for 
conforming services already received) by delivering at least 90 days' written notice to UTOPIA. 

The combined UTOPIAlUIA Networks consist of 153 production footprints passing a 
total of 86,946 addresses, of which 71,775 are able to receive services at the decision of the 
household or business (marketable). The remaining non-marketable addresses are located in 
apartment buildings, condominium developments or in areas isolated by right-of-way or pole 
access issues. 

The following chart shows the total number of business and residential customers, the 
"take-rate" and the "churn rate" of the combined UTOPIAIUIA Networks for the past four fiscal 
years. ''Take-rate'' means the percentage of potential business and residential customers in that 
city that have signed up for either the UIA Network or the UTOPIA Network. Upon complete 
build out of the combined UTOPIAIUIA Networks, the total projected potential customers for 
the combined UTOPIAIUIA Networks is approximately 160,000. "Churn rate" means the 
percentage of customers of the combined UTOPIAlUIA Networks that have terminated services 
in such fiscal year. 

Combined UTOPIAJUIA Networks - Customers, Take-Rate and Churn Rate 

FY2017 FY2016 FY2015 FY2014 

TAKE- TAKE- TAKE- TAKE-
CUSTOMERS RATE CUSTOMERS RATE CUSTOMERS RATE CUSTOMERS RATE 

Brigham City 1,833 31.3% 1,640 29.5% 1,380 31.4% 1,272 30.0% 
Centerville 1,607 32.9% 1,515 30.0% 1,360 28.7% 1,268 26.6% 
Layton 1,749 18.6% 1,096 16.1% 599 16.8% 505 20.8% 
Lindon 1,442 44.8% 1,385 43.4% 1,294 45.0% 1,209 43 .3% 
Midvale 747 13.6% 677 12.2% 599 17.7% 565 19.0% 
Murray 2,629 23.7% 2,474 22.4% 2,288 25.6% 2,148 24.3% 
Orem 3,316 26.5% 3,200 24.4% 3,182 29.2% 3,157 29.3% 
Payson 756 24.4% 681 25.0% 570 24.9"10 547 24.1% 
Perry 344 19.3% 132 7.5% 2 0.0% 2 0.0% 
Tremonton 608 22.0% 508 18.2% 336 14.5% 287 12.6% 
West Valley 1,098 9.6% 839 10.3% 695 14.3% 635 13.6% 
Mise ---.ill ~ ~ ~ 

TOTAL 16,539 14,515 12,631 11 ,860 

LOST CUSTOMERS 565 736 518 610 
CHURN RATE 3.42% 5.07% 4.10% 5.14% 

Source: The Agency 

Certain potential Customers are candidates for services by both the Agency and 
UTOPIA. In such situations, the Agency and UTOPIA have a practice of allocating such 
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potential Customers to the Agency if any of the Agency's funds are expended when providing 
connection services to such Customers. 

CONTRACTING MEMBERS 

Set forth below is a brief description and demographic information for each Contracting 
Member, a five-year history of its Franchise Tax Revenues, and a description of any City Debt 
secured by the Franchise Tax Revenues. Outstanding City Debt information is as of 
September 15, 2017. 

Pursuant to the Service Contract, each Contracting Member may create or incur 
additional debt on a parity with any outstanding debt secured by a priority lien pledge of such 
Contracting Member's Franchise Tax Revenues or on parity with the pledge created pursuant to 
the Service Contract so long as the pledged Franchise Tax Revenues received by such 
Contracting Member during the fiscal year immediately preceding the fiscal year in which the 
additional priority or parity City Debt is to be incurred is not less than 150% of the sum of (a) the 
Maximum Annual Debt Service (as defmed below) of (i) the additional priority or parity City 
Debt proposed to be incurred and (ii) any City Debt secured by Franchise Tax Revenues 
previously issued and outstanding, plus (b) the total maximum annual amount of such 
Contracting Member's Franchise Tax Obligation under the Service Contract. For purposes of 
this test, "Maximum Annual Debt Service" means, with respect to any outstanding City Debt of 
the Contracting Member, the maximum annual principal and interest payable on such City Debt 
for anyone fiscal year, less any moneys, other than Franchise Tax Revenues, that are legally 
pledged and applied to pay debt service on such City Debt in the fiscal year immediately 
preceding the fiscal year in which the additional priority or parity City Debt is to be incurred. 

WEST VALLEY CITY 

General. West Valley City is the second most populous city in the State. It is located 
four miles from the Salt Lake City International Airport and is a commercial and industrial center 
for Salt Lake County and the metropolitan area. West Valley City was incorporated on July I, 
1980, and encompasses approximately 35 square miles. 

Population Data 

% CHANGE 
NAME OF ENTITY 2000 2010 2016 2010/2016 

West Valley City 108,896 129,480 136,574 5.48% 
Salt Lake County 898,387 1,029,655 1,121,354 8.91% 
The State 2,233,169 2,772,373 2,996,754 8.09% 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau 
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Specified Owner-Occupied Units 

WEST VALLEY SALT LAKE THE 
CITY COUNTY STATE 

VALUE NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $50,000 2,501 10.14% 10,469 4.49% 29,735 4.72% 
$50,000 to $99,999 620 2.51% 4,857 2.08% 25,251 4.01% 
$100,000 to $149,999 5,491 22.27% 26,755 11.49% 89,862 14.27% 
$150,000 to $199,999 9,231 37.44% 46,076 19.77% 135,621 21.54% 
$200,000 to $299,999 5,852 23.74% 71 ,934 30.86% 184,889 29.37% 
$300,000 to $499,999 851 3.45% 52,820 22.66% 119,703 19.01% 
$500,000 to $999,999 61 0.25% 17,551 7.53% 37,238 5.91% 
$1,000,000 or more ~ 0.19"10 2,610 1.12% 7,295 1.16~ 

Total 24,654 100.00% 233,092 100.00% 629,584 100.00% 

Median Value $166,500 $234,700 $215,900 

Source: u.s. Census Bureau. lOll-lOIS American Community Survey S-Ycar Estimate! 

Median Household Income 

WEST VALLEY SALT LAKE THE 
CITY COUNTY STATE 

NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $10,000 1,784 4.93% 17,004 4.83% 44,761 4.94% 
$10,000 to $14,999 1,374 3.79% 12,634 3.59% 34,538 3.81% 
$15,000 to $24,999 3,634 10.40% 29,969 8.52% 77,633 8.57% 
$25,000 to $34,999 4,109 11.35% 31,335 8.90% 83,117 9.17% 
$35,000 to $49,999 5,965 16.47% 46,859 13.32% 125,316 13.83% 
$50,000 to $74,999 8,526 23.54% 72,212 20.52% 191,257 21.10% 
$75,000 to $99,999 5,286 14.60% 52,131 14.81% 135,492 14.95% 
$100,000 to $149,999 4,236 11.70% 52,946 15.05% 132,511 14.62% 
$150,000 to $199,999 794 2.19% 18,733 5.32% 43,846 4.84% 
$200,000 or more ~ 1.39~ 18,069 5 , 1~% 37,~21 4.1m 
Total 36,213 100.00% 351,892 100.00% 906,292 100.00% 

Median Income $52,534 $62,117 $60,727 

Source: u.s. Census Bureau, 2011-2015 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 
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Franchise Tax Revenue 

FISCAL 

YEAR 

2017 
2016 
2015 
2014 
2013 

Source: West Valley city and the Municipal Advisor 

FRANCHISE 

TAX REVENUES 

RECEIVED ($) 

8,095,002 
8,065,445 
7,847,940 
7,705,249 
7,383,444 

( 1) Based on the Franchise Tax Revenues Received for FY 2012 of $6,703,922. 

% CHANGE 

3.66 
2.77 
1.85 
4.36 

10.14(1) 

Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt. West Valley City has previously issued its Franchise 
Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 (the "West Valley Bonds "), which are outstanding in 
the aggregate principal amount of $4,270,000. The West Valley Bonds are payable from and 
secured by Franchise Tax Revenues of West Valley City with a lien that is senior to that of the 
Franchise Tax Obligation of West Valley City under the Service Contract. The West Valley 
Bonds are additionally payable from and secured by revenues that are received from the levy of a 
telecommunications franchise tax, which revenues equaled $2,123,537 in fiscal year 2017 and 
which revenues are not pledged to the payment of the Franchise Tax Obligation of West Valley 
City. The final maturity date of the West Valley Bonds -is April 15, 2020. 

West Valley City has also entered into a pledge agreement (the "Pledge Agreement'') 
with its Redevelopment Agency (the "West Valley RDA ") in connection with the issuance by the 
West Valley RDA of its Franchise Tax and Tax Increment Revenue Bonds, Series 2010B 
(Federally Taxable-Issuer Subsidy-Build America Bonds) (the "RDA 2010B Bonds''), which 
are outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $4,620,000. The RDA 2010B Bonds are 
payable from and secured by a pledge of tax increment revenues of the West Valley RDA. 
However, in the event that such tax increment revenues are not sufficient to pay debt service on 
the RDA 20 I OB Bonds, West Valley City will, pursuant to the Pledge Agreement, transfer to the 
West Valley RDA an amount of Franchise Tax Revenues that is sufficient to pay the debt service 
on the RDA 2010B Bonds. The final maturity date of the RDA 2010B Bonds is November 1, 
2025. The lien on Franchise Tax Revenues created pursuant to the Pledge Agreement is senior to 
the lien of the Franchise Tax Obligation on such revenues. 

West Valley City has also entered into a contribution agreement (the "Contribution 
Agreement'') with the West Valley RDA in connection with the issuance by the West Valley RDA 
of its Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016 (the "RDA 2016 Bonds" and together with the 
RDA 2010B Bonds, the "West Valley RDA Bonds"), which are outstanding in the aggregate 
principal amount of $10,490,000. The RDA 2016 Bonds are payable from and secured by a 
pledge of certain franchise tax revenues of West Valley City, made available under the 
Contribution Agreement, and certain revenues derived from investment income. The final 
maturity date of the RDA 2016 Bonds is November I, 2036. The lien on Franchise Tax 
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Revenues created pursuant to the Contribution Agreement is senior to the lien of the Franchise 
Tax Obligation on such revenues. 

West VaJley City has indicated it does not have any current plans to incur additional 
obligations payable from Franchise Tax Revenues within the next two years. 

Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 

FRANCHISE FRANCHISE 
FISCAL TAX TAX 
YEAR REVENUES( I) CITY DEB-r<2) OBLIGATION 

2018 $8,065,445 $2,503,356 $1,568,781 
2019 8,065,445 2,626,462 1,568,781 
2020 8,065,445 2,467,937 1,568,781 
2021 8,065,445 1,022,487 1,568,781 
2022 8,065,445 1,023,362 1,568,781 
2023 8,065,445 2,089,287 1,568,781 
2024 8,065,445 2,064,919 1,568,781 
2025 8,065,445 2,043,326 1,568,781 
2026 8,065,445 2,024,688 1,568,781 
2027 8,065,445 771,525 1,568,781 
2028 8,065,445 773,300 1,568,781 
2029 8,065,445 771,700 1,568,781 
2030 8,065,445 772,150 1,568,781 
2031 8,065,445 774,750 1,568,781 
2032 8,065,445 771 ,825 1,568,781 
2033 8,065,445 770,250 1,568,781 
2034 8,065,445 769,750 1,568,781 
2035 8,065,445 769,750 1,568,781 
2036 8,065,445 765,000 1,568,781 
2037 8,065,445 763,625 1,568,781 

2038 and 8,065,445 0 1,568,781 
thereafter 

Source:: West Valley City and the Municipal Advisor 
( I) FrJIlcWse Tax Revenues received for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. 
(2) Conrim of outstanding debt service 00 the: West Valley Bonda and the West Valley RDA Bonds. 
(3) Sum of City Debt and Franchise TIX Obligation. 
(4) Franchise: Tax Revenues divided by Total. 
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TOTAL(3) 

$4,072,137 
4,195,243 
4,036,718 
2,591,268 
2,592,143 
3,658,068 
3,633,700 
3,612,107 
3,593,469 
2,340,306 
2,342,081 
2,340,481 
2,340,931 
2,343,531 
2,340,606 
2,339,031 
2,338,531 
2,338,531 
2,333,781 
2,332,406 
1,568,781 

COVERAGE(4) 

1.98x 
1.92x 
2.00x 
3.l1x 
3.l1x 
2.20x 
2.22x 
2.23x 
2.24x 
3.45x 
3.44x 
3.45x 
3.45x 
3.44x 
3.45x 
3.45x 
3.45x 
3.45x 
3.46x 
3.46x 
5.14x 



CITYOFOREM 

General. The City of Orem was incorporated in 1919 and covers an area of 
approximately 18 square miles. It is located in Utah County, approximately 40 miles south of 
Salt Lake City and adjacent to Provo City. 

Population Data 

% CHANGE 
NAME OF ENTITY 2000 2010 2016 2010/2016 

CityofOrem 84,324 88,328 97,499 10.38% 
Utah County 368,536 516,564 592,299 14.66% 
The State 2,233,169 2,772,373 2,996,754 8.09% 

Source: u.s. Census Bureau 

Specified Owner-Occupied Units 

CITY OF UTAH THE 
OREM COUNTY STATE 

VALUE NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $50,000 721 4.54% 3,450 3.47% 29,735 4.72% 
$50,000 to $99,999 187 1.18% 1,390 1.40% 25,241 4.01% 
$100,000 to $149,999 2,012 12.68% 10,941 11.01% 89,862 14.27% 
$150,000 to $199,999 4,444 28.00% 22,600 22.74% 135,621 21.54% 
$200,000 to $299,999 5,672 35.74% 33,718 33.93% 184,889 29.37% 
$300,000 to $499,999 2,141 13.49% 20,257 20.39% 119,703 19.01% 
$500,000 to $999,999 589 3.71% 6,091 6.13% 37,238 5.91% 
$1,000,000 or more ~ 066% ---..m 0.93% 7,295 1.16% 

Total 15,871 100.00% 99,369 100.00% 629,584 100.00% 

Median Value $207,400 $228,400 $215,900 

Source: U.5. Census Bureau, 2011-201 S American Community Survey $-Year Estimates 
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Median Household Income 

CITY OF UTAH 1lIE 
OREM COUNTY STAlE 

NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $10,000 1,386 5.30% 6,713 4.52% 44,761 4.94% 
$10,000 to $14,999 1,171 4.48% 5,679 3.83% 34,538 3.81% 
$15,000 to $24,999 2,577 9.86% 12,412 8.36% 77,633 8.57% 
$25,000 to $34,999 2,630 10.06% 12,595 8.48% 83,117 9.17% 
$35,000 to $49,999 4,110 15.72% 20,624 13.89% 125,316 13.83% 
$50,000 to $74,999 5,349 20.46% 31,505 21.22% 191,257 21.10% 
$75,000 to $99,999 3,755 14.36% 22,904 15.43% 135,492 14.95% 
$100,000 to $149,999 3,253 12.44% 22,798 15.36% 132,511 14.62% 
$150,000 to $199,999 1,004 3.84% 7,523 5.07% 43,846 4.84% 
$200,000 or more 914 3.50% 5,711 3.85% 37,821 4.47% 
Total 26,149 100.00% 148,464 100.00% 906,292 100.00% 

Median Income $55,166 $62,180 $60,727 

Source: u.s. Cmsus Bureau, 201l-201S American Conununity Survey S-Year Estimates 

Franchise Tax Revenue 

FiSCAL 
YEAR 

FRANCHISE 
TAX REvENuES 
RECEIVED ($) % CHANGE 

2017 
2016 
2015 
2014 
2013 

Source: City of Orem and the Municipal Advisor 

6,549,235 
6,454,275 
6,238,725 
6,322,744 
6,110,388 

(1) Based on the Franchise Tax Revenues Received for FY 2012 of$5,649,644. 

1.47 
3.46 

(1.33) 
3.48 
8.16(1) 

Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt. The City of Orem has previously issued its Franchise 
Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2010 (the "Orem Bonds'), which are currently 
outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $525,000. The Orem Bonds are payable from 
and secured by Franchise Tax Revenues with a lien that is senior to its Franchise Tax Obligation. 
The final maturity date of the Orem Bonds is March 15, 2018. The City ofOrem has indicated it 
does not have any current plans to incur additional obligations payable from Franchise Tax 
Revenues within the next two years. 
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Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 

FRANcmSE FRANcmsE 
FISCAL TAX TAX 
YEAR REVENUES(l) CITYDEBr2) OBLIGATION TOTAL(3) COVERAGE(4) 

2018 $6,454,275 $546,000 $1,223,786 $1,769,786 3.65x 
2019 and 6,454,275 0 1,223,786 1,223,786 5.27x 
thereafter 

Source: City of Orem and the Municipal Advisor 
(1) Franchise Tax Revenues received fOT the fiscal yesr ended June 30, 2016. 
(2) Consists of outstanding debt service on the Orem Bonds. 
(3) Sum of City Debt and Franchise Tax Obligation. 
(4) Franchise Tax Revenues divided by Total. 

MURRAY CITY 

General. Murray City is located in the central portion of Salt Lake COlU1ty, 
approximately eight miles south of Salt Lake City. Murray City was incorporated in 1902. 

Population Data 

NAME OF ENTITY 

Murray City 
Salt Lake County 
The State 

Source: u.s. Census Bureau 

2000 

34,024 
898,387 

2,233,169 

2010 

46,746 
1,029,655 
2,772,373 
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2016 

49,230 
1,121,354 
2,996,754 

% CHANGE 
2010/2016 

5.31% 
8.91% 
8.09% 



Specified Owner-Occupied Units 

MURRAY SALT LAKE THE 
CITY COUNlY STATE 

VALUE NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $50,000 576 4.80% 10,469 4.49% 29,735 4.72% 
$50,000 to $99,999 386 3.22% 4,857 2.08% 25,241 4.01% 
$100,000 to $149,999 1,363 11.36% 26,775 11.49% 89,862 14.27% 
$150,000 to S199,999 2,123 17.69% 46,076 19.77% 135,621 21.54% 
$200,000 to $299,999 4,697 39.14% 71 ,934 30.86% 184,889 29.37% 
$300,000 to $499,999 2,208 18.40% 52,820 22.66% 119,703 19.01% 
$500,000 to S999,999 569 4.74% 17,551 7.53% 37,238 5.91% 
$1,000,000 or more ~ 0.67% 2,610 1.12'J1> 7,295 1.16% 

Total 12,002 100.00% 233,092 100.00% 629,584 100.00% 

Median Value $227,100 S234,7oo $215,900 

Source: u.s. Census Bureau, 2011-2015 American Community Smvcy 5-Year Estimates 

Median Household Income 

MURRAY SALT LAKE THE 
CITY COUNlY STATE 

NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $10,000 1,025 5.48% 17,004 4.83% 44,761 4.94% 
$10,000 to $14,999 860 4.60% 12,634 3.59% 34,538 3.81% 
$15,000 to $24,999 2,062 11.02% 29,969 8.52% 77,633 8.57% 
$25,000 to $34,999 1,602 8.56% 31,335 8.90% 83,117 9.17% 
$35,000 to $49,999 2,949 15.76% 46,859 13.32% 125,316 13.83% 
$50,000 to S74,999 3,376 18.04% 72,212 20.52% 191,257 21.10010 
$75,000 to 599,999 2,833 15.14% 52,131 14.81% 135,492 14.95% 
$100,000 to $149,999 2,502 13.37% 52,946 15.05% 132,511 14.62% 
$150,000 to $199,999 812 4.34% 18,733 5.32% 43,846 4.84% 
$200,000 or more ~ 3.71% 18,069 5.13% 37,821 4.17% 
Total 18,715 100.00% 351,892 100.00% 906,292 100.00% 

Median Income $54,685 $62,117 S6O,727 

Source: u.s. Census Bureau, 2011 -201 5 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 
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Franchise Tax Revenue 

FRANCHISE 
FISCAL TAX REVENUES 
YEAR RECEIVED ($) % CHANGE 

2017 3,518,071 (1.90) 
2016 3,586,379 1.92 
2015 3,518,888 (3 .47) 
2014 3,645,488 1.70 
2013 3,584,418 5.06(1) 

Source: Murray City and the Municipal Advisor 
(1) Based on the Franchise Tax Revenucs Received for FY 2012 of53,411,740. 

No Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt. Murray City does not currently have any 
outstanding obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues. Murray City has indicated it does 
not have any current plans to incur any obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues within 
the next two years. 

Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 

FISCAL 
YEAR 

2018 and 
thereafter 

Source: Murray City and the MunicipaJ Advisor 

FRANCHISE 
TAX REVENUES(I) 

$3,586,379 

( I) Franchise Tax Revenues received for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. 
(2) Franchise Tax Revenues divided by Franchise Tax Obligation. 
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FRANCHISE 
TAX 

OBLIGATION 

$690,241 

COVERAGE(2) 

5.20x 



MIDVALE CITY 

General. Midvale City was incorporated in 1909 and covers an area of approximately 
6.5 square miles within Salt Lake County. Midvale City is located approximately 10 miles south 
of Salt Lake City on Interstate 15 in the middle of the Salt Lake Valley. 

Population Data 

NAME OF ENTITY 

Midvale City 
Salt Lake County 
The State 

Source: u.s. Census Bureau 

2000 

27,029 
898,387 

2,233,169 

Specified Owner-Occupied Units 

MIDVALE 
CITY 

VALUE NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $50,000 196 3.76% 
$50,000 to $99,999 144 2.76% 
$100,000 to $149,999 674 12.92% 
$150,000 to $199,999 1,763 33.79% 
$200,000 to $299,999 2,037 39.05% 
$300,000 to $499,999 368 7.05% 
$500,000 to $999,999 35 0.67% 
$1 ,000,000 or more ~ 0.00'1:9 

Total 5,217 100.00% 

Median Value $194,700 

2010 

27,964 
1,029,655 
2,772,373 

2016 

33,035 
1,121,354 
2,996,754 

SALT LAKE 
COUNTY 

NUMBER PERCENT 

10,469 4.49% 
4,857 2.08% 

26,775 11.49% 
46,076 19.77% 
71,934 30.83% 
52,820 22.66% 
17,551 7.53% 
2,610 1.12% 

233,092 100.00% 

$234,700 

Source: u.s. Census Bureau, 2011-2015 American Conununity Survey 5-Year Estimates 
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% CHANGE 

2010/2016 

18.13% 
8.91% 
8.09% 

THE 
STATE 

NUMBER PERCENT 

29,735 4.72% 
25,241 4.01% 
89,862 14.27% 

135,621 21.54% 
184,889 29.37% 
1l9,703 19.01% 
37,238 5.91% 

7,295 1.16'1:9 
629,584 100.00% 

$215,900 



Median Household Income 

MIDVALE SALT LAKE THE 
CITY COUNTY STATE 

NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $10,000 622 5.29% 17,004 4.83% 44,761 4.94% 
$10,000 to $14,999 841 7.16% 12,634 3.59% 34,538 3.81% 
$15,000 to $24,999 1,229 10.46% 29,969 8.52% 77,633 8.57% 
$25,000 to $34,999 1,177 10.01% 31,335 8.90% 83,117 9.17% 
$35,000 to $49,999 1,880 16.00% 46,859 13.32% 125,316 13.83% 
$50,000 to $74,999 2,746 23.36% 72,212 20.52% 191,257 21.10% 
$75,000 to $99,999 1,575 13.40% 52,131 14.81% 135,492 14.95% 
$100,000 to $149,999 1,207 10.27% 52,946 15.05% 132,511 14.62% 
$150,000 to $199,999 280 2.38% 18,733 5.32% 43,846 4.84% 
$200,000 or more --.l.2.Q 1.67'll! 18,069 5 . 13~ 37,821 4.47~ 
Total 11,753 100.00% 351,892 100.00% 906,292 100.00% 

Median Income $50,614 $62,117 $60,727 

Source: u.s. Census Bureau, 2011-2015 American Community Survey S-Year Estimates 

Franchise Tax Revenue 

FISCAL 

YEAR 

FRANcmsE 
TAX REVENUES 

RECEIVED ($) % CHANGE 

2017 
2016 
2015 
2014 
2013 

Source: Midvale City and the Municipal Advisor 

2,205,527 
2,192,132 
2,086,631 
2,102,495 
1,776,227 

(1) Based on the Franchi8c Tax Revenues Received for FY 2012 ofSl,S64,620. 
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0.61 
5.06 

(0.75) 
18.37 
13.52(1) 



No Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt. Midvale City does not currently have any 
outstanding obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues. Midvale City has indicated it does 
not have any current plans to incur any obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues within 
the next two years. 

Franchise Tax Coverage Chari 

FRANCHISE 

TAX FISCAL 

YEAR 

FRANCHISE 
TAX REVEN'UEs{I) OBLIGATION COVERAGE(2) 

2018 and 
thereafter 

Source: Midvale City and the Municipal Advisor 

$2,192,132 

(1) Franchise Tax Revenues received for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. 
(2) Franchise 1'Ix Revenues divided by Franchise Tax Obligation. 

LAYTON CITY 

$339,988 6.45x 

General. Layton City was incorporated in 1920 and covers an area of approximately 
22 square miles. Layton City is located in Davis County, approximately 25 miles north of Salt 
Lake City and approximately 15 miles south of Ogden City. 

Population Data 

% CHANGE 
NAME OF ENTITY 2000 2010 2016 2010/2016 

Layton City 58,474 67,311 75,655 12.40% 
Davis County 238,994 306,479 342,281 11.68% 
The State 2,233,169 2,772,373 2,996,754 8.09% 

Soun:e: u.s. Ceoaus Bureau 
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Specified Owner-Occupied Units 

LAYTON DAVIS lEE 
CITY COUNTY STATE 

VALUE NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCEl\'T NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $50,000 999 6.10% 3,274 4.33% 29,735 4.72% 
$50,000 to $99,999 351 2.14% 1,353 1.79% 25,241 4.01% 
$100,000 to $149,999 2,272 13.86% 8,064 10.65% 89,862 14.27% 
$150,000 to $199,999 4,455 27.18% 16,913 22.35% 135,621 21.54% 
$200,000 to $299,999 4,803 29.31% 25,939 34.27% 184,889 29.37% 
$300,000 to $499,999 3,051 18.62% 16,295 21.53% 119,703 19.01% 
$500,000 to $999,999 340 2.07% 3,254 4.30% 37,238 5.91% 
$1,000,000 or more ~ 0.72% -.lli 7.08% 7,295 1.16'li! 

Total 16,389 100.00% 75,683 100.00% 629,584 100.00% 

Median Value $201,900 $225,800 $215,900 

Source: u.s. Census Bureau., 20l1-20IS American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 

Median Household Income 

LAYTON DAVIS lEE 
CITY COUNTY STATE 

NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $10,000 937 4.22% 3,587 3.66% 44,761 4.94% 
$10,000 to $14,999 766 3.45% 2,649 2.71% 34,538 3.81% 
$15,000 to $24,999 1,391 6.26% 5,825 5.59% 77,633 8.57% 
$25,000 to $34,999 1,654 7.45% 6,813 6.96% 83,117 9.17% 
$35,000 to $49,999 2,501 11.26% 11,837 12.09% 125,316 13.83% 
$50,000 to $74,999 4,913 22.12% 21,382 21.84% 191,257 21.10% 
$75,000 to $99,999 4,061 18.29% 17,107 17.47% 135,492 14.95% 
$100,000 to $149,999 3,865 17.40% 18,234 18.62% 132,511 14.62% 
$150,000 to $199,999 1,294 5.83% 6,033 6.16% 43,846 4.84% 
$200,000 or more ~ 3.72'li! 4,443 4.54% 37,821 4.17% 
Total 22,209 100.00% 97,910 100.00% 906,292 100.00% 

Median Income $69,408 $71,112 $60,727 

Source: u.s. Census Bureau, 2011-2D15 American Conununily Survey 5-Year Estimates 
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Franchise Tax Revenue 

FISCAL 
YEAR 

2017 
2016 
2015 
2014 
2013 

Source: Layton City and the Municipal Advi.sor 

FRANcmsE 
TAX REVENUES 
RECEIVED ($) 

3,904,354 
3,918,318 
3,775,194 
3,836,957 
3,659,998 

(1) Bued on the Fnnchisc Tax. Revenues Received for FY 2012 ofS3.33S,994. 

% CHANGE 

(0.36) 
3.79 

(1.61) 
4.83 
9.71 (I) 

No Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt. Layton City does not currently have any 
outstanding obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues. Layton City desires to expand the 
UIA Network within its boundaries and plans to enter into an indenture with the Agency within 
the first six months of2018 to pledge its Franchise Tax Revenues (on a parity with its Franchise 
Tax Obligation) to the payment of bonds to be issued by the Agency to finance such expansion 
(the "Anticipated City Debt"). See ''THE AGENCY - Future Financing" herein. 

Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 

FRANcmSE 
FISCAL FRANCmsE TAX 
YEAR TAX REVENUES(l) OBLIGATION 

2018 and $3,904,355 $937,272 
thereafter 

Source: Layton City and the Municipal Advisor 
(I) Franchise Tax Revenues received forthe fiscal yelr ended June 30. 2017. 
(2) Franchise Tax Revenues divided by Total. 

LINDON CITY 

ESTIMATED 
DEBT 

SERVICE ON 
ANTICIPATED 

CITY DEBT TOTAL COVERAGE(2) 

$1,453,000 $2,390,272 1.63x 

General. Lindon City was incorporated in 1924 and is located in northern Utah County, 
approximately 38 miles south of Salt Lake City. It is bordered by the cities of Orem, Pleasant 
Grove and American Fork, and has an area of approximately eight square miles. 
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Population Data 

NAME OF ENTITY 

Lindon City 
Salt Lake County 
The State 

Source: u.s. Census Bureau 

2000 

8,363 
898,387 

2,233,169 

Specified Owner-Occupied Units 

LINDON 
CITY 

VALUE NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $50,000 35 1.66% 
$50,000 to $99,999 17 0.81% 
$100,000 to $149,999 39 1.85% 
$150,000 to $199,999 137 6.49% 
$200,000 to $299,999 736 34.88% 
$300,000 to $499,999 780 36.97% 
$500,000 to $999,999 356 16.87% 
$1,000,000 or more --..2Q 0.47% 

Total 2,110 100.00% 

Median Value $318,200 

2010 

10,070 
1,029,655 
2,772,373 

2016 

10,939 
1,121,354 
2,996,754 

SALT LAKE 
COUNTY 

NUMBER PERCENT 

10,469 4.49% 
4,857 2.08% 

26,775 11.49% 
46,076 19.77% 
71,934 30.86% 
52,820 22.66% 
17,551 7.53% 
2,!;!IO 1.12% 

233,092 100.00% 

$234,700 

Source: u.s. Census Bureau. 201 )-2015 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 
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% CHANGE 
201012016 

8.63% 
8.91% 
8.09% 

THE 
STATE 

NUMBER PERCENT 

29,735 4.72% 
25,241 4.01% 
89,862 14.27% 

135,621 21.54% 
184,889 29.37% 
119,703 19.01 % 
37,238 5.91% 

7,295 1.19% 
629,584 100.00% 

$215,900 



Median Household Income 

LINDON SALT LAKE THE 
CITY COUNfY STATE 

NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $10,000 50 1.94% 17,004 4.83% 44,761 4.94% 
$10,000 to $14,999 84 3.27% 12,634 3.59% 34,538 3.81% 
$15,000 to $24,999 76 2.96% 29,969 8.52% 77,633 8.57% 
525,000 to $34,999 182 7.08% 31,335 8.90"10 83,117 9.17% 
$35,000 to $49,999 366 14.24% 46,859 13.32% 125,3 I 6 13.83% 
$50,000 to $74,999 303 11.79% 72,212 20.52% 191,257 21.10% 
$75,000 to $99,999 416 16.18% 52,131 14.81% 135,492 14.95% 
$100,000 to $149,999 757 29.44% 52,946 15.05% 132,511 14.62% 
SI50,OOO to $199,999 165 6.42% 18,733 5.32% 43,846 4.84% 
5200,000 or more 172 6.69% 18,069 5.13~ 37,821 4.17% 
Total 2,571 100.00% 351,892 100.00% 906,292 100.00% 

Median Income $86,495 $62,117 $60,727 

Source: u.s. Census Bureau, 20] 1-2015 American Conununity Survey 5-Year Estimates 

Franchise Tax Revenue 

FISCAL 
YEAR 

FRANCHlSE 

TAX REVENUES 

RECEIVED ($) % CHANGE 

2017 
2016 
2015 
2014 
2013 

Source: Lindon City and the Municipal Advisor 

1,301,408 
1,312,423 
1,259,381 
1,250,990 
1,209,024 

(I) Based on the Francruse Tax Revenues Received for FY 2012 of$1,t13,503. 

(0.84) 
4.21 
0.67 
3.47 
8.58(1) 

No Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt. Lindon City does not currently have any 
outstanding obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues. Lindon City has indicated that it 
does not have any current plans to incur any obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues 
within the next two years. 
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Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 

FRANCHISE 

TAX FISCAL 

YEAR 

FRANCHISE 
TAX REVENUES(l) OBLIGATION COVERAGE(2) 

2018 and 
thereafter 

Source: Lindon City and the Municipal Advisor 

$1,312,423 

(l) Franchise Tax Revenues received for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. 
(2) Franchise Tax Revenues divided by Franchise Tax Obligation. 

BRIGHAMOTY 

$172,516 7.61x 

General. Brigham City was incorporated in 1867 and is located in Box Elder County, 
approximately 60 miles north of Salt Lake City. Brigham City encompasses approximately 
23 square miles. 

Population Data 

NAME OF ENTITY 

Brigham City 
Salt Lake County 
The State 

Source: u.s. Census Bureau 

2000 

17,411 
42,745 

2,239,169 

2010 

17,899 
49,975 

2,772,373 
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2016 

18,975 
53,139 

2,996,754 

% CHANGE 

2010/2016 

6.01% 
6.33% 
8.09% 



Specified Owner-Occupied Units 

BRIGHAM SALT LAKE THE 
CITY COUNTY STATE 

VALUE NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $50,000 162 3.79% 550 4.33% 29,735 4.72% 
$50,000 to $99,999 244 5.71% 678 5.34% 25,241 4.01% 
5100,000 to 5149,999 1,616 37.80% 3,639 28.64% 89,862 14.27% 
$150,000 to $199,999 1,339 31.32% 3,442 27.09% 135,621 21.54% 
$200,000 to $299,999 712 16.65% 2,960 23.29% 184,889 29.37% 
$300,000 to $499,999 147 3.44% 1,186 9.33% 119,703 19.01% 
$500,000 to $999,999 32 0.75% 196 1.54% 37,238 5.91% 
$1,000,000 or more ---.ll 0.54% ~ 0.54'l1> 7,295 1.16% 

Total 4,275 100.00% 12,708 100.00% 629,584 100.00"10 

Median Value $153,400 $167,500 $215,900 

Sour<e: u.s. Ccmua Bureau, 2011-201S American Community Survoy S-Year Estimates 

Median Household Income 

BRIGHAM SALT LAKE THE 
CITY COUNTY STATE 

NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $10,000 285 4.67% 671 4.90% 44,761 4.94% 
$10,000 to $14,999 327 5.36% 622 3.79% 34,538 3.81% 
$15,000 to $24,999 557 9.14% 1,427 8.70% 77,633 8.57% 
$25,000 to $34,999 720 11.81 % 1,778 10.84% 83,117 9.17% 
$35,000 to $49,999 1,133 18.58% 2,747 16.75% 125,316 13.83% 
$50,000 to $74,999 1,463 24.00% 3,705 22.59% 191,257 21.10% 
$75,000 to $99,999 893 14.65% 2,491 15.19% 135,492 14.95% 
$100,000 to $149,999 494 8.10% 2,168 13.22% 132,511 14.62% 
$150,000 to $199,999 166 2.72% 547 3.33% 43,846 4.84% 
$200,000 or more -22 0.97% --.W. 1.51% 37,821 4.17% 
Total 6,097 100.00% 16,404 100.00% 906,292 100.00% 

Median Income $50,212 $55,038 $60,727 

Source: u.s. Census Bureau, 201l-201S American Conununity Survey 5-Year Estimates 
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Franchise Tax Revenue 

FRANCHISE 
FISCAL TAX REVENUES 
YEAR RECEIVED ($) % CHANGE 

2017 1,230,038 2.17 
2016 1,203,869 14.53 
2015 1,051,117 41.99 
2014(1) 740,253 32.41 
2013(1) 559,046 46.05(2) 

Source: Brigham City and the Municipal Advisor 
(1) Brigham City increased its Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax rate to 4% etFective Ianuary 1,2013, and to 6% effective October 1, 2014. 
(2) Based on the Franchise Tax Revenues Received for FY 2012 of S382,772. 

No Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt. Brigham City does not currently have any 
outstanding obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues. Brigham City has indicated that it 
does not have any current plans to incur any obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues 
within the next two years. 

Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 

FISCAL 
YEAR 

2018 and 
thereafter 

FRANCHISE 
TAX REVENUES(I) 

$1,203,869 

Source: Brigham City and the Municipal AdviSOf" 
(1) Franchise Tax Revenues received for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. 
(2) Franchise Tax Revenues divided by Franchise Tax Obligation. 
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FRANCHISE 
TAX 

OBLIGATION COVERAGE(2) 

$31,831 37.82x 



CENTERVll.LE CITY 

General. Centerville City was incorporated in 1915. It covers an area of approximately 
six square miles and is located in Davis County. Centerville City is approximately 12 miles 
north of Salt Lake City and 25 miles south of Ogden City. 

Population Data 

NAME OF ENTITY 

Centerville City 
Davis County 
The State 

Source: u.s. Census Bureau 

2000 

14,585 
238,994 

2,233,169 

Specified Owner-Occupied Units 

CENTERVILLE 

CITY 

VALUE NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $50,000 105 2.34% 
$50,000 to $99,999 284 6.32% 
$100,000 to $149,999 217 4.83% 
$150,000 to $199,999 767 17.07% 
$200,000 to $299,999 1,735 38.62% 
$300,000 to $499,999 1,236 27.51% 
$500,000 to $999,999 105 2.34% 
$1,000,000 or more ~ 0.98'1:9 

Total 4,493 100.00% 

Median Value $248,300 

2010 

15,335 
306,479 

2,772,373 

2016 

17,286 
342,281 

2,996,754 

D AVIS 

COUNTY 

NUMBER PERCENT 

3,274 4.33% 
1,353 1.79% 
8,064 10.65% 

16,913 22.35% 
25,939 34.27% 
16,295 21.53% 
3,254 4.30% 

--...lli 0.78% 
75,683 100.00% 

$225,800 

Source: u.s. Census Bureau, 201l-20tS American Community Survey 5-YearEstimatcs 
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% CHANGE 

201012016 

12.72% 
11.68% 
8.09% 

THE 
STATE 

NUMBER PERCENT 

29,735 4.72% 
25,241 4.01% 
89,862 14.27% 

135,621 21.54% 
184,889 29.37% 
119,703 19.01% 
37,238 5.91% 
1,295 1,16% 

629,584 100.00"10 

$215,900 



Median Household Income 

CENTERVILLE DAVIS THE 
CITY COUN1Y STATE 

NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $10,000 199 3.73% 3,587 3.66% 44,761 4.94% 
$10,000 to $14,999 135 2.53% 2,649 2.71% 34,538 3.81% 
$15,000 to $24,999 369 6.91% 5,825 5.95% 77,633 8.57% 
$25,000 to $34,999 245 4.59% 6,813 6.96% 83 ,117 9.17% 
$35,000 to $49,999 567 1Q.62% 11,837 12.09% 125,316 13.83% 
$50,000 to $74,999 1,004 18.81% 21,382 21.84% 191,257 2 1.1 0% 
$75,000 to $99,999 1,027 19.24% 17,107 17.47% 135,492 14.95% 
$100,000 to $149,999 1,065 19.96% 18,234 18.62% 132,511 14.62% 
$150,000 to $199,999 380 7.12% 6,033 6.16% 43,846 4.84% 
$200,000 or more 346 6.48% 4,443 4.54% 37,821 4.17'l1> 
Total 5,337 100.00% 97,910 100.00% 906,292 100.00% 

Median Income $78,438 $71,112 $60,727 

Source: u.s, Census Bureau, 2011-2015 American Community Survey S-Y car Estimates 

Franchise Tax Revenue 

FISCAL 

YEAR 

FRANCHISE 

TAX REVENUES 

RECEIVED ($) % CHANGE 

2017 
2016 
2015 
2014(1) 

2013 

Source: Centerville City and the Municipal Advisor 

864,741 
872,627 
858,683 
835,849 
699,287 

(1) CenterviUe City increased its MWlicipal Energy Sales and Usc Tax rate to 6% during fiscal year 2014. 
(2) Based on the Franchise Tax Revenues Received for FY 2012 of$6S2,783. 
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(0.90) 
1.62 
2.73 

19.53 
7.12(2) 



No Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt. Centerville City does not currently have any 
outstanding obligations secured by Franchlse Tax Revenues. Centerville City has indicated that 
it does not have any current plans to incur any obligations secured by Franchlse Tax Revenues 
within the next two years. 

Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 

FISCAL FRANCHISE 
YEAR TAXREVENUES(I) 

2018 and $872,627 
thereafter 

Source: Centerville City and the Municipal Advisor 
(1 ) Franchise Tax Revenues received for the fiscal year cnded June 30, 2016. 
(2) Franchise fix Revenues divided by Fnnchise Tax Obligation. 

FRANCHISE 
TAX 

OBLIGATION 

$186,737 

RIsKFACfORS 

COVERAGE(2) 

4.67x 

The purchase of the Series 2017 Bonds involves certain investment risks. Accordingly, 
each prospective purchaser of the Series 2017 Bonds should make an independent evaluation of 
the entirety of the infonnation presented in this Official Statement and its appendices in order to 
make an informed investment decision. Certain of the investment risks are described below. 
The following statements, however, should not be considered a complete description of all risks 
to be considered in the decision to purchase the Series 2017 Bonds, nor should the order of the 
presentation of such risks be construed to reflect the relative importance of the various risks. 
There can be no assurance that other risk factors are not material or will not become material in 
the future. 

REVENUE LIMITATIONS 

General. The Series 2017 Bonds are payable solely from and secured by a pledge and 
assignment of the Net Revenues and certain other funds pledged under the Indenture. A variety 
of factors could impact the amount and the sources of Net Revenues and such other funds 
pledged. Among other things, economic conditions, the demand for communication services 
within the boundaries of the Contracting Members, competition from other telecommunications 
providers, technological advances, demographlc changes, changes in governmental regulations 
and policies may adversely affect the financial condition of the Agency, and consequently, the 
availability of Net Revenues. Since inception, the Agency has been able to operate without 
requesting or requiring loans pursuant to the Franchise Tax Obligations or Member working 
capital assessments, to cover operation and maintenance expenses of the Agency and debt service 
on outstanding bonds. For fiscal years 2013-2015, the Agency assessed its Members amounts 
necessary to meet the operational expenses of UTOPIA. See "THE AGENCY - Outstanding Bonds 
and Notes of the Agency." The Agency believes that the VIA Network will continue to operate 
in a manner that will allow it to pay Operation and Maintenance Expenses and to pay debt 
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service on the Series 2017 Bonds from Net Revenues. Further, the Agency does not expect any 
further assessments will be required to pay operational expenses of the UTOPIA Network. 
However, no assurance can be given that the Net Revenues will be sufficient to pay debt service 
on the Series 2017 Bonds when due. 

Revenues from Fees. Certain Revenues (other than Franchise Tax Revenues) are 
generated from fees that Contracting Members, service providers or the Agency charge to 
Customers. Unlike other municipal enterprises, such as water and sewer systems or electric 
systems, residents within the Contracting Members are not required to participate in the UIA 
Network. Subscription to the UIA Network by end users is voluntary and may be canceled upon 
request. Therefore, price is more elastic than fees for other municipal enterprise systems and 
cannot be set at levels that would discourage participation by existing and potential Customers. 
Additionally, although Contracting Members have the ability to establish such fees without 
obtaining approval of any regulatory or other governmental agency, under State law, such fees 
must be deemed reasonable for the service provided. The ultimate determination of 
reasonableness lies with the Utah courts in the event any such fees are challenged. 

Franchise Tax Revenues. The Franchise Tax Revenues for each Contracting Member are 
generated from receipts of Municipal Energy Sales and Use Taxes. The national and state 
economy, weather conditions and many other factors can affect the level of receipts of such 
Revenues. Additionally, the Agency and the Contracting Members cannot predict whether the 
State Legislature will modify franchise tax rates or distributions or take other actions that affect 
the ability of a Contracting Member to generate Municipal Energy Sales and Use Taxes. No 
assurance can be given that the Municipal Energy Sales and Use Taxes will remain sufficient to 
meet the Franchise Tax Obligation of each Contracting Member. 

Under certain circumstances, the Franchise Tax Obligation of a Contracting Member is 
permitted to be payable on a subordinate basis to a pledge of Franchise Tax Revenues for the 
payment of its City Debt. If a Contracting Member has City Debt outstanding and payable on a 
senior basis with respect to the Franchise Tax Revenues, all such Franchise Tax Revenues will be 
first applied to pay debt service on such City Debt prior to meeting its Franchise Tax Obligation. 
See "CONTRACTING MEMBERS" herein. 

The annual Franchise Tax Obligation of each Contracting Member is limited as set forth 
in the Service Contract. See ''NET REVENUES OF THE AGENCY-Franchise Tax Obligation" herein. 
Further, each Franchise Tax Obligation is not a joint and several obligation of the Contracting 
Members, and no Contracting Member is obligated to satisfy the Franchise Tax Obligation of any 
other Contracting Member. 

CONSTRUCTION, EXPANSION AND OPERATION OF TIlE VIA NETWORK 

Construction of the UIA Network commenced in June 2011, and as of June 30, 2017, 
there were 7,885 active business and residential Customers. Timely construction and expansion 
of the VIA Network is ongoing and is critical to gaining new users and generating additional 
Revenue. Expansion of the VIA Network involves many risks common to construction projects 
such as shortages or delays in the availability of materials and qualified labor, work stoppages, 
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contractual disputes with contractors or suppliers or others, weather interferences, construction 
accidents, delays in obtaining legal approvals, unforeseen engineering, archeological or 
environmental problems and unanticipated cost increases, any of which could give rise to 
significant delays or cost overruns. No assurance can be given that the construction and 
expansion of the UIA Network will be completed in a timely manner or that the cost will not 
exceed available funds of the Agency. Further, future bond issues of the Agency to finance 
capital expansion of the UIA Network are dependent upon sufficient Net Revenues to support the 
payment of debt service on such bonds and other factors and may not be a viable option for the 
Agency. 

The Agency and UTOPIA, as the Agency's contracted operator, are tasked with 
managing, operating and maintaining the UIA Network in an efficient and economical manner 
consistent with prudent telecommunications utility practice. As the UIA Network expands, its 
Operation and Maintenance Expenses may increase, and no assurance can be given that such 
expenses will not exceed available funds of the Agency. The Agency is exempt from regulation 
by the Utah Public Service Commission ("PSC"), but the operation of the UIA Network is 
subject to various other governmental rules and regulations. If the UIA Network is not operating 
or operable as required by State law, the Agency may be subject to certain penalties or other 
remedies. In addition, service providers who utilize the UIA Network may be subject to 
regulation by the PSC, and any noncompliance by such service providers could negatively affect 
the operation of the UIANetwork. 

The success of the UIA Network will depend in part on its continued ability to attract 
qualified service providers who can meet the changing needs of the citizens of the Members. 
The Agency will continue to focus its expansion and marketing efforts to potential users with the 
highest likelihood of using the VIA Network. Although the Agency believes the continued 
construction, expansion and operation of the UIA Network is feasible, such conclusion is based 
upon certain assumptions and the realization of certain events, including its continued ability to 
attract Customers, which mayor may not occur. 

COMPETITION 

There is significant competition in the Utah telecommunications market. While the 
Agency believes that the UIA Network currently offers competitive pricing and certain distinct 
technological advantages, competing telecommunications providers utilize greater name 
recognition, fmancial resources and marketing services to compete for users. Additionally, 
certain competitors offer some services at lower prices than service providers utilizing the UIA 
Network. There can be no assurance that the Agency or its service providers will have the 
financial resources or management expertise to continue to compete effectively for customers in 
the future. 

Advances in internet, data, television, telephone and related technology may occur at a 
very rapid pace. There can be no assurance that future advances in technology implemented by 
existing competitors or others will not render the services provided by the service providers of 
the combined UTOPIAIUIA Networks noncompetitive. Additionally, future advances in 
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technology could render the UIA Network or the UTOPIA Network (or portions thereof) 
obsolete. 

DESTRUCTION OF THE NETWORK 

The Indenture requires that the Agency, in its operation of the U1A Network, maintain 
insurance in such amounts and to such extent as is normally carried by other operating public 
utilities of the same size and type. In the event of any loss or damage, the Indenture requires that 
the proceeds of any such insurance be used first to restore or replace the property lost or 
damaged. Any remaining insurance proceeds are to be paid into the Bond Fund. There can be 
no assurance that the proceeds of any such insurance will be sufficient to restore or replace the 
lost or damaged property of the Agency. 

Pursuant to the issuance of the UTOPIA Bonds (hereinafter defined), UTOPIA is required 
to maintain similar insurance, and in the event of any loss or damage, such insurance proceeds 
would be used first to restore or replace the property lost or damaged. There can be no assurance 
that the proceeds of any such insurance will be sufficient to restore or replace the lost or 
damaged property of UTOPIA. 

The infrastructure of the UIA Network and the UTOPIA Network is regionally diverse 
and widely distributed. However, any damage to or destruction of any portions of the UIA 
Network or the UTOPIA Network may prevent the Agency from providing telecommunications 
services to some or all of its service providers. In such event, the Revenues of the Agency may 
decrease. 

RELIANCE ON UTOPIA 

The Agency entered into the UTOPIA Service Agreement and the IRU Agreement to 
advance the Agency's objective of providing high-speed telecommunications facilities to its 
Members and to capitalize on the economies of scale that can be achieved by connecting the 
UIA Network to the UTOPIA Network. Although the UIA Network could connect to many other 
networks other than the UTOPIA Network, no other fiber optic networks have the physical 
proximity to the homes that the Agency intends to connect to the UIA Network, and the costs of 
connecting to different networks would be prohibitive. 

UTOPIA undertook the acquisition and construction of the UTOPiA Network in 2004 
and financed and refinanced such acquisition and construction with the issuance of bonds that are 
secured both by revenues of the UTOPIA Network and by a sales tax pledge of certain of 
UTOPIA's members. Although the UTOPIA Network is operational and generating revenues, 
the revenues have previously been insufficient to pay operational expenses and meet debt service 
requirements of the UTOPIA Bonds. However, there has been no payment default of debt 
service on the UTOPIA Bonds. 

As of June 30, 2016, UTOPIA has outstanding revenue bonds in the aggregate amount of 
$184,803,065, comprised of $109,674,827 Tax-Exempt Adjustable Rate Telecommunications 
and Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011A (the "UTOPIA Series 20llA Bonds"), 
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and $74,726,351 Taxable Adjustable Rate Telecommunications and Sales Tax Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2011B (the "UTOPIA Series 201lB Bonds, and together with the 
UTOPIA Series 2011A Bonds, the "UTOPIA Bonds"). The original principal amount of the 
UTOPIA Series 2011A Bonds was $110,000,000, and the original principal amount of the 
UTOPIA Series 2011B Bonds was $75,000,000. The final maturity date of the UTOPIA Bonds 
is June 1, 2040. KeyBank National Association is the owner of the UTOPIA Series 2011A 
Bonds, and Bank of America National Association is the owner of the UTOPIA Series 2011B 
Bonds. UTOPIA has two derivative contracts that hedge against variable interest rate volatility 
by matching the required pledged revenues of its member cities to the cash flow required for the 
debt service on the UTOPIA Bonds and the associated derivative contracts. The derivative 
contracts effectively fix the interest rate for the UTOPIA Series 2011A Bonds at 4.984% and for 
the UTOPIA Series 2011B Bonds at 5.665%. KeyBank National Association is the counterparty 
on the derivative contract related to the UTOPIA Series 2011A Bonds; Bank of America 
National Association is the counterparty on the derivative contract related to the UTOPIA Series 
20 lIB Bonds. UTOPIA also has notes payable to its members cities in the approximate amount 
of $83,853,023, reflecting member city contributions to pay the UTOPIA Bonds. The notes are 
payable on a subordinate basis to the UTOPIA Bonds. 

The Agency is not responsible for paying debt service on the UTOPIA Bonds or its other 
outstanding obligations. If UTOPIA is unable to meet its financial obligations as they become 
due, its continued ability to operate the UTOPIA Network could be impacted. Any disruption or 
inability of UTOPIA to operate the UTOPIA Network would likely have a material adverse 
impact on the ability of the Agency to meet its customer and financial obligations. 

Without sufficient moneys to operate, the UTOPIA Network could terminate, which 
would likely cause a shut-down of the UIA Network. In the event of a shut-down of the UIA 
Network following the termination of the UTOPIA Network or otherwise, amounts payable by 
Contracting Members under the Service Contract are required to continue to be paid; however, 
there can be no assurance that such amounts will be sufficient to pay debt service on the 
Series 2017 Bonds after other required expenses have been paid. 

CYBERSECURITY 

The risk of cyberattacks against commercial enterprises, including those operated for a 
governmental purpose, has become more prevalent in recent years. At least one of the rating 
agencies factors the risk of such an attack into its ratings analysis, recognizing that a cyberattack 
could affect liquidity, public policy and constituent confidence, and ultimately credit qUality. A 
cyberattack could cause the UIA Network or the UTOPIA Network to cease or limit operational 
capacity, for short or extended lengths of time. Additionally, other potential negative 
consequences include data loss or compromise, diversion of resources to prevent future 
incidences and reputational damage resulting in loss of future revenues. To date, the Agency has 
not experienced a successful cyberattack. The Agency believes it has made all reasonable efforts 
to ensure that any such attack is not successful and that the UIA Network and the UTOPIA 
Network Will not see any loss of service to Customers or other consequences. However, there 
can be no assurance that a cyberattack will not occur in a manner resulting in damage to the UIA 
Network or the UTOPIA Network or other challenges. 
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FurURE CHANGES IN LAWS 

VariOllS state and federal laws, regulations and constitutional provisions apply to the 
Agency, UTOPIA, each respective network, the Members and the Series 2017 Bonds. Future 
actions of State or federal legislatures may affect the overall fmancial conditions of the Agency 
or its ability to continue to collect revenues for its ongoing operations. The Agency can give no 
assurance that there will not he a change in, interpretation of or addition to such applicable laws, 
provisions and regulations that would have a material effect on the finances of the Agency, its 
corporate existence or its ability to offer advanced telecommunications services, collect revenues 
or attract service providers and customers. 

LIMITED REMEDIES 

The remedies of the Series 2017 Bondholders upon an Event of Default under the 
Indenture are limited. See "APPENDIX B-Extracts of Certain Provisions of the Indenture­
Remedies." Under the Indenture, there is no contractual remedy of acceleration. Further, the 
legal right and ability of a Series 2017 Bondholder to enforce its rights and remedies under the 
Indenture may be limited by laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium 
or other similar laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights. In addition, a Series 2017 
Bondholder's ability to enforce such rights and remedies may require judicial actions that are 
often subject to discretion and delay or that otherwise may not be readily available or may be 
limited. 

WITHDRAWAL OR CHANGE OF BOND RATING 

The Series 2017 Bonds have received a credit rating from Fitch Ratings, Inc., New York, 
New York ("Fitch "). The rating can be changed or withdrawn at any time for reasons both 
under and outside the Agency's control. Any change or withdrawal of any rating on the 
Series 2017 Bonds could adversely affect the ability of investors to sell the Series.2017 Bonds or 
may affect the price at which they can be sold. 

SECONDARY MARKET FOR THE BONDS 

No assurance can be given that a secondary market will develop for the purchase and sale 
of the Series 2017 Bonds or, if a secondary market exists, that such Series 2017 Bonds can be 
sold for any particular price. The Underwriter is not obligated to engage in secondary market 
trading or to repurchase any of the Series 2017 Bonds at the request of the owners thereof. 

Prices of the Series 2017 Bonds as traded in the secondary market are subject to 
adjustment upward and downward in response to changes in the credit markets and other 
circumstances. No guarantee exists as to the future market value of the Series 2017 Bonds. 
Such market value could he substantially different from the original purchase price. 
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

A failure by the Agency to comply with its Continuing Disclosure Undertaking with 
respect to the Series 2017 Bonds (see "CONTINUING DISCLOSURE" herein) will not constitute an 
event of default on the Series 2017 Bonds. Any failure of the Agency's obligations under the 
Undertaking must be reported in accordance with Rule 15c2-12 (the "Rule") adopted by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission ") under the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), and may adversely affect the transferability and 
liquidity of the Series 2017 Bonds and their market price. 

SmT ABILITY OF INvESTMENT 

The interest rate borne by the Series 2017 Bonds is intended to compensate the investor 
for assuming the risk of investing in the Series 2017 Bonds. Furthermore, the tax-exempt feature 
of the Series 2017 A Bonds is currently more valuable to high tax bracket investors than to 
investors that are in low tax brackets. As such, the value of the interest compensation to any 
particular investor will vary with individual tax rates and circumstances. Each prospective 
investor should carefully examine this Official Statement and its own financial condition to make 
a judgment as to its ability to bear the economic risk of such an investment and whether or not 
the Series 2017 Bonds are an appropriate investment for such investor. 

FACTORS RELATING TO TAX EXEMPTION 

As discussed under "TAX MATTERS" herein, interest on the Series 20l7A Bonds could 
become includible in gross income for pUIposes of federal income taxation, retroactive to the 
date the Series 2017A Bonds were issued, as a result of future acts or omissions of the Agency in 
violation of its covenants in the Indenture. Should such an event of taxability occur, the 
Series 2017 A Bonds are not subject to any special redemption. 

There are or may be pending in the Congress of the United States legislative proposals 
relating to the federal tax treatment of interest on the Series 2017 Bonds, including some that 
carry retroactive effective dates, that, if enacted, could affect the market value of the Series 2017 
Bonds. For example, legislation is pending in the current session of Congress which would, 
among other things and if enacted, change the income tax rates for individuals and corporations 
and repeal the federal alternative minimum tax. It cannot be predicted whether or in what form 
any such proposal might be enacted or whether, if enacted, it would apply to Series 2017 A 
Bonds issued prior to enactment. Finally, reduction or elimination of the tax-exempt status of 
obligations such as the Series 2017A Bonds could have an adverse effect on the Agency's ability 
to access the capital markets to finance future capital or operational needs by reducing market 
demand for such obligations or materially increasing borrowing costs of the Agency. 

The tax-exempt bond office of the Internal Revenue Service (the "Service ' ) is 
conducting audits of tax-exempt bonds, both compliance checks and full audits, with increasing 
frequency to determine whether, in the view of the Service, interest on such tax-exempt 
obligations is includible in the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax 
purposes. It cannot be predicted whether the Service will commence any such audit. If an audit 
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is commenced, under current procedures the Service may treat the Agency as a taxpayer and the 
Series 2017 Bondholders may have no right to participate in such proceeding. The 
commencement of an audit with respect to any tax-exempt obligations of the Agency could 
adversely affect the market value and liquidity of the Series 2017 A Bonds, regardless of the 
ultimate outcome. 

BOND RATING 

Fitch has assigned the Series 2017 Bonds a credit rating of "BBB-" (Stable Outlook). 
This rating reflects only the views of such organization and any explanation of the significance 
of such rating may only be obtained from the rating agency. Certain information concerning the 
Series 2017 Bonds and the Agency not included in this Official Statement may have been 
furnished to Fitch by the Agency. There is no assurance that the rating will be maintained for 
any given period of time or that it may not be changed by Fitch if, in such rating agency's 
judgment, circumstances so warrant. Any downward change in or withdrawal of the rating may 
have an adverse effect on the market price of the Series 2017 Bonds. 

Except as may be required by the Undertaking described below under the heading 
"CONTINUING DISCWSURE," neither the Agency nor the Underwriter undertakes responsibility to 
bring to the attention of the owners of the Series 2017 Bonds any proposed change in or 
withdrawal of any rating or to oppose any such change or withdrawal. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

The Agency will enter into a Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the "Undertaking") for 
the benefit of the beneficial owners of the Bonds to send certain infonnation annually and to 
provide notice of certain events to the MSRB pursuant to the requirements of the Rule. No 
person, other than the Agency, has undertaken, or is otherwise expected, to provide continuing 
disclosure with respect to the Series 2017 Bonds. At present, such dissemination is made 
through the MSRB's Electronic Municipal Market Access system, referred to as EMMA 
("EMMA "). The Agency is required to deliver such infonnation within 210 days after the last 
day of the Agency's fiscal year (currently June 30), beginning with the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2018. The information to be provided on an annual basis, the events which will be noticed 
on an occurrence basis and a statement of other tenns of the Undertaking, including termination, 
amendment and remedies, are set forth in "APPENDIX D - Fonn of Continuing Disclosure 
Undertaking. " 

Although the Agency timely filed its audited financial statements in connection with 
previously executed undertakings, it failed to timely include annual financial information relating 
to the Franchise Tax Revenues for its fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The Agency filed such 
infonnation on May 9, 2013, and a notice of reportable event was filed on November 13,2017. 
The Agency failed to timely file a notice of reportable event related to an S&P underlying rating 
upgrade that occurred on May 31, 2013. Such notice was filed on November 13, 2017. During 
the past five years, there have been numerous rating actions reported by Moody's Investors and 
Standard & Poor's Rating Corporation affecting the municipal bond insurance companies, 
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including Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp. ("AGM"), which had insured obligations 
previously issued by the Agency. Notice regarding rating actions involving AGM was filed on 
EMMA on November 13, 2017. The Agency has retained the Trustee to act as the Agency's 
Dissemination Agent to assist the Agency with future compliance with its continuing disclosure 
filing obligations. 

TAX MATTERS 

The following is a summary of the material federal and State income tax consequences of 
holding and disposing of the Series 2017 Bonds. This summary is based upon laws, regulations, 
rulings and judicial decisions now in effect, all of which are subject to change (possibly on a 
retroactive basis). This summary does not discuss all aspects offederal income taxation that may 
be relevant to investors in light of their personal investment circumstances or describe the tax 
consequences to certain types of owners subject to special treatment under the federal income tax 
laws (for example, dealers in securities or other persons who do not hold the Series 2017 Bonds 
as a capital asset, tax-exempt organizations, individual retirement accounts and other tax deferred 
accounts, and foreign taxpayers), and, except for the income tax laws of the State of Utah, does 
not discuss the consequences to an owner under any state, local or foreign tax laws. The 
summary does not deal with the tax treatment of persons who purchase the Series 2017 Bonds in 
the secondary market. Prospective investors are advised to consult their own tax advisors 
regarding federal, state, local and other tax considerations of holding and disposing of the 
Series 2017 Bonds. 

To ensure compliance with Treasury Department Circular 230, owners of the 
Series 2017B Bonds are hereby notified that: (a) any discussion of federal tax issues in this 
official statement relating to the Series 2017B Bonds is not intended or written to be relied upon, 
and cannot be relied upon, by owners of the Series 2017B Bonds for the purpose of avoiding 
penalties that may be imposed on those owners under the Code; (b) the discussion offederal tax 
issues in this official statement relating to the Series 2017B Bonds was written in connection 
with the promotion or marketing of those Series 2017B Bonds; and (c) owners of the 
Series 2017B Bonds should seek advice from an independent tax advisor based on their 
particular circumstances. 

OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

In the opinion of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Bond Counsel to the Agency, under the law 
currently existing as of the issue date ofthe Series 2017 Bonds: 

THE SERIES 2017 A BONDS 

Federal Tax Exemption. The interest on the Series 2017A Bonds (including any original 
issue discount properly allocable to an owner thereof) is excludable from gross income for 
federal income tax purposes. 
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Alternative Minimum Tax. The interest on the Series 2017 A Bonds is not an item of tax 
preference for purposes of computing the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on 
individuals and corporations, but is taken into account in determining adjusted current earnings 
for the purpose of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on certain corporations. 

Slate Tax Exemption. The interest on the Series 2017 A Bonds (including any original 
issue discount properly allocable to an owner thereof) is exempt from State individual income 
taxes. 

Bond Counsel's opmIOns are provided as of the date of the original issue of the 
Series 2017 Bonds, subject to the condition that the Agency comply with all requirements of the 
Code that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Series 2017 A Bonds in order that 
interest thereon be, or continue to be, excludable from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes. The Agency has covenanted to comply with all such requirements. Failure to comply 
with certain of such requirements may cause the inclusion of interest on the Series 2017 A Bonds 
in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the 
Series 2017 A Bonds. 

THE SERIES 20 17B BONDS 

No Federal Tax Exemption. The interest on the Series 2017B Bonds is included in gross 
income for federal income tax purposes, in accordance with an owner's normal method of 
accounting. 

State Tax Exemption. The interest on the Series 2017B Bonds (including any original 
issue discount properly allocable to an owner thereof) is exempt from State individual income 
taxes. 

No OTHER OPINION 

Bond Counsel is expressing no oplmon regarding other federal, state or local tax 
consequences arising with respect to the Series 2017 Bonds, except as expressly provided herein. 
Purchasers of the Series 2017 Bonds should consult their tax advisors as to the applicability of 
these tax consequences and other income tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and 
disposition of the Series 2017 Bonds, including the possible application of state, local, foreign 
and other tax laws. 

OTHER TAX CONSEQUENCES 

Original Issue Discount. For federal income tax purposes, original issue discount is the 
excess of the stated redemption price at maturity of a Series 2017 Bond over its issue price. The 
issue price of a Series 2017A Bond is generally the first price at which a substantial amount of 
the Series 2017A Bonds ofthat maturity have been sold to the public. Under Section 1288 of the 
Code, original issue discount on tax-exempt bonds accrues on a compound basis. The issue price 
of a Series 2017B Bond is the first price at which a substantial amount of the Series 2017B 
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Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public. If the original issue discount on a 
Series 2017B Bond is more than a de minimis amount (generally Y. of 1 % of the stated 
redemption price at maturity of the Series 2017B Bond multiplied by the number of complete 
years to its maturity date), then that Series 2017B Bond will be treated as issued with original 
issue discount. 

The amount of original issue discount that accrues to an owner of a Series 2017 Bond 
during any accrual period generally equals (1) the issue price of that Series 2017 Bond, plus the 
amount of original issue discount accrued in all prior accrual periods, multiplied by (2) the yield 
to maturity on that Series 2017 Bond (determined on the basis of compounding at the close of 
each accrual period and properly adjusted for the length of the accrual period), minus (3) any 
interest payable on that Series 2017 Bond during that accrual period. 

With respect to a Series 2017 A Bond, the amount of original issue discount accrued in a 
particular accrual period will be considered to be received ratably on each day of the accrual 
period, will be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and will increase 
the owner's tax basis in that Series 2017A Bond. With respect to a Series 2017B Bond, the 
amount of original issue discount accrued in a particular accrual period will be considered to be 
received ratably on each day of the accrual period, will be included in gross income for federal 
income tax purposes, and will increase the owner's tax basis in that Series 2017B Bond. 
Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisors concerning the calculation and 
accrual of original issue discount. 

Original Issue Premium. For federal income tax purposes, premium is the excess of the 
issue price of a Series 2017 Bond over its stated redemption price at maturity. 

The issue price of a Series 2017 A Bond is generally the first price at which a substantial 
amount of the Series 2017A Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public. Under 
Section 171 of the Code, premium on tax-exempt bonds amortizes over the term of the 
Series 2017A Bond using constant yield principles, based on the purchaser's yield to maturity. 
As premium is amortized, the owner's basis in the Series 2017 A Bond and the amount of 
tax-exempt interest received will be reduced by the amount of amortizable premium properly 
allocable to the owner, which will result in an increase in the gain (or decrease in the loss) to be 
recognized for federal income tax purposes on sale or disposition of the Series 2017A Bond prior 
to its maturity. Even though the owner's basis is reduced, no federal income tax deduction is 
allowed. Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisors concerning the calculation 
and accrual of bond premium. 

Sale, Exchange or Retirement of Bonds. Upon the sale, exchange or retirement 
(including redemption) of a Series 2017 Bond, an owner of the Series 2017 Bond generally will 
recognize gain or loss in an amount equal to the difference between the amount of cash and the 
fair market value of any property received on the sale, exchange or retirement of the Series 2017 
Bond (other than in respect of accrued and unpaid interest) and such owner's adjusted tax basis 
in the Series 2017 Bond. To the extent a Series 2017 Bond is held as a capital asset, such gain or 
loss will be capital gain or loss and will be long-term capital gain or loss if the Series 2017 Bond 
has been held for more than 12 months at the time of sale, exchange or retirement. 
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Reporting Requirements. In general, infonnation reporting requirements will apply to 
certain payments of principal, interest and premium paid on the Series 2017 Bonds, and to the 
proceeds paid on the sale of the Series 2017 Bonds, other than certain exempt recipients (such as 
corporations and foreign entities). A backup withholding tax will apply to such payments if the 
owner fails to provide a taxpayer identification number or certification of foreign or other 
exempt status or fails to report in full dividend and interest income. The amount of any backup 
withholding from a payment to an owncr will be allowed as a credit against the owner's federal 
income tax liability. 

Collateral Federal Income Tax Consequences. Prospective purchasers ofthe Series 2017 
Bonds should be aware that ownership of the Series 2017 Bonds may result in collateral federal 
income tax consequences to certain taxpayers, including, without limitation, financial 
institutions, property and casualty insurance companies, individual recipients of Social Security 
or Railroad Retirement benefits, certain S corporations with "excess net passive income," foreign 
corporations subject to the branch profits tax, life insurance companies, and taxpayers who may 
be deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or carry or have paid or 
incurred certain expenses allocable to the Series 2017 Bonds. Bond Counsel expresses no 
opinion regarding these tax consequences. Purchasers of Series 2017 Bonds should consult their 
tax advisors as to the applicability of these tax consequences and other federal income tax 
consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposition of the Series 2017 Bonds, including the 
possible application of state, local, foreign and other tax laws. 

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The audited financial statements of the Agency for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 
(the "Audit''), contained in Appendix A, including the independent auditor's report 
accompanying the Audit, have been prepared by Keddington & Christensen, LLC, Salt Lake 
City, Utah (the "Auditor ''). The Agency has not requested the Auditor to update information 
contained in the Audit. The Agency has received consent to the use of the Audit by the Auditor 
in this Official Statement. Other than as expressly set forth in this Official Statement, the 
fmancial information contained in the Audit has not been updated since the date of the Audit. 
The inclusion of the Audit in this Official Statement in and of itself is not intended to 
demonstrate the fiscal condition of the Agency since the date of the Audit. Specific questions or 
inquiries relating to the financial information of the Agency since the date of the Audit should be 
directed to the SecretarylTreasurer of the Agency. 

BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM 

DTC will act as securities depository for the Series 2017 Bonds. The Series 2017 Bonds 
will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's 
partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of 
DTC. One fully-registered Series 2017 Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of each 
series of the Series 2017 Bonds, in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity and will be 
deposited with DTC. 
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DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-pwpose trust company 
organized under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of 
the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" 
within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" 
registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 A of the Exchange Act. DTC holds and 
provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate 
and municipal debt issues and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC's 
participants ("Direct Participants ') deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade 
settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited 
securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct 
Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. 
Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust 
companies, clearing corporations and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC" ). DTCC is the holding 
company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing 
Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its 
regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. 
and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations 
that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or 
indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). DTC has an S&P Global Ratings rating of "AA+". The 
DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Commission. More information 
about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com. 

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct 
Participants, which will receive a credit for the Series 2017 Bonds on DTC's records. The 
ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Series 2017 Bond ( "Beneficial Owner ") is in 
turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not 
receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, 
expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic 
statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial 
Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Series 2017 Bonds 
are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on 
behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their 
ownership interests in Series 2017 Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system 
for the Series 2017 Bonds is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Series 2017 Bonds deposited by Direct Participants 
with DTC are registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other 
name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Series 2017 
Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee 
do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual 
Beneficial Owners of the Series 2017 Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the 
Direct Participants to whose accounts such Series 2017 Bonds are credited, which mayor may 
not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for 
keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 
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Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by 
Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to 
Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or 
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Bonds may 
wish to take certain steps to augment transmission to them of notices of significant events with 
respect to the Series 2017 Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults and proposed 
amendments to the Series 2017 Bond documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of 
Series 2017 Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Series 2017 Bonds for 
their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, 
Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the Registrar and request 
that copies of notices be provided directly to them. 

Redemption notices will be sent to DTC. Ifless than all of the Series 2017 Bonds within 
an issue are being redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of 
each Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with 
respect to the Series 2017 Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with 
DTC's MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the 
Agency as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.' s 
consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Series 2017 Bonds 
are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

Redemption proceeds, distributions and dividend payments on the Series 2017 Bonds will 
be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized 
representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants ' accounts upon DTC's 
receipt of funds and corresponding detailed information from the Agency or Registrar, on 
payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments 
by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary 
practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or 
registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not ofDTC, the 
Registrar, or the Agency, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect 
from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions and dividend payments to 
Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of 
DTC) is the responsibility of the Agency or the Registrar, disbursement of such payments to 
Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the 
Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Series 2017 
Bonds at any time by giving reasonable notice to the Agency or the Registrar. Under such 
circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not obtained, Series 2017 Bond 
certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 

The Agency may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through 
DTC (or a successor securities depository). In that event, Series 2017 Bond certificates will be 
printed and delivered to DTC. 
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The infonnation in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been 
obtained from DTC, and the Agency takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 

The Agency will have no responsibility or obligation to any Securities Depository, any 
Participants in the Book-Entry System or the Beneficial Owners with respect to (a) the accuracy 
of any records maintained hy the Securities Depository or any Participant; (b) the payment by the 
Securities Depository or by any Participant of any amount due to any Beneficial Owner in 
respect of the principal amount or redemption price of, or interest on, any Series 2017 Bonds; 
(c) the delivery of any notice by the Securities Depository or any Participant; (d) the selection of 
the Beneficial Owners to receive payment in the event of any partial redemption of the 
Series 2017 Bonds; or ( e) any other action taken by the Securities Depository or any Participant. 

CERTAIN LEGAL MATIERS 

ABSENCE OF LITIGATION 

Kirton McConkie PC, Salt Lake City, Utah, General CounsellIssuer's Counsel to the 
Agency, will issue an opinion dated the date of closing that will state, among other things, that 
there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or any other litigation or investigation at law or in 
equity, before or by any court, public board or body, which is pending or threatened, 
(a) challenging the creation, organization or existence of the Agency; (h) challenging the titles of 
its directors or officers to their respective offices; (c) contesting the validity of the Interlocal 
Agreement, Service Contract or Service Provider Agreements; (d) seeking to restrain or enjoin 
the issuance, sale or delivery of the Series 2017 Bonds; ( e) directly or indirectly contesting or 
affecting the proceedings or the authority by which the Series 2017 Bonds are issued; 
(f) contesting the validity of the Series 2017 Bonds or the issuance thereof, or (g) which if 
determined adversely to the Agency would have a materially adverse effect on the financial 
condition of the Agency or its ability to meet the debt service requirements on the Series 2017 
Bonds. 

GENERAL 

Certain legal matters incident to the authorization, issuance and sale of the Series 2017 
Bonds are subject to the approving legal opinion of Bond Counsel. Bond Counsel has reviewed 
this Official Statement and is of the view that statements or summaries of the matters set forth 
therein insofar as such statements purport to summarize the terms of the Series 2017 Bonds, the 
Bond Resolution, the Indenture and the tax status of the Series 2017 Bonds are accurate in all 
material respects. 

Chapman and Cutler LLP, Salt Lake City, Utah ("Chapman and Cutler"), has been 
retained by the Underwriter to serve as Underwriter' s Counsel with respect to the Series 2017 
Bonds. Although as Underwriter's Counsel, Chapman and Cutler has assisted the Underwriter 
with certain disclosure matters, Chapman and Cutler has not undertaken to independently verify 
the accuracy, completeness or fairness of this Official Statement or other offering material 
related to the Series 2017 Bonds and does not guarantee the accuracy, completeness or fairness 
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of such infonnation. Chapman and Cutler's engagement as Underwriter's Counsel was 
undertaken to assist the Underwriter in discharging its responsibility with respect to the Official 
Statement, and not for the benefit of any person purchasing Series 2017 Bonds from the 
Underwriter, and did not include any obligation to establish or confirm factual matters, forecasts, 
projections, estimates or any other financial or economic infonnation in connection therewith. 
Further, Chapman and Cutler makes no representation as to the suitability of the Series 2017 
Bonds for investment by any investor. 

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR 

Lewis Young Robertson & Buruingham, Inc., Salt Lake City, Utah (the "Municipal 
Advisor "), has been employed as an independent municipal advisor to the Agency in connection 
with the issuance of the Series 2017 Bonds. The Municipal Advisor has not independently 
verified any of the infonnation contained in this Official Statement and makes no representation 
to the owners or purchasers of the Series 2017 Bonds as to their completeness or accuracy. The 
Municipal Advisor's fee for services rendered with respect to the Series 2017 Bonds is 
contingent upon the delivery of such Series 2017 Bonds. Lewis Young Robertson & 
Burningham, Inc. also serves as municipal advisor to UTOPIA. 

UNDERWRITING 

Pursuant to the terms of a Bond Purchase Agreement (the "Bond Purchase Agreement") 
between the Agency and KeyBanc Capital Markets, Inc., Chicago, lllinois (the "Underwriter'), 
the Underwriter has agreed to purchase the Series 2017 A Bonds at an aggregate purchase price 
of $81,120,440.50 (representing the principal amount of the Series 2017A Bonds plus net 
original issue premium of $7,784,509.00 and less Underwriter's discount of $569,068.50). 
Pursuant to the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Underwriter has agreed to purchase the 
Series 2017B Bonds at an aggregate purchase price of $3,368,155.00 (representing the principal 
amount of the Series 2017B Bonds less original issue discount of $104,895.00 and less 
Underwriter's discount of $26,950.00). 

The Bond Purchase Agreement provides that the obligation of the Underwriter is subject 
to certain conditions precedent and that the Underwriter will be obligated to purchase all of the 
Series 2017 Bonds if any of the Series 2017 Bonds are purchased. The Series 2017 Bonds may 
be offered and sold to certain dealers (including dealers depositing such Series 2017 Bonds into 
investment trusts, accounts or funds) and others at prices different than the initial public offering 
price. After the initial public offering, the public offering price of the Series 2017 Bonds may be 
changed from time to time by the Underwriter. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

RELATIONSHIPS AMONG THE PARTIES 

In other transactions or pursuant to other programs of the Agency not related to the 
Series 2017 Bonds, each of the law finns identified under the heading "CERTAIN LEGAL 
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MATTERS" may have represented, or may be representing, the Agency, the Underwriter or 
UTOPIA in capacities different from those in connection with the issuance of the Series 2017 
Bonds. Potential purchasers of the Series 2017 Bonds should not assume that the Agency, 
UTOPIA, the Underwriter, the Municipal Advisor and the Trustee, or their respective counsel, 
have not previously engaged in, are not presently engaged in, or will not after the issuance of the 
Series 2017 Bonds engage in, other transactions with each other or with any affiliates of any of 
them, and no assurance can be given that there are or will be no past, present or future 
relationships or transactions between or among any of these parties or the law firms referenced 
herein. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

References to statutes, the Series 2017 Bonds, the Indenture, the Bond Resolution, the 
Interlocal Agreement, the IRU Agreement, the UTOPIA Service Agreement, the Service 
Contract, the Service Provider Agreements, the Bond Purchase Agreement and other documents 
contained in this Official Statement may have been intended as summaries of certain provisions 
thereof and in such cases do not purport to be definitive or comprehensive, and all references 
thereto are qualified in their entirety by reference to the actual statutes and documents. 
Statements herein involving matters of opinion or estimates, whether or not so expressly stated, 
are set forth as such and not as representations of fact, and no representation is made that any of 
the estimates will be realized. Neither this Official Statement nor any statement that may have 
been made orally or in writing is to be construed as, and is not, a contract with the owners of the 
Series 2017 Bonds. 

The attached Appendices A through E are integral parts of this Official Statement and 
should be read in their entirety together with all of the foregoing information. 
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AUTHORIZATION 

This Official Statement has been approved by the Agency for distribution to prospective 
purchasers of the Series 2017 Bonds. The Board, acting through authorized officers, will 
provide to the Underwriter at the time of delivery of the Series 2017 Bonds, a certificate 
confirming that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, this Official Statement, together with any 
supplements thereto, at the time of the execution of the Agreement, and at the time of delivery of 
the Series 2017 Bonds, was true and correct in all material respects and did not at any time 
contain an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated 
where necessary to make the statements therein in light of the circumstances under which they 
were made, not misleading. 

DATED: December 13, 2017. 

UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 

By /s/ Roger Timmerman 
Chief Executive Officer 
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RULE lSc2-12 CERTIFICATE 

DATED: December6,2017 

The undersigned hereby certifies and represents that he is authorized to execute and 
deliver this certificate on behalf of Utah Infrastructure Agency (the "Issuer"), and further 
certifies on behalf of the Issuer as follows: 

(I) This Certificate is delivered to enable the underwriter for the hereinafter 
defined Bonds to comply with the provisions of paragraph (b)(I ) of Rule 15c2-12 under 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Rule "), in connection with the 
issuance and sale by the Issuer of its Tax-Exempt Telecommunications Revenue and 
Refunding Bonds, Series 20 17 A and Taxable Telecommunications Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2017B (collectively, the "Bonds"). 

(2) In connection with the issuance and sale of the Bonds, there has been 
prepared a Preliminary Official Statement, dated December 6, 2017, setting forth, among 
other things, certain information concerning the Issuer and the Bonds. 

(3) The Preliminary Official Statement is hereby deemed final as of the date 
hereof within the meaning of the Rule, except for the omission of such information as is 
permitted by paragraph (b)(I) of the Rule (the "Omitted Information"). 

(4) The Preliminary Official Statement, as of the date hereof, does not contain 
any untrue statement of a material fact or, except for the Omitted Information, omit to 
state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the 
statements made therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, 
not misleading. 

DATED as of the day and year first above written. 

UTAH INFRASTRUCfUREAGENCY 

15c2·12 certificate 4832·9011-7455 v.3.doc 
8708349/ETH 

By a. ;:::::; 
Chief Executive Officer 

Rule 15c-2-1 2 Certificate 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Utah Infras1ructure Agency 
Murray, Utah 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Keddington & Christensen, LLC 
Cenilied Public ACCOuntiUlt. 

Gory K. Keddi_, CPA 
J'hyl R. Warnock, crA 
Man.'\b K. Atblll.:klc. CPA 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Utah Infrastructure Agency (VIA) as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the fmancial statements, as listed in the table of 
contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards. issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards reqnire that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
fmancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements retC:rred to above present fairly, m ali material respects, the 
respective financial position ofUtab Infrastructure Agency as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes 
in its financial position and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Telephone (801) 590-2600 
Fax (801) 265-9405 

1455 West 2200 South, Suite 201 
Salt Lake City, Utah 84119 



Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 6 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic fmancial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit 
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide 
any assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 15, 
2017 on our consideration of VIA's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering UIA's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

November 15, 2017 
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Introdnction 

UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The following is a discussion and analysis of the Utah Infrastructure Agency (VIA) financial activities for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. 

Descriptiop of Business 
The Utah Infrastructure Agency (UIA) is a political subdivision of the State of Utah and was created in 
June 2010. Nine cities created the agency (Brigham City, Centerville City, Layton City, Lindon City, 
Midvale City, Murray City, Orem City, Payson City and West Valley City). 

The UIA network is a fiber optic network providing high-speed broadband voice, video and data access. 
This network includes fiber optic lines, transmitters, power sources and backups, switches and access 
portals. The network operates as a wholesale network, under an open-access model, which is available to 
all qualified service provide",. The open-access aspect means subscnbers--both residents and businesses--­
have real choice for their broadband needs and Can choose the provider and options that work best for them. 

Eight of the member cities (all except Payson City) pledged franchise tax revenues as partial loan guarantees 
in order to secure financing for the network. These cities have approved up to $65 million in bonds for the 
construction of the UIA network. 

The UIA network is connected to the UTOPIA fiber optic network pursuant to an Indefeasible Right of Use 
Agreement (IRU) between UIA and UTOPIA, which grants UIA access to certain facilities of and capacity 
in the UTOPIA network. The UTOPIA network provides telecommunications services, support and 
management services as well as crucial infrastructure for the UIA network. The synergy provided by UIA' s 
partnership with UTOPIA allows both organizations to provide their citizens a state-of-the-art broadband 
network. The project is facilitating economic development throughout UTOPIA member cities. Where the 
network is completed, residents and businesses have access to the fastest internet in the country. 

Twenty five service provideIS-Inc1uding First Digital, SumoFiber, Verracity, Windstream, and 
XMission,-were actively providing services and a total of 16,479 homes and businesses had subscribed 
to services at year end on the UTOPIA/UIA network. Future growth ofthe network will be largely demand­
based, bringing the network first to those areas that will bring the best return on investment. UIA continues 
to make significant progress towards the project's original mission: to build and maintain a fiber network 
to service all of the businesses and residents in UTOPIA's member cities. 

As of the end of June, 2017, more than 3,266 miles of fiber cable have been placed within the boundaries 
of the eleven members cities. Within footprints serviced by 158 hut sites, there are approximately 87,000 
addresses, of which approximately 72,000 are able to receive services. The remaining addresses are located 
in apartment buildings, condominium developments, or in areas isolated by right-of-way or pole access 
issues. 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

Highlights 
Financial highlights include: 

• Net Position ofUIA increased $2,433,466 from the prior year. 

• UIA's revenues increased $1,366,246 from the prior year. 

Overview of Financial Statements 
The financial statements iocluded in this report have been prepared in compliance with generally accepted 
accountiog principles. The balance sheet provides information about the Agency's resources and 
obligations at year end. The statement of revenues, expenses and changes io net position presents the results 
of business activities during the course of the year. The statement of cash flows presents changes in cash 
and cash equivalents, resultiog from operational and investing activities. Notes to the financial statements 
provide required disclosures and other information that are essential to the full understanding of material 
data provided in the statements. The notes present information about UIA' s accountiog policies, significant 
account balances, obligations, commitments, contiogencies and subsequent events. 

Operatiog revenues of$7. 7 million exceeded budget by about $400,000. Total operating expense (expenses 
excluding interest and depreciation) was $18,000 below budget. Operatiog profit (EBIIDA) for the year 
was $617,000 better than budgeted. The net profit for the year was $2.4 Million, which was better than 
budget by $ 1.44 million. 

Table 1 - Summary of the Agency' s Statement of Net Position. 

Cuttent and other assets 
Capital assets 

Total Assets 

Current and otber liabilities 
long-term1iabilities outstanding 

Total liabilities 

Net investnEnt in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unres tricted 

Net Position 

$ 

$ 

4 

2017 

20,851,428 
53,105,833 

73,957,261 

3,962,297 
65,394,455 

69,356,752 

2,076,379 
8,373,657 

(5,849,527) 

4,600,509 

$ 

$ 

2016 

33,436,162 
40,629,150 

74,065,312 

3,310,822 
68,587,447 

71,898,269 

2,763,232 
24,837,438 

(25,433,627) 

2,167,043 



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION A~"D ANALYSIS (Continued) 

Table 2 - Summary of the Agency's Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 

2017 2016 

Revenues: 
Operating revenues $ 9,055,560 $ 7,689,314 
Interest inCO:llX 491,518 386,958 
Other revenues 376,682 247,294 

Total Revenues 9,923,760 8,323,566 

Expenditures: 
Marketing 323,884 231,039 
Professional services 138,352 97,680 
Network operations 704,047 420,302 
Depreciation 3,549,885 3,002,055 
Bond interest and fees 2,774,126 2,993,006 

Total Expenditures 7,490,294 6,744,082 

Change in net position 2,433,466 1,579,484 

Total net position, beginning of year 2,167,043 587,559 

Total net position, end of year $ 4,600,509 $ 2,167,043 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
UIA's capital assets, net of depreciation, were $53.1 million. Types of assets include outside plant (fiber 
and conduit), inside plant (electrouics), customer premise equipment, construction in progress and a 
capitalized lease (!RU). 

As of June 30,2017, VIA's outstanding debt amounted to $67.7 million. This is comprised of the revenue 
bonds and the capitalized !RV note payable. 

Table 3 - Summary ofUIA's Capital Assets at June 30, 2017: 

Construction in progress $ 
IJmd 
Building 
Furniture and equipment 
Outside plant 
Inside plant 
OJ.stomer premise equipmmt 
Intangible right 

$ 

5 

2017 

749,640 
500,000 

2,080,773 
687,599 

26,305,279 
2,468,854 
6,379,936 

13,933,752 

53,1051833 

2016 

$ 109,706 

18,780,854 
2,048,731 
5,081,871 

14,607,988 

$ 4M291150 



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

Table 4 - Summary ofUIA's nebt at June 30, 2017: 

Revenue bonds payable 
eapitalleases 
Notes payable 

Contacting UIA's Financial Management 

2017 

$ 62,236,416 
1,652,574 
3,835,636 

$ 67,724,626 

2016 

$ 64,007,701 
3,428,164 
3,417,291 

$ 70,853,156 

This fmancial report is designed to provide interested readers with a general overview onITA' s financial 
position and to demonstrate accountability. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional fmancial information should be addressed to the Chief Financial Officer, 
Utah Infrastructure Agency, 5858 S 900 E Murray, OT 84121. 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

June 30, 2017 

Assets 

Current Assets: 
Cash 
Trade receivables, net 
Inventory 
Prepaid expenses 
Notes receivable 
Restricted cash equivalents 

Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Notes receivable 
Capital Assets: 

Construction in progress 
Land 
Assets, net of accumulated depreciation: 

Building 
Furiture and equipment 
Fiber optic network 

Total Noncurrent Assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilitie s: 
Accouots payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Interest payable from restricted assets 
Capital leases payable 
Revenue bonds payable 
Unearned revenue 

Total Current Liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Capital leases payable 
Note payable 
Revenue bonds payable 

Total Liabilities 

Net Position: 
Net Investment in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 
Future development 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

Total Liabilities and Net Position 

The accompaoying notes are ao integral part of these fmaocial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

6,185,494 
I,Oll,553 
1,240,161 

17,210 
218,007 

8,970,264 

17,642,689 

3,208,739 

749,640 
500,000 

2,080,773 
687,599 

49,087,821 

56,314,572 

731957(1;.61 

957,025 
68,819 

596,607 
640,171 

1,690,000 
9,675 

3,962,297 

1,012,403 
3,835,636 

60,546,416 

69,356,752 

2,076,379 

2,559,705 
5,813,952 

{5,849,52Z2 

4,600,509 

73,957(1;.61 



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Operating Revenues: 

Access fees 
Installations 
Reconnections 
Miscellaneous operating revenue 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Marketing 
Profess .... lservices 
Network 
Depreciatinn 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 
Interest income 
Installation related capital contributions 
Bond interest aod fees 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Chaoge In Net Position 

Total Net Position, Beginning orYeor 

Total Net Position, End ofYeor 

The accompaoying notes are ao integral part of these financial statements. 
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$ 7,078,457 

123,933 

1,813,818 
39,352 

9,055,560 

323,884 
138,352 
704,047 

3,549,885 

4,716,168 

4,339,392 

491,518 
376,682 

(2,774,12~ 

(1,905,92~ 

2,433,466 

2,167,043 

$ 41600~09 



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the Year Ended June 30,2017 

Cash Flom From Operating Acthities: 
Cash received fromcustorrers and users 
Paymmts to suppliers 

Net cash prmided by operating acthities 

Cash Flows From Ca}i.tal and Related Financing Acthities: 
Purchase of capital assets 
Proceeds from installations 
Bond interest and fees 
Proceeds from issuance of new bonds 
Principal paid on bonds 
Principal paid on capital leases payable 

Net cash used by captal and related financing acthities 

Cash Flows From Non-Captal Flnancing Acthities: 
Proceeds from Dotes payable addition 

Net cash pro";ded by non-eapital financing actilites 

Cash Flows From Inwsting Acthity: 
Interest inCOIn': 

Net cash prolided by investing aeth-ity 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash E'lJuiwlents 

Cash and Cash Equiwlents, Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equiwlents, End of Year 

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash from operating acthities: 

Operating incorre 

Adjustments to reconcile operating inco~ to net cash 
from operating activities: 

Depreciation expense 

(Increase) decrease in assets related to operations 
Trade receivables, net 
Prepaid expenses 
Inventory 
Note receivable related to operating revenues 

Increase (decrease):in liabilities related to operations 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Unearned Revenue 

Net Cash Pro>lded by Operating Acti>lties 

SuRiementai Information 

Noncash Inwsting, Cap.tal, and Financing Acthities: 

Additions to capital assets includes inventory of $2,519,101. 
Additions to capital assets include change to discount on lease of $50,810. 
Additions to capital assets includes capitalized interest of$18,656. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmancial statements. 
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$ 8,568,981 

p,470,67~ 

5,098,305 

(13,507,467) 
395,222 

(2,867,720) 

(1,645,000) 

p,775,590l 

(19,400,555) 

376,321 

376,321 

491,518 

491,518 

(13,434,411) 

28,590,169 

$ 15,155,758 

$ 4,339,392 

3,549,885 

(519,850) 
(17,210) 

(2,873,854) 
23,596 

547,038 
39,633 
9,675 

$ 51098,305 



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Reporting Entity 
Utah Infrastructure Agency (UIA), a separate legal entity and political subdivision of the State 
ofUtab, was formed on July 29, 2010, by an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement pursuant to the 
provisions of the Utah Intedocal Cooperation Act. VIA's Interlocal Cooperative Agreement has 
a term of five years, and is renewable every year thereafter. VIA consists of9 member cities (8 
pledging and 1 non-pledging) at June 30, 2017. VIA's purpose is to design, finance, build, 
operate, and maintain an open, wholesale, public telecommunication infrastructure that has the 
capacity to deliver high-speed connections to every home and business in the member 
communities. 

The following is a summary of the more significant policies. 

The Reporting Entity 
In evaluating how to define VIA for financial reporting purposes, management has 
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit 
in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in the related GASB 
pronouncement. The basic, but not the only, criterion for including a potential component 
unit within the reporting entity is the governing body's ability to exercise oversight 
responsibility. The most significant manifestation oflhis ability is financial interdependency. 
Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oVClllight responsibility include, but are not 
limited to, the selection of governing authority, the designation of management, the ability 
to significantly influence operations and accountability of fiscal matters. The other criterion 
used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting 
entity is the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether VIA is able to 
exercise oversight responsibilities. VIA does not bave any component units, nor is it a 
component unit of any primary government. 

Financial Statement Presentation and Basis of Accounting 
VIA prepares its fmancial statements on an enterprise fund basis, using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing 
of related cash flows. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are fmanced 
and operated in a manner similar to private businesses, where the intent is that all costs of 
providing certain goods and services to the general public be financed or recovered primarily 
through user cbarges, or where it bas been deemed that periodic determination of net income 
is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or 
other purposes. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from 
nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing 
services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal 
ongoing operations. 

Restricted Assets 
VIA maintains investments held by financial institutions for safekeeping of funds relating to 
service reserves and to fund capital assets. When both restricted and unrestricted assets are 
available, it is VIA's policy to use restricted assets first, then unrestricted assets as tbey are 
needed. 

10 



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Property and Equipment 
Property and equipment are stated at cost, which includes capitalization of interest costs 
incurred during construction. Normal maintenance and repair expenses that do not add to 
the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are 
capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related fixed asset. The net 
book value of property sold or otherwise disposed of is removed from the property and 
accumulated depreciation accounts and the reSUlting gain or loss is included as nonoperating 
revenues or expenses. Depreciation of property and equipment was computed using the 
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Outside plant and certain customer preruise equipment 
Office furniture and equipment and vehicles 
Intangible rights 

25 years 
3-5 years 
25 years 

Depreciation of inside plant and certain customer premise equipment was computed using an 
accelerated method over a 6 year life. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
UIA considers all cash and investments with original maturities of three months or less to be 
cash and cash equivalents. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash 
equivalents are defined as the cash accounts and the restricted cash equivalent accounts. 
Investments, in the form of accounts invested with the Utah Public Treasurer' s Investment 
Fund (the State Treasurer's Pool) ofUIA are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
The allowance for doubtful accounts is VIA's best estimate of the amount of probable credit 
losses in the existing accounts receivable. VIA has reserved $183,285 of accounts receivable. 

Inventories 
Inventories are stated at cost using the first-in first-out method. 

Estimates and Assumptions 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Aetna! results could differ from those 
estimates. 

Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is generally recorded when the service has been provided, and profit is recognized 
at that time. Revenues are reported net of bad debt expense. Total bad debt expense related 
to revenues of the current period is $0. 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

VIA's deposit and investment policy is to follow the Utah Money Management Act. However, 
VIA does not have a separate deposit or investment policy that addresses specific types of deposit 
and investment risks to which UIA is exposed. 

Utah State law requires that UIA's funds be deposited with a "qualified depository" as defined 
by the Utah Money Management Act. "Qualified depository" includes any depository institution 
which has been certified by the Utah State Commissioner of Financial Institutions as having met 
the requirements as defined in Rule 11 of the Utah Money Management Act. Rille II establishes 
the formula for determining the amount of public funds which a qualified depository may hold 
in order to minimize risk of loss and defines capital requirements which an institution must 
maintain to be eligible to accept public funds. 

The Utah Money Management Act also governs the scope of securities allowed as appropriate 
temporary investments for UIA and conditions for making investment transactions. Investment 
transactions are to be conducted through qualified depositories or primary reporting dealers. 

As of June 30, 2017, UIA had the following deposits and investments, stated at carrying amount, 
which approximates fair value: 

Deposit and investment tyoe Fair Value 

Cash on deposit $ 1,166,2% 
investments in Utah Public Treasurer investment Funds 13,989,462 

:; 15,155,758 

Cash on Deposit: 
Custodial credit risk - deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank 
failure, UIA's deposits may not be returned to it. As of June 30, 2017, $1,085,751 of the 
$1,335,751 balance of deposits was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and 
uncollateralized. VIA has no policy to manage this type of risk. 

Investment in Utah Public Treasurer's Investment Funds fPTIF): 
Interest rate risk. The risk that changes in the interest rate will have an adverse affect on the fair 
value of an investment. UIA's investments in PTIF are not subject to interest rate risk. 

Credit risk. This is the risk that an issuer or other counter party to an investment will not fulfill 
its obligations. As of June 30, 2017 the PTIF in which VIA has investments were unrated. 

Concentration of credit risk. This is the risk of loss attributable to the magnitude of UIA's 
investment in a single issuer. VIA's investment in PTIF is not subject to a concentration of credit 
risk. 

Custodial credit risk - investments. This is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty to a transaction, UIA will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are 
in the possession of an outside party. VIA's investment in PTIF has no custodial credit risk. 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continned) 

NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

VIA categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy 
established by general accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has three 
levels, is based on valuation inputs used to measure an asset's fair value: Levell inputs are 
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other 
observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. Fair value measurements 
of UIA's investments in PTIF at June 30, 2017, or $13,989,463 are based on significant other 
observable inputs (Level 2 inputs). 

NOTE 3 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

The following summarizes VIA's property and equipment as of June 30, 2017: 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Additions Deletions Balance 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
Land $ $ 500,000 $ $ 500,000 
Construction in progress 109,706 639,934 749,640 

Total capital assets, not 
being depreciated 109,706 1,139,934 1,249,640 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Building 2,122,279 2,122,279 
Furniture and equipmmt 687,599 687,599 
Outside plant 22,133,226 8,695,527 30,828,753 
Ins ide plant 4,505,789 1,603,194 6,108,983 
Custo~r premise equipment 6,425,204 1,727,225 8,152,429 
Intangible right 18,126,154 50,810 18,176,964 

Total capital assets, 
being depreciated 51,190,373 14,886,634 66,077,007 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Building (41,506) (41,506) 
Furniture and equipment 
Outside plant (3,352,372) (1,171,102) (4,523,474) 
Inside plant (2,457,058) (1,183,071) (3,640,129) 
Customer premise equipmmt (1,343,333) (429,160) (1,772,493) 
Intangible right (3,518,166) (725,046) (4,243,212) 

Total accunmlated depreciation (10,670,929) (3,549,885) (14,220,814) 

Total capital asset, net of 
accumulated depreciation 40,519,444 11,336,749 51,856,193 

Property and Equiprrent, net $ 40,629,150 $ 12,476,683 $ $ 53,105,833 

Depreciation expense of $3,549,885 was charged to operating expense for the year ended June 
30,2017. 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE4 LONG-TERM DEBT 

The following is a summary of the changes in long-term debt obligations for the year ended June 
30,2017. 

Beginning Facing DueWJthin 
Balance AdKltiODI Reductions Ba181lCe One Year 

Re\enue Bonds 
Series 2011A $ 21,095,000 S S S 21,095,000 S 
Series 2011 B 5.615,000 (755,000) 4,860,000 775,000 
Original Issue Premium 253,943 (12,750) 241,193 
Serio, 2013 10,660,000 (285,000) 10,375,000 295,000 
Originallssue Pren:ium 260,788 (11,854) 248,934 
Series 2015 24,295,000 (605,000) 23,690,000 620,000 
Original Issue Premium 1,827,910 (101,6811 l,m,289 

Total Revenue BOIIdI 64,007,701 (1,771,285) 62.236,416 1,690,000 

c.ptll Leases 
UTOPIAIRU 3,4~164 (1,775,590) 1,652.574 640,171 

Total C.p:taI Luses 3,428,IM (I,775,590) 1,652,574 640,171 

Note,Payable 
Pledging Members 3,315,856 383,582 3,699,438 
Trem:mton Note 101,435 34,763 136,198 

Total Note, Payatie 3,417,291 418,345 3,l135,636 

Total Loag-Term Debt $ 701853,156 S 4181345 S ~.546187~ S 6717241626 $ ~3301171 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 4 LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Reyen"e BODm 
Tax~>Cempt Telecomnunications and Franchise Revenue Bonds, Series 2011A, 
original issue of $21,095,000, principal payments due in annual installments 
beginning October 2022, interest payments due semi-annually at 5.0% to 5.4%, with 
Ibe final payment due October 2036. The bonds were issued to finance VIA's 
infrastructure construcrinn and acqu .. ition of the UTOPIA Indefeasible Right of 
Use. 

T"""ble Telecomnmnications and Franchise Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B original 
issue of $8,405,000, principal payments due in annual instaibmnts beginning 
October 2012, interest payments due sern-annually at 3.2"10 to 5.45"10, with the final 
payment due October 2022 The bonds were issued to finance VIA', infrastructure 
construction and acquisition oflbe UTOPIA Indefeasible Right of Use. 

Telecotm'llnications and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 originalissue 
of SlI,205,OOO, principal payments due in annual installments beginning October 
2014, interest payments due sern-annually at 2.0% to 5.25%, wilb the final payment 
due October 2038. The bonds were issued to finance VIA's infrastructure 
construction. 

Te1ecoIlIl1lnications and Franch"e Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2015, original issue 
of $24,295,000, principal payments due in annual installments beginning October 
2016, interest payments due semi-annually at 1.0% to 5.25%, with the final payment 
due October 2040. The bonds were issued to finance VIA's infrastructure 
construction oflbe fiberoptk: network. 

Total Revenue Bonds 

Les s current portion 

Noncurrent portion 

$ 21,095,000 

4,860,000 

10,375,000 

23,690,000 

60,020,000 

(l,690,OOO) 

$ 58,330,000 

The following summarizes VIA' s revenue bonds debt service requirements as ofJune 30, 2017: 

l'w:. PrlnciE!!! Intere.t Total 

2018 $ 1,690,000 $ 2,808,470 $ 4,498,470 
2019 1,740,000 2,753,588 4,493,588 
2020 1,800,000 2,695,306 4,495,306 
2021 1,860,000 2,630,006 4,490,006 
2022 1,935,000 2,553,762 4,488,762 
2023-2027 11,110,000 11,316,165 22,426,165 
2028-2032 14,235,000 8,124,016 22,359,016 
2033-2037 18,285,000 4,038,274 22,323,274 
2038-2041 7,365,000 562,106 7,927,106 

$ 60,020,000 $ 37,481,693 $ 97,501,693 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 4 LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Capital Lease 

Capital leases consist of the following: 

UIA is obligated under a lease for the use of a fiber optic network from Utah 
Telecommunications Open Infrastructure Agency (UTOPIA). Because the terms 
and options contained in the lease have effectively created a financing 
arrangement, UIA is required to record this transaction as a capital lease. Terrm of 
the lease were renegotiated in December 2013. Lease payments of$54,583 are paid 
monthly beginning December 2013 including irqJuted interest at 1.09%. The 
capitalized cost offiber optic network is $18,176,963, with accumulated depreciation 

of$4,243,211. ...:$"--_1""6",,5,,,2,,,,-57,-=,4:.. 

Total Capital Lease 

Less current portion 

Noncurrent portion 

Minimum lease payments for the years ending June 30 are as follows: 

2018 
2019 
2020 

Total mininmm lease paymmts 

Less discount, representing imputed interest 

Present value of net minimum lease paymmts 

$ 

$ 

NOTE 5 INTERLOCAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 

655,000 
655,000 
366,502 

1,676,502 

(23,928) 

1,652,574 

$ 

1,652,574 

(640,171) 

1,012,403 

VIA has entered into an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement with Utah Telecommunication Open 
Infrastructure Agency (UTOPIA), wherein UIA will pay UTOPIA for network configuration, 
operation, and maintenance fees. The amount of the fees is determined based on the number of 
cormections, subscribers, and services performed. The term of the amended agreement is for five 
years starting July 2010 and can be renewed for successive one year periods after the initial five 
year term. UIA recorded expenditures to UTOPIA of $704,047 for the year ended June 30, 2017. 

NOTE 6 PLEDGING MEMBERS LIABILITY AND COMMITTMENTS 

The 8 Pledging Members of UIA have pledged energy sales and use tax revenues to ensure that 
VIA fulfills its revenue requirement from the bond agreements. UIA is required by the Series 
2011 A & B bond covenants to have revenue equal to the operations and maintenance expenses 
and the capital costs in a fiscal year. In the event there is a shortfall, the pledging cities agree to 
lend its energy sales and use tax revenues in the maximum annual principal allocated to each city 
as set forth below: 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 6 PLEDGING MEMBERS LIABILITY AND COMMITMENTS (Continued) 

2018 Share of 2018 
PledgIng Total Max. MaDmum 
Member Ple!!ge PledEe· 

Brigham City 0.62% $ 31,831 
Centerville City 3.63% 186,737 
Layton City 18.20% 937;272 
I.mdon City 3.35% 172,516 
Midvale City 6.60% 339,988 
Murray City 13.40'10 690,241 
OremCity 23.76% 1;223,786 
West Valley City 30.44% 1,568,781 

100.00% $ 5,151,152 

• These amounts are the estimated maximwn annual amount of 
franchise tax revenue payable by each city. 

The Second Amended and Restated Interlocal Cooperative Agreement ofUlA provides that the 
UIA Board of Directors may establish Working Capital Assessments to the Member Cities, the 
payment of which is subject to the appropriations authority of the governing bodies of the 
Member Cities. UIA has utilized this mechanism to pay certain operating expenses in order to 
avoid a shortfall under the Communications Services Contracts between UIA and the Member 
Cities. Under a shortfall scenario, VIA would be obligated to notifY the Member Cities of their 
respective obligations to utilize Energy Sales and Use Taxes to replenish the shortfall. Provided 
enougb cities pay their Working Capital Assessments, no shortfall exists and therefore, no 
obligation from Energy Sales and Use Taxes. The paid assessments, along with cumulative 
accrued interest ofS85,666 for a total of$3,613,772, have been recorded as notes payable to the 

City 

Brigham City 
Centerville City 
Layton City 
I.mdon City 
Midvale City 
Murray City 
OremCity 
Payson 
West Valley City 

2017 OpE< 
Asses.menn 

Paid 

$ 

292,821 
50,000 

$ 342,821 

17 

Cunwlati", 
Paid 

$ 34,824 
221,373 
623,750 
118,155 
307,486 
141,666 

1,099,242 
50,000 

1,017;276 

$ 3,6J3lm 



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE7 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Subsequent to year-end, the Board approved issuance and sale of up to $79,500,000 of 
telecommunications revenue and refunding bonds. The anticipated use of the bonds will be to 
defease (in substance, refund) some or all of the outstanding portions of the Series 2011, 2013, 
and 2015 bonds as well as provide additional proceeds to continue expanding the fiber-optic 
network. The bonds are expected be issued in December 2017. 

18 



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 

SUPPLEMENTARY REPORTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
SUPPLEMENTARY REPORTS 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial 
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards .................................. .................................... ............. ............................. 1 

Independent Auditor's Report as Required by the Stale Compliance Audit 
Guide on Compliance with Genera! State Compliance Requirements and 
on Internal Control over Compliance ......................................................................................................... 3 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTSPERFORMEDINACCORDANCE~H 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board of Directors 
Utah Infrastructure Agency 
Murray, Utah 

Keddington & Chri$tenscn, LLC 
C"ertilied I'ublic Accountants 

Gary K. Kt.'ddingttwt, CPA 
Ph .. ! R. Warnock, C.flA 
Mir.:us K. ArOOc~k. CPA 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Utah Infrastructure 
Agency (VIA), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 15, 2017. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered UIA's internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the fmancial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofUIA's internal control. Accordingly we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness ofUIA's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of UIA' s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely 
basis. A Significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is 
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that 
might be material weakness or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Telephone (801) 590-2600 
Fax (801) 265-9405 

1455 West 2200 South, Suite 201 
Salt Lake City, Utah 84119 



Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether UIA' s financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regnIations, contracts 
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statements amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose ofthis Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

~~~ 
November 15, 2017 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AS 
REQUIRED BY THE STATE COMPLIANCE 

AUDIT GUIDE ON COMPLIANCE WITH GENERAL 
STATE COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS AND ON 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

Board of Directors 
Utah Infrastructure Agency 
Murray, Utah 

Keddington & Christensen, LLC 
( 't:r1ificd Public Accfluntants 

==~. ~~~~~~= 
(;;11), K. ~cddin'l<ln. cp.\ 
Phy! R \\aml~l.. ("1'.\ 
Mar\:u~ K. Altlul;'l..lc:. tPA 

Report on Compliance with General State Compliance Reqnirements 
We have audited the Utah Infrastructure Agency's (VIA) compliance with the applicable general 
compliance requirements described in the State Compliance Audit Guide, issued by the Office of the Utah 
State Auditor that could have a direct and material effect on UIA for the year ended June 30, 2017. 

General state compliance requirements were tested for the year ended June 30, 2017, in the following 
areas: 

Budgetary Compliance 
Fund Balance 

Management's Responsibility 

Open and Public Meetings Act 
Treasurer's Bond 

Management is responsible for compliance with the general state requirements referred to above. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on UIA' s compliance based on our audit of the compliance 
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
the State Compliance Audit Guide. Those standards and the State Compliance Audit Guide require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above could have a direct and material effect on VIA occurred. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about UIA' s compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with general state 
compliance requirements. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of VIA's 
compliance. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, UIA complied, in all material respects, with the genera! compliance requirements referred 
to above that could have a direct and material effect on UIA for the year ended June 30, 2017. 

Telephone (801) 590-2600 
Fax (80 I) 265-9405 

3 1455 West 2200 South, Suite 201 
Salt Lake City, Utah 84119 



Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
Management of VIA is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of 
compliance, we considered UIA's internal control over compliance with the compliance requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on VIA to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance with general state 
compliance requirements and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with 
the State Compliance Audit Guide, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
VIA's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of perfornting their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a general state compliance requirement 
on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that material noncompliance with a general state compliance requirement will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a general state 
compliance requirement that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Purpose oftbis Report 
The purpose of this report is on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing based on requirements of the State 
Compliance Audit Guide. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

~~~ 
November 15, 2017 
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APPENDIXB 

EXTRACTS OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE 

The following excerpts briefly outline certain provisions contained in the General 
Indenture and are not to be considered as a full statement thereof. Reference is made to the 
General Indenture and the First Supplemental Indenture, for full details of all of the terms of the 
Series 2017 Bonds, the security provisions appertaining thereof, and the application of the 
Revenues derived from the System, and the definition of any terms used but not defined in this 
Official Statement. 

Defmitions 

As used in the Indenture, the following terms shall have the following meanings unless 
the context otherwise clearly indicates: 

"Accreted Amount" means, with respect to Capital Appreciation Bonds of any Series and 
as of the date of calculation, the amount representing the initial public offering price, plus the 
accumulated and compounded interest on such Bonds, as established pursuant to the 
Supplemental Indenture authorizing such Capital Appreciation Bonds. 

"Act" collectively means the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Title II, Chapter 13, Utah 
Code, and the Utah Refunding Bond Act, Title II, Chapter 27, Utah Code. 

"Additional Bonds" means all Bonds issued under the Indenture, other than the Initial 
Bonds, which are secured by a pledge of the Net Revenues on a parity with the pledge of Net 
Revenues for the payment of the Bonds and the Security Instrument Repayment Obligations 
authorized in the Indenture. 

"Administrative Costs" means all Security Instrument Costs and Reserve Instrument 
Costs. 

"Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement" means the total Debt Service (including 
any Repayment Obligations) for anyone Bond Fund Year (or other specific period) on all Series 
of Bonds Outstanding or any specified portion thereof. 

"Authorized Amount" means, with respect to a Commercial Paper Program, the 
maximum Principal amount of commercial paper which is then authorized by the Issuer to be 
outstanding at anyone time pursuant to such Commercial Paper Program. 

"Authorized Representative" means the Chair, any Vice Chair, Secretary, Treasurer, 
Chief Executive Officer or any other officer of the Issuer so designated in writing by the Issuer 
to the Trustee. 

"Available Franchise Tax Revenues" means the maximum Franchise Tax Revenues 
available under the Service Contract and which (i) for purposes of (a)(i) under the heading 



"Issuance of Additional Bonds" were not used in the applicable 12-month period to make the 
payments due under the Service Contract and (ii) for purposes (a)(ii) "Issuance of Additional 
Bonds" are not projected by the Qualified Consultant to be required to make the payments due 
under the Service Contract during the related Bond Fund Years. 

"Average Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement" means the total of all Aggregate 
Annual Debt Service Requirements divided by the total Bond fund Years of the Bonds 
Outstanding or any specified portion thereof. 

"Bond Fund" means the VIA Bond Fund created in the Indenture to be held by the 
Trustee and administered pursuant to the Indenture 

"Bond Fund Year" means the 12-month period beginning July 1 of each year and ending 
on the next succeeding June 30, except that the fust Bond Fund Year shall begin on the date of 
delivery of the Initial Bonds and shall end on the next succeeding June 30. 

"Bondholder," "Bondowner," "Registered Owner," or "Owner" means the registered 
owner of any Bonds authorized in the Indenture according to the registration books of the Issuer 
maintained by the Trustee as Registrar. 

"Bonds" means bonds, notes, commercial paper or other obligations (other than 
Repayment Obligations) authorized by and at any time Outstanding pursuant to the Indenture, 
including the Initial Bonds and any Additional Bonds. 

"Business Day" means any day (a)(i) on which banking business is transacted, but not 
including any day on which banks are authorized to be closed in New York City or in the city in 
which the Trustee has its Principal Corporate Trust Office or, with respect to a related Series of 
Bonds, in the city in which any Security Instrument Issuer has its principal office for purposes of 
such Security Instrument and (ii) on which the New York Stock Exchange is open, or (b) as 
otherwise provided in a Supplemental Indenture. 

"Capital Appreciation Bonds" means Bonds the interest on which (a) is compounded and 
accumulated at the rates and on the dates set forth in the Supplemental Indenture authorizing the 
issuance of such Bonds and designating them as Capital Appreciation Bonds, and (i) is payable 
upon maturity or prior redemption of such Bonds. 

"Chair" means the Chair of the Issuer or any successor to the duties of such office. 

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

"Commercial Paper Program" means commercial paper obligations with maturities of not 
more than two hundred seventy (270) days from the dates of issuance thereof which are issued 
and reissued by the Issuer from time to time pursuant to the Indenture and are outstanding up to 
an Authorized Amount. 
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"Connection Services" means the wholesale services provided by the Issuer to each 
Member pursuant to the Service Contract whereby end users within each Member have access to 
the VIA Network through which they may contract with private providers to receive Cable 
Television Services and Public Telecommunication Services (as those terms are defined in the 
Telecommunications Act) provided through the UTOPIA Network. 

"Construction Fund" means the VIA Construction Fund created in the Indenture to be 
held by the Trustee and administered pursuant to the Indenture. 

"Contracting Members" means those Members who have entered into the Service 
Contract, namely Brigham City, Utah; Centerville City, Utah; Layton City, Utah; Lindon City, 
Utah; Midvale City, Utah; Murray City, Utah; City of Or em, Utah; and West Valley City, Utah. 

"Cost" or "Costs" or "Cost of Completion," or any phrase of similar import, in 
connection with a Project or with the refunding of any Bonds, means all costs and expenses 
which are properly chargeable thereto under generally accepted accounting principles or which 
are incidental to the fmancing, acquisition and construction of a Project, or the refunding of any 
Bonds, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing: 

(a) amounts payable to contractors and costs incident to the award of 
contracts; 

(b) cost of labor, facilities and services furnished by the Issuer and its 
employees or others, materials and supplies purchased by the Issuer or others and permits 
and licenses obtained by the Issuer or others; 

(c) engineering, architectural, legal, planning, underwriting, marketings, 
accounting and other professional and advisory fees; 

(d) premiums for contract bonds and insurance during construction and cost~ 
on account of personal injuries and property damage in the course of construction and 
insurance against the same; 

( e) interest expenses, including interest on the Series of Bonds relating to a 
Project; 

(t) printing, engraving and other expenses of financing, fees of fmancial 
rating services and costs of issuing the Series of Bonds; 

(g) costs, fees, and expenses in connection with the acquisition of real and 
personal property or rights therein, including premiwns for title insurance; 

(h) costs of furniture, fixtures, and equipment purchased by the Issuer and 
necessary to construct a Project; 
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(i) amounts required to repay moneys advanced by the Member or temporary 
or bond anticipation loans or notes made to finance the costs of a Project; 

G) cost of site improvements performed by the Issuer in anticipation of a 
Project; 

(k) moneys necessary to fund the funds created under the Indenture; 

(I) costs of any Operation and Maintenance Expenses and other working 
capital appertaining to any facilities to be acquired for a Project and of any interest on a 
Series of Bonds for any period not exceeding the period estimated by the Issuer to effect 
the construction of a Project plus one year, as provided in the Indenture, of any discount 
on bonds or other securities, and of any reserves for the payment of the principal of and 
interest on a Series of Bonds, of any replacement expenses and of any other cost of 
issuance of a Series of Bonds or other securities, Security Instrument Costs and Reserve 
Instrument Costs; 

(m) costs of amending the Indenture or other instrument authorizing the 
issuance of or otherwise appertaining to a Series of Bonds; 

(n) all other expenses necessary or desirable and appertaining to a Project, as 
estimated or otherwise ascertained by the Issuer, including costs of contingencies for a 
Project; and 

(0) payment to the Issuer of such amounts, if any, as shall be necessary to 
reimburse the Issuer in full for advances and payments theretofore made or costs 
theretofore incurred by the Issuer for any item of Costs. 

In the case of refunding or redeeming any bonds or other obligations, "Cost" includes, 
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the items listed in (c), (e), (t), (i), (k), (I), (m) 
and (0) above, advertising and other expenses related to the redemption of such bonds to be 
redeemed and the redemption price of such bonds (and the accrued interest payable on 
redemption to the extent not otherwise provided for). 

"Cross-over Date" means with respect to Cross-over Refunding Bonds the date on which 
the Principal portion of the related Cross-over Refunded Bonds is to be paid or redeemed from 
the proceeds of such Cross-over Refunding Bonds. 

"Cross-over Refunded Bonds" means Bonds or other obligations refunded by Cross-over 
Refunding Bonds. 

"Cross-over Refunding Bonds" means Bonds issued for the purpose of refunding Bonds 
or other obligations if the proceeds of such Cross-over Refunding Bonds are irrevocably 
deposited in escrow in satisfaction of the requirements of Section 11-27-3, Utah Code, to secure 
the payment on an applicable redemption date or maturity date of the Cross-over Refunded 
Bonds (subject to possible use to pay Principal of the Cross- over Refunding Bonds under certain 
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circumstances) and the earnings on such escrow deposit are required to be applied to pay interest 
on the Cross-over Refunding Bonds until the Cross-over Date. 

"Current Interest Bonds" means all Bonds other than Capital Appreciation Bonds. 
Interest on Current Interest Bonds shall be payable periodically on the Interest Payment Dates 
provided therefor in a Supplemental Indenture. 

"Debt Service" means, unless specified otherwise by Supplemental Indenture for a Series 
of Bonds, for any particular Bond Fund Year and for any Series of Bonds and any Repayment 
Obligations, an amount equal to the sum of (a) all interest payable during such Bond Fund Year 
on such Series of Bonds plus (b) the Principal Installments payable during such Bond Fund Year 
on (i) such Bonds Outstanding, calculated on the assumption that Bonds Outstanding on the day 
of calculation cease to be Outstanding by reason of, but only by reason of, payment either upon 
maturity or application of any Sinking Fund Instalhnents required by the Indenture, and (ii) such 
Repayment Obligations then outstanding; 

provided, however, for purposes of issuance of Additional Bonds under the Indenture 

(A) when calculating interest payable during such Bond Fund Year for any 
Series of Variable Rate Bonds or Repayment Obligations bearing interest at a variable 
rate which cannot be ascertained for any particular Bond Fund Year, it shall be assumed 
that such Series of Variable Rate Bonds or related Repayment Obligations will bear 
interest at such market rate of interest applicable to such Series of Variable Rate Bonds or 
related Repayment Obligations as shall be established for this purpose in the opinion of 
the Issuer's fmancial advisor, underwriter or similar agent (which market rate of interest 
may be based upon a recognized comparable market index, an average of interest rates 
for prior years or otherwise); 

(B) when calculating interest payable during such Bond Fund Year with 
respect to any Commercial Paper Program, Debt Service shall include an amount equal to 
the sum of all principal and interest payments that would be payable during such Bond 
Fund Year assuming that the Authorized Amount of such Commercial Paper Program is 
amortized on a level debt service basis over a period of 30 years beginning on the date of 
calculation or, if later, the last day of the period during which obligations can be issued 
under such Commercial Paper Program, and bearing interest at such market rate of 
interest applicable to such Commercial Paper Program as shall be established for this 
purpose in the opinion of the Issuer's fmancial advisor, underwriter or similar agent 
(which market rate of interest may be based upon a recognized comparable market index, 
an average of interest rates for prior years or otherwise); and 

(C) when calculating interest payable on Bonds that are Paired Obligations, 
the interest rate on such Bonds shall be the resulting linked rate or effective fixed interest 
rate to be paid by the Issuer with respect to such Paired Obligations; 

and further provided, that there shall be excluded from Debt Service (x) interest on Bonds 
(including Cross-over Refunding Bonds or Cross-over Refunded Bonds) to the extent that 
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Escrowed Interest or capitalized interest is available to pay such interest, (y) Principal on Cross­
over Refunded Bonds to the extent that the proceeds of Cross-over Refunding Bonds are on 
deposit in an irrevocable escrow in satisfaction of the requirements of Section 11-27-3, Utah 
Code, as amended, and such proceeds or the earnings thereon are required to be applied to pay 
such Principal (subject to the possible use to pay the Principal of the Cross-over Refunding 
Bonds under certain circumstances) and such amounts so required to be applied are sufficient to 
pay such Principal, and (z) Repayment Obligations to the extent that payments on Pledged Bonds 
relating to such Repayment Obligations satisfy the Issuer's obligation to pay such Repayment 
Obligations. 

"Debt Service Reserve Fund" means the UIA Debt Service Reserve Fund created in the 
Indenture to be held by the Trustee and administered pursuant to the Indenture. 

"Debt Service Reserve Requirement" means with respect to each Series of Bonds issued 
pursuant to the Indenture, the definition set forth in the Supplemental Indenture relating to such 
Series of Bonds. 

"Direct Obligations" means noncallable Government Obligations. 

"Escrowed Interest" means amounts irrevocably deposited in escrow in accordance with 
the requirements of Section 11-27-3, Utah Code, in connection with the issuance of Refunding 
Bonds or Cross-over Refunding Bonds secured by such amounts or earnings on such amounts 
which are required to be applied to pay interest on such Cross-over Refunding Bonds or the 
related Cross-over Refunded Bonds. 

"Event of Default" means with respect to any default or event of default under the 
Indenture any occurrence or event specified in and defined in the Indenture. 

"Fiscal Year" means the 12-month period beginning July I of each year and ending on 
the next succeeding June 30. 

"Fitch" means Fitch Ratings. 

"Franchise Tax Revenues" means proceeds of loans or payments of franchise tax 
revenues received by the Issuer from Contracting Members pursuant to the Service Contract. 

"Governing Body" means the Board of Directors of the Issuer. 

"Government Obligations" means solely one or more of the following: 

(a) State and Local Government Series issued by the United States Treasury 
("SLGS"); 

(b) United States Treasury bills, notes and bonds, as traded on the open 
market; 
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(c) Zero Coupon United States Treasury Bonds; and 

(d) Any other direct obligations of or obligations unconditionally guaranteed 
by, the United States of America (including, without limitation, obligations commonly 
referred to as "REFCORP strips"). 

"Indenture" means the General Indenture of Trust as from time to time amended or 
supplemented by Supplemental Indentures in accordance with the terms of the Indenture. 

"Initial Bonds" means the first Series of Bonds issued under the Indenture. 

"Interest Payment Date" means the stated payment date of an installment of interest on 
the Bonds. 

"Issuer" or "UIA" means the Utab Infrastructure Agency and its successors. "Member" 
means a member city of the Issuer as evidenced by the execution by said member city of the 
Interlocal Agreement which created the Issuer. 

"Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service, Inc. 

"Net Revenues" means all Revenues after payment of all Operation and Maintenance 
Expenses. 

"Operation and Maintenance Expenses" means all expenses reasonably incurred by UIA 
in connection with the operation and maintenance of the UIA Network, whether incurred by UIA 
or paid to any other entity, including UTOPIA or any Member, pursuant to contract or otherwise, 
necessary to keep the UIA Network in efficient operating condition, including cost of audits 
required by the Indenture, payment of promotional and marketing expenses and real estate 
brokerage fees, payment of premiums for insurance and, generally all expenses, exclusive of 
depreciation (including depreciation related expenses of any joint venture) which under generally 
accepted accounting practices are properly allocable to operation and maintenance; provided, 
however, only such expenses as are reasonably and properly necessary to the efficient operation 
and maintenance of the UIA Network shall be included. 

"Outstanding" or "Bonds Outstanding" means at any date all Bonds which have not been 
canceled which have been or are being authenticated and delivered by the Trustee under the 
Indenture,except: 

(a) Any Bond or portion thereof which at the time has been paid or deemed 
paid pursuant to Article X of the Indenture; and 

(b) Any Bond in lieu of or in substitution for which a new Bond shall have 
been authenticated and delivered under the Indenture, unless proof satisfactory to the 
Trustee is presented that such Bond is held by a bona fide holder in due course. 
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"Paying Agent" means the Trustee, appointed as the initial paying agent for the Bonds 
pursuant to the Indenture and any additional or successor paying agent appointed pursuant to the 
Indenture. 

"Pledged Bonds" means any Bonds that have been (a) pledged or in which any interest 
has otherwise been granted to a Security Instrument Issuer as collateral security for Security 
Instrument Repayment Obligations or (b) purchased and held by a Security Instrument Issuer 
pursuant to a Security Instrument. 

"Principal" means (a) with respect to any Capital Appreciation Bond, the Accreted 
Amount thereof (the difference between the stated amount to be paid at maturity and the 
Accreted Amount being deemed unearned interest), except as used in connection with the 
authorization and issuance of Bonds and with the order of priority of payment of Bonds after an 
Event of Default, in which case "Principal" means the initial public offering price of a Capital 
Appreciation Bond (the difference between the Accreted Amount and the initial public offering 
price being deemed interest), and (b) with respect to any Current Interest Bond, the principal 
amount of such Bond payable at maturity. 

"Principal Corporate Trust Office" means, with respect to the Trustee, the office of the 
Trustee at One South Main, 12th floor, Salt Lake City, Utah 84133 or such other or additional 
offices as may be specified by the Trustee. 

"Principal Installment" means, as of any date of calculation, (a) with respect to any Series 
of Bonds, so long as any Bonds thereof are Outstanding, (i) the Principal amount of Bonds of 
such Series due on a certain future date for which no Sinking Fund Installments have been 
established, or (ii) the unsatisfied balance of any Sinking Fund Installment due on a certain 
future date for Bonds of such Series, plus the amount of the sinking fund redemption premiums, 
if any, which would be applicable upon redemption of such Bonds on such future date in a 
Principal amount equal to such unsatisfied balance of such Sinking Fund Installment and (b) with 
respect to any Repayment Obligations, the principal amount of such Repayment Obligations due 
on a certain future date. 

"Project" means the acqUisloOn, construction, installation, and equipping of 
communications facilities, additions, extensions, facilities, equipment, buildings, furnishings, 
and improvements for the UIA Network including the acquisition of access rights to and capacity 
in the UTOPIA Network. 

"Put Bond" means any Bond which is part of a Series of Bonds which is subject to 
purchase by the Issuer, its agent or a third party from the Owner of the Bond pursuant to 
provisions of the Supplemental Indenture authorizing the issuance of the Bond and designating it 
as a "Put Bond." . 

"Qualified Consultant" means any fum, corporation, company or any other organization 
or person generally recognized as having expertise in matters relating to telecommunications or 
fiber optic systems, selected and paid by the Issuer, who shall not have any substantial interest, 
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direct or indirect with the Issuer, but who may be regularly retained to make annual or other 
periodic reports to the Issuer. 

"Qualified Investments" means any of the following securities: 

(a) Government Obligations; 

(b) Obligations of any of the following federal agencies which obligations 
represent full faith and credit obligations of the United States of America including: the 
Export-Import Bank of the United States; the Government National Mortgage 
Association; the Federal Financing Bank; the Farmer's Home Administration; the Federal 
Housing Administration; the Maritime Administration: General Services Administration, 
SmaIl Business Administration; or the Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(PHA's); 

(c) Money market funds rated "AAAm" or "AAAm-G" or better by S&P 
and/or the eqnivalent rating or better of Moody's (if so rated), including money market 
funds from which the Trustee or its affiliates derive a fee for investment advisory services 
to the fund; 

(d) Commercial paper which is rated at the time of purchase in the single 
highest classification, P-I by Moody's or A-l+ by S&P, and which matures not more 
than 270 days after the date of purchase; 

(e) Bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness rated "AAA" by S&P and 
"Aaa" by Moody's issued by the Federal National Mortgage Association or the Federal 
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation with remaining maturities not exceeding three years; 

(f) U.S. dollar denominated deposit accounts, federal funds and banker's 
acceptances with domestic commercial banks, including the Trustee and its affiliates, 
which have a rating on their short-term certificates of deposit on the date of purchase of 
"A-I" or "A-l+" by S&P and "P_I" by Moody's and maturing no more than 360 days 
after the date of purchase (ratings on holding companies are not considered as the rating 
of the bank); 

(g) The fund held by the Treasurer for the State of Utah and commonly 
known as the Utah State Public Treasurer's Investment Fund; and 

(h) Any other investments or securities permitted for investment of public 
funds under the State Money Management Act of 1974, Title 51, Chapter 7, Utah Code, 
including investments contracts permitted by Section 51-7-17(2)(d) thereof. 

"Rating Agency" means Fitch, Moody' s, or S&P and their successors and assigns, but 
only to the extent such rating agency is then providing a rating on a Series of Bonds issued under 
the Indenture at the request of the Issuer. If either such Rating Agency ceases to act as a 
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securities rating agency, the Issuer may designate any nationally recognized securities rating 
agency as a replacement. 

"Rating Category" or "Rating Categories" mean one or more of the generic rating 
categories of a Rating Agency, without regard to any refinement or gradation of such rating 
category or categories by a numerical modifier or otherwise. 

"Rebatable Arbitrage" means with respect to any Series of Bonds where the interest 
thereon is intended to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the 
amount (determinable as of each Rebate Calculation Date) of rebatable arbitrage payable to the 
United States at the times and in the amounts specified in Section 148(t)(3) of the Code and 
Section 1.148-3 of the Regulations. 

"Rebate Calculation Date" means, with respect to any Series of Bonds where the interest 
thereon is intended to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the 
Interest Payment Date next preceding the fifth anniversary of the issue date of such Series of 
Bonds, each fifth anniversary of the initial Rebate Calculation Date for such Series of Bonds, and 
the date of retirement of the last Bond for such Series. 

"Rebate Fund" means the VIA Rebate Fund created in the Indenture to be held by the 
Trustee and administered pursuant to the Indenture. 

"Registrar" means the Trustee (or other party designated as Registrar by Supplemental 
Indenture), appointed as the registrar for the Bonds pursuant to the Indenture, and any additional 
or successor registrar appointed pursuant to the Indenture. 

"Regular Record Date" means, unless otherwise provided by Supplemental Indenture for 
a Series of Bonds, the fifteenth day immediately preceding each Interest Payment Date. 

"Remarketing Agent" means a remarketing agent or commercial paper dealer appointed 
by the Issuer pursuant to a Supplemental Indenture. 

"Repair and Replacement Fund" means the UIA Repair and Replacement Fund created in 
the Indenture to be held by the Issuer and administered pursuant to the Indenture. 

"Repair and Replacement Reserve Requirement" means the amount or amounts from 
time to time required under each Supplemental Indenture to be on deposit in the Repair and 
Replacement Fund. 

"Repayment Obligations" means, collectively, all Outstanding Security Instrument 
Repayment Obligations and Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations. 

"Reserve Instrument" means a device or instrument issued by a Reserve Instrument 
Provider to satisfy all or any portion of the Debt Service Reserve Requirement applicable to a 
Series of Bonds with the prior written approval of the Security Instrument Issuer, if any. The 
term "Reserve Instrument" includes, by way of example and not of limitation, letters of credit, 
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bond insurance policies, surety bonds, standby bond purchase agreements, lines of credit, and 
other devices. 

"Reserve Instrument Agreement" means any agreement entered into by the Issuer and a 
Reserve Instrument Provider pursuant to a Supplemental Indenture (including the applicable 
portions of a Supplemental Indenture) and providing for the issuance by such Reserve Instrument 
Provider of a Reserve Instrument. 

"Reserve Instrument Costs" means all fees, premiums, expenses, and similar costs, other 
than Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations, required to be paid to a Reserve Instrument 
Provider pursuant to a Reserve Instrument Agreement. Each Reserve Instrument Agreement 
shall specifY the fees, premiums, expenses, and costs constituting Reserve Instrument Costs. 

"Reserve Instrument Covemge" means, as of any date of calculation, the aggregate 
amount available to be paid to the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture under all Reserve 
Instruments. 

"Reserve Instrument Fund" means the UIA Reserve Instrument Fund created pursuant to 
the Indenture to be held by the Trustee and administered pursuant the Indenture. 

"Reserve Instrument Limit" means, as of any date of calculation and with respect to any 
Reserve Instrument, the maximum aggregate amount available to be paid under such Reserve 
Instrument into the Debt Service Reserve Fund assuming for purposes of such calculation that 
the amount initially available under each Reserve Instrument has not been reduced or that the 
amount initially available under each Reserve Instrument has only been reduced as a result of the 
payment of principal of the applicable Series of Bonds. 

"Reserve Instrument Provider" means any bank, savings and loan association, savings 
bank, thrift institution, credit union, insurance company, surety company, or other institution 
issuing a Reserve Instrument, which at the time of issuance of the Reserve Instrument, is rated in 
one of the four highest Rating Categories by a Rating Agency. 

"Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations" means, as of any date of calculation and 
with respect to any Reserve Instrument Agreement, those outstanding amounts payable by the 
Issuer under such Reserve Instrument Agreement to repay the Reserve Instrument Provider for 
payments previously made by it pursuant to a Reserve Instrument. There shall not be included in 
the calculation of Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations any Reserve Instrument Costs. 

"Revenue Fund" means the VIA Revenue Fund created in the Indenture to be held by the 
Issuer and administered pursuant to the Indenture. 

"Revenues" means all revenues, fees, income, rents, sale proceeds, and receipts received 
or earned by the Issuer from or attributable to the ownership or opemtion of the VIA Network, 
including moneys received from the imposition of fees and charges to providers and end users 
and all payments received pursuant to the Service Contract, including any Franchise Tax 
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Revenues, together with all interest earned by and profits derived from the sale of investments in 
the related funds thereof. Revenues do not include gifts or grants received by VIA. 

"S&P" means S&P Global Ratings, a business unit of Standard & Poor' s Financial 
Services LLC. 

"Secretary" means the Secretary of the Issuer or any successor to the duties of such 
office. 

"Security Instrument" means an instrument or other device issued by a Security 
Instrument Issuer to pay, or to provide security or liquidity for, a Series of Bonds. The term 
"Security Instrument" includes, by way of example and not of limitation, letters of credit, bond 
insurance policies, standby bond purchase agreements, lines of credit and other security 
instruments and credit enhancement or liquidity devices (but does not include a Reserve 
Instrument); provided, however, that no such device or instrument shall be a "Security 
Instrument" for purposes of the Indenture unless specifically so designated in a Supplemental 
Indenture authorizing the use of such device or instrument 

"Security Instrument Agreement" means any agreement entered into by the Issuer and a 
Security Instrument Issuer pursuant to a Supplemental Indenture (including the applicable 
portions of a Supplemental Indenture) providing for the issuance by such Security Instrument 
Issuer of a Security Instrument. 

"Security Instrument Costs" means, with respect to any Security Instrument, all fees, 
premiums, expenses and similar costs, other than Security Instrument Repayment Obligations, 
required to be paid to a Security Instrument Issuer pursuant to a Security Instrument Agreement 
or the Supplemental Indenture authorizing the use of such Security Instrument. Such Security 
Instrument Agreement or Supplemental Indenture shall specify any fees, premiums, expenses, 
and costs constituting Security Instrument Costs. 

"Security Instrument Issuer" means any bank or other fmancial institution, insurance 
company, surety company, or other institution issuing a Security Instrument. 

"Security Instrument Repayment Obligations" means, as of any date of calculation and 
with respect to any Security Instrument Agreement, any outstanding amounts payable by the 
Issuer under the Security Instrument Agreement or the Supplemental Indenture authorizing the 
use of such Security Instrument to repay the Security Instrument Issuer for payments previously 
or concurrently made by the Security Instrument Issuer pursuant to a Security Instrument. There 
shall not be included in the calculation of the amount of Security Instrument Repayment 
Obligations any Security Instrument Costs. 

"Series" means all of the Bonds authenticated and delivered on original issuance and 
identified pursuant to the Supplemental Indenture authorizing such Bonds as a separate Series of 
Bonds, and any Bonds thereafter authenticated and delivered in lieu thereof or in substitution 
therefor. 
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"Service Contract" means that certain Service Contract dated as of May 1, 2011, entered 
into between the Issuer and the Contracting Members identified in that Service Contract, as such 
contract may be amended and supplemented from time to time. 

"Sinking Fund Account" means the UIA Sinking Fund Account of the Bond Fund created 
in the Indenture to be held by the Trustee and administered pursuant to the Indenture. 

"Sinking Fund Installment" means the amount of money which is required to be 
deposited into the Sinking Fund Account in each Bond Fund Year for the retirement of Term 
Bonds as specified in the Supplemental Indenture authorizing said Term Bonds (whether at 
maturity or by redemption), and including the redemption premium, if any. 

"Special Record Date" means such date as may be fixed for the payment of defaulted 
interest on the Bonds in accordance with the Indenture. 

"State" means the State of Utah. 

"Supplemental Indenture" means any indenture between the Issuer and the Trustee 
entered into pursuant to and in compliance with the provisions of the Indenture. 

"Telecommunications Act" means the Municipal Cable Television and Public 
Telecommunications Service Act, Title 10, Chapter 18, Utah Code. 

"Term Bonds" means the Bonds which shall be subject to retirement by operation of 
mandatory sinking fund redemptions from the Sinking Fund Account. 

"Trustee" means ZB, National Association, One South Main, 12th floor, Salt Lake City, 
Utah 84133 or any successor corporation resulting from or surviving any consolidation or merger 
to which it or its successors may be a party and any successor trustee at any time serving as 
successor trustee under the Indenture. 

"VIA Network" means fiber optic lines, connection lines and related improvements and 
facilities acquired, constructed and owned by UIA, together with the acquisition by VIA of 
access rights and capacity in the UTOPIA Network and access rights and capacity in other 
networks. 

Utah Code" means Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended. 

"UTOPIA Network" means UTOPIA's wholesale telecommunications network, together 
with any additions, repairs, renewals, replacements, expansions, extensions and improvements to 
said network. 

"Variable Rate Bonds" means, as of any date of calculation, Bonds, the interest on which 
for any future period of time, is to be calculated at a rate which is not susceptible to a precise 
determination. 
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"Year" means any twelve consecutive month period. 

Indenture to Constitute Contract 

In consideration of the purchase and acceptance from time to time of any and all of the 
Bonds authorized to be issued under the Indenture by the Registered Owners thereof, the 
issuance from time to time of any and all Security Instruments by Security Instrument Issuers, 
and the issuance from time to time of any and aJl Reserve Instruments by Reserve Instrument 
Providers pursuant to the Indenture, the Indenture shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a 
contract between the Issuer and the Owners from time to time of the Bonds, the Security 
Instrument Issuers and the Reserve Instrument Providers; and the pledge made in the Indenture 
and the covenants and agreements set forth in the Indenture to be perfonned by or on behalf of 
the Issuer shall be, FIRST, for the equal benefit, protection and security of the Owners of any and 
all of the Bonds and the Security Instrument Issuers of any and all of the Security Instruments all 
of which, regardless of the time or times of their issuance, delivery, maturity or expiration, shall 
be of equal rank without preference, priority or distinction of any of the Bonds or Security 
Instrument Repayment Obligations over any others, except as expressly provided in or permitted 
by the Indenture, and SECOND, for the equal benefit, protection and security of the Reserve 
Instrument Providers of any and all of the Reserve Instruments which, regardless of the time or 
times of their issuance, delivery or termination, shall be of equal rank without preference, 
priority or distinction of any Reserve Instrument over any other thereof. 

Perfection of Security Interest 

(a) The Indenture creates a valid and binding pledge and assignment of security interest 
in all of the Net Revenues pledged under the Indenture in favor of the Trustee as security for 
payment of the Bonds, enforceable by the Trustee in accordance with the tenns thereof. 

(b) Under the laws of the State, such pledge and assignment and security interest is 
automatically perfected by Section 11-14-501, Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended, and is 
and shall have priority as against all parties having claims of any kind in tort, contract, or 
otherwise hereafter imposed on the Net Revenues. 

(c) The Issuer and the Trustee covenant and agree to take such action (including, as 
applicable, filing of uee financing statements and continuations thereof) as is necessary from 
time to time to preserve the priority of the pledge of the Trust Estate under applicable law. 

Authentication and Delivery of Bonds 

(a) The Issuer shall deliver executed Bonds of each Series to the Trustee for 
authentication. Subject to the satisfaction of the conditions for authentication of Bonds set forth 
in the Indenture, the Trustee shall authenticate such Bonds, and deliver them upon the order of 
the Issuer to the purchasers thereof (or hold them on their behalf) upon the payment by the 
purchasers to the Trustee for the account of the Issuer of the purchase price therefor. Delivery by 
the Trustee shaJl be full acquittal to the purchasers for the purchase price of such Bonds, and 
such purchasers shall be under no obligation to see to the application thereof. The proceeds of 
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the sale of such Bonds shall, however, be disposed of only as provided in the Indenture and in 
the related Supplemental Indenture. 

(b) No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any putpose or entitled to any security or 
benefit under the Indenture, unless and until a certificate of authentication on such Bond 
substantially in the form set forth in the Supplemental Indenture authorizing such Bond shall 
have been duly executed by the Trustee, and such executed certificate of the Trustee upon any 
such Bond shall be conclusive evidence that such Bond has been authenticated and delivered 
under the Indenture. The Trustee's certificate of authentication on any Bond shall be deemed to 
have been executed by it if signed by an authorized officer of the Trustee, but it shall not be 
necessary that the same officer sign the certificate of authentication on all of the Bonds issued 
under the Indenture. 

(c) Prior to the authentication by the Trustee of each Series of Bonds there shall have 
been filed with the Trustee: 

(d) A copy, dnly certified by the . Secretary, of the Indenture (to the extent not 
theretofore so filed) and the Supplemental Indenture authorizing such Series of Bonds. 

(i) A copy, certified by the Secretary, of the proceedings of the Issuer's 
Governing Body approving the execution and delivery of the instruments specified the 
Indenture and the execution and delivery of such Series of Bonds, together with a 
certificate, dated as of the date of authentication of such Series of Bonds, of the Secretary 
that such proceedings are still in force and effect without amendments except as shown in 
such proceedings. 

(ii) A request and authorization to the Trustee of the Issuer to authenticate 
such Series of Bonds in the aggregate principal amount therein specified and deliver them 
to purchasers therein identified upon payment to the Trustee, for account of the Issuer, of 
the sum specified therein. 

(iii) An opinion of bond counsel dated the date of authentication of such Series 
of Bonds to the effect that (a) the Issuer has authorized the execution and delivery of the 
Indenture and such Series of Bonds and the Indenture has been duly executed and 
delivered by the Issuer and is a valid and binding and enforceable agreement of the 
Issuer; (b) the Indenture creates the valid pledge which it purports to create of the Net 
Revenues; and (c) the Bonds of such Series are valid and binding obligations of the 
Issuer, entitled to the benefits and security hereof, provided that such opinion may 
contain limitations acceptable to the purchaser of such Series of Bonds. 

(e) The Issuer may provide by Supplemental Indenture for the delivery to the Trustee of 
one or more Security Instruments with respect to any Series of Bonds and the execution and 
delivery of any Security Instrument Agreements deemed necessary in connection therewith. 
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(f) Subject to any limitations contained in a Supplemental Indenture, the Issuer may 
provide a Security Instrument for any Series of Bonds (or may substitute one Security Instrument 
for another). 

(g) The Issuer may provide by Supplemental Indenture for the issuance and delivery to 
the Trustee of one or more Reserve Instruments and the execution and delivery of any Reserve 
Instrument Agreements deemed necessary in connection therewith. 

(h) The Issuer may authorize by Supplemental Indenture the issuance of Put Bonds; 
provided that any obligation of the Issuer to pay the purchase price of any such Put Bonds shall 
not be secured by a pledge of Net Revenues on a parity with the pledge contained in the 
Indenture. The Issuer may provide for the appointment of such Remarketing Agents, indexing 
agents, tender agents or other agents as the Issuer may determine. 

(i) The Issuer may include such provisions in a Supplemental Indenture authorizing the 
issuance of a Series of Bonds secured by a Security Instrument as the Issuer deems appropriate, 
including: 

(i) So long as the Security Instrument is in full force and effect, and payment 
on the Security Instrument is not in default, (A) the Security Instrument Issuer shall be 
deemed to be the Owner of the Outstanding Bonds of such Series (1) when the approval, 
consent or action of the Bondowners for such Series of Bonds is required or may be 
exercised under the Indenture and (2) following an Event of Default and (B) the 
Indenture may not be amended in any manner which affects the rights of such Security 
Instrument Issuer without its prior written consent. 

(ii) In the event that the Principal and redemption price, if applicable, and 
interest due on any Series of Bonds Outstanding shall be paid under the provisions of a 
Security Instrument, all covenants, agreements and other obligations of the Issuer to the 
Bondowners of such Series of Bonds shall continue to exist and such Security Instrument 
Issuer shall be subrogated to the rights of such Bondowners in accordance with the terms 
of such Security Instrument. 

(iii) In addition, such Supplemental Indenture may establish such provisions as 
are necessary to provide relevant information to the Security Instrument Issuer and to 
provide a mechanism for paying Principal Installments and interest on such Series of 
Bonds from the Security Instrument. 

Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds 

In the event any Bond is mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Issuer may execute and 
the Trustee may authenticate a new Bond of like date, Series, maturity and denomination as that 
mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed; provided that, in the case of any mutilated Bond, such 
mutilated Bond shall first be surrendered to the Trustee, and in the case of any lost, stolen or 
destroyed Bond, there shall be first furnished to the Trustee evidence of such loss, theft or 
destruction satisfactory to the Trustee, together in all cases with indemnity satisfactory to the 
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Trustee and the Issuer. In the event any such Bond shall have matured, instead of issuing a 
duplicate Bond, the Trustee may pay the same without smrender thereof upon compliance with 
the foregoing. The Trustee may charge the Registered Owner of such Bond with its reasonable 
fees and expenses in connection therewith. Any Bond issued pursuant to the Indenture shall be 
deemed part of the Series of Bonds in respect of which it was issued and an original additional 
contractual obligation of the Issuer. 

Cancellation 

All Bonds which have been surrendered for payment, redemption or exchange, and 
Bonds purchased from any moneys held by the Trustee under the Indenture or surrendered to the 
Trustee by the Issuer, shall be canceled and cremated or otherwise destroyed by the Trustee and 
shall not be reissued; provided, however, that one or more new Bonds shall be issued for the 
unredeemed portion of any Bond without charge to the Registered Owner thereof. 

Nonpresentation of Bonds 

Unless otherwise provided by Supplemental Indenture, in the event any Bond shall not be 
presented for payment when the principal thereof becomes due, either at maturity or otherwise, 
or at the date fixed for redemption thereof, if funds sufficient to pay such Bond shall have been 
made available to the Trustee, all liability of the Issuer to the Registered Owner thereof for the 
payment of such Bond shall forthwith cease, terminate and be completely discharged, and 
thereupon it shall be the duty of the Trustee to hold such fund or funds, without liability to the 
Registered Owner of such Bond for interest thereon, for the benefit of the Registered Owner of 
such Bond who shall thereafter be restricted exclusively to such fund or funds for any claim of 
whatever nature on his part under the Indenture or on, or with respect to, said Bond. If any Bond 
shall not be presented for payment within four years following the date when such Bond 
becomes due, whether by maturity or otherwise, the Trustee shall, to the extent pennitted by law, 
repay to the Issuer the funds theretofore held by it for payment of such Bond, and such Bond 
shall, subject to the defense of any applicable statute of limitation, thereafter be an unsecured 
obligation of the Issuer, and the Registered Owner thereof shall be entitled to look only to the 
Issuer for payment, and then only to the extent of the amount so repaid, and the Issuer shall not 
be liable for any interest thereon and shall not be regarded as a trustee of such money. The 
provisions of the Indenture are subject to the provisions of Title 67, Chapter 4a, Utah Code. 

Additional Bonds 

No additional indebtedness, bonds or notes of the Issuer payable from Net Revenues or 
any portion thereof on a priority basis senior to the Bonds or the Security Instrument Repayment 
Obligations authorized in the Indenture shall be created or incurred. The Issuer may issue 
Additional Bonds and other parity obligations if the following requirements have been met: 

(a) (i) A certificate, based upon the most recent audited financial statements of the 
Issuer or a report prepared by the Issuer's auditor, shall be delivered to the Trustee by an 
Authorized Representative to the effect that the sum of the Net Revenues and any Available 
Franchise Tax Revenues for any Year within the 24 months immediately preceding the issuance 
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of the Additional Bonds was at least 150% of the maximum Aggregate Annual Debt Service for 
any Bond Fund Year on all of the Bonds that will be Outstanding upon the issuance of such 
Additional Bonds; or 

(ii) An Authorized Representative shall have delivered to the Trustee a certificate from 
a Qualified Consultant: 

(I) setting forth projected Available Franchise Tax Revenues, and the 
Estimated Net Revenues as described in the Indenture (assuming, if applicable, the 
completion of any contemplated additions, improvements, extensions, replacements or 
repairs to the VIA Network (collectively, the "Improvements") financed with proceeds of 
the Additional Bonds) either: 

(i) for each of the two Bond Fund Years succeeding the latest 
estimated date of completion of the Improvements, if proceeds of the Additional 
Bonds are used to fund interest during the construction period, or 

(ii) if (i) is not the case, for the then current Bond Fund Year and the 
next succeeding Bond Fund Year; and 

(2) verifying that the sum of the projected Available Franchise Tax Revenues 
and the Estimated Net Revenues as shown in (I) above for each Bond Fund Year during 
which Bonds are Outstanding is not less than 150% of the maximum annual debt service 
requirement for each of such Bond Fund Years with respect to all of the Bonds which 
would then be Outstanding upon the issuance of such Additional Bonds so proposed to be 
issued. 

For purposes of subsection (ii) above "Estimated Net Revenues" shall be 
determined by the Qualified Consultant as follows: 

(A) The Net Revenues for any Year in the 24 months immediately 
preceding the delivery of the Additional Bonds shall first be determined. Net 
Revenues may be adjusted to give full effect to rate increases implemented prior 
to the issuance of the Additional Bonds. 

(B) Next, the additional Net Revenues, if any, resulting from the 
Improvements financed with proceeds of the Additional Bonds will be estimated 
by the Qualified Consultant for the applicable Bond Fund Years as determined in 
(ii)(l)(i) or (ii) above. 

(C) The Estimated Net Revenues will be the sum of the Net Revenues 
as calculated in (A) above, plus 75% of the estimated additional Net Revenues as 
calculated in (B) above. 

(b) All payments required by the Indenture to be made into the Bond Fund must have 
been made in full, and there must be in the Debt Service Reserve Fund the full amount required 

B-18 



by the Indenture to be accumulated at such time, taking into account any Reserve Instrument 
Coverage. 

(c) The coverage test set forth in (a)(i) and (a)(ii) above shall not apply to the issuance 
of any Additional Bonds to the extent such Bonds are issued for the purpose of refunding Bonds 
issued under the Indenture and the Average Aggregate Annual Debt Service for such Additioual 
Bonds does not exceed the then remaining Average Aggregate Annual Deht Service for the 
Bonds being refunded therewith. 

(d) All Repayment Obligations then due and owing shall have been paid. 

(e) All payments required by the Indenture to be made into the Bond Fund must have 
been made in full, and there must be on deposit in each account in the Debt Service Reserve 
Fund (taking into account any Reserve Instrument Coverage) the full amount required by the 
Indenture to be accumulated therein. 

(f) The proceeds of the Additional Bonds, less costs of issuance and funding of 
reserves, must be used in connection with (i) the refunding of Bonds issued under the Indenture 
or any borrowing of the Issuer, (ii) the financing of a Project or (iii) any other lawful purpose. 

(g) No Event of Default is existing under the Indenture on the date of authentication of 
such Additional Bonds, unless (i) the Security Instrument Issuers, Reserve Instrument Issuers 
and Owners of all Outstanding Bonds (subject to the consent authorized by (h)(i) have each 
consented to the issuance of such Additional Bonds or (ii) upon the issuance of such Additional 
Bonds and the application of the proceeds thereof, all such Events of Default will be cured. 

Coverage against Creating or Permitting Liens 

Except for the pledge of Net Revenues to secure payment of the Bonds and Repayment 
Obligations under the Indenture, the Net Revenues are and shall be free and clear of any pledge, 
lien, charge or encumbrance thereon or with respect thereto; provided, however, that nothing 
contained in the Indenture shall prevent the Issuer from issuing, if and to the extent permitted by 
law, indebtedness having a lien on Net Revenues subordinate to that of the Bonds and 
Repayment Obligations. Nothing in the Indenture shall be construed to limit the Issuer from 
incurring additional obligations which are payable from or secured by a source of revenues that 
is different from the Revenues pledged in the Indenture. 

Special Funds and Accounts 

Use of Construction Fund. 

(a) So long as an Event of Default shall not have occurred and be continuing and except 
as otherwise provided by Supplemental Indenture, moneys deposited in the appropriate account 
in the Construction Fund shall be disbursed by the Trustee to pay the Costs of a Project, in each 
case within three Business Days (or within such longer period as is reasonably required to 
liquidate investments in the Construction Fund if required to make such payment) after the 
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receipt by the Trustee of a written requisition approved by an Authorized Representative of the 
Issuer, stating that the Trustee shall disburse sums in the manner specified by and at the direction 
of the Issuer and by the Security Instrument Issuer, if any, to the person or entity designated in 
such written requisition, and that the amount set forth therein is justly due and owing and 
constitutes a Cost of a Project based upon audited, itemized claims substantiated in support 
thereof. 

(b) Upon receipt of such requisition, the Trustee shall pay the obligation set forth in 
such requisition out of moneys in the applicable account in the Construction Fund. In making 
such payments the Trustee may rely upon the information submitted in such requisition. Such 
payments shall be presumed to be made properly and the Trustee shall not be required to verify 
the application of any payments from the Construction Fund or to inquire into the purposes for 
which disbursements are being made from the Construction Fund. 

( c) The Issuer shall deliver to the Trustee, within 90 days after the completion of a 
Project, a certificate executed by an Authorized Representative of the Issuer stating: 

(i) that such Project has been fully completed in accordance with the plans 
and specifications therefor, as amended from time to time, and stating the date of 
completion for such Project; and 

(ii) that the Project has been fully paid for and no claim or claims exist against 
the Issuer or against such Project out of which a lien based on furnishing labor or material 
exists or might ripen; provided, however, there may be excepted from the foregoing 
certification any claim or claims out of which a lien exists or might ripen in the event the 
Issuer intends to contest such claim or claims, in which event such claim or claims shall 
be described to the Trustee. 

(d) In the event the certificate filed with the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture shall state 
that there is a claim or claims in controversy which create or might ripen into a lien, an 
Authorized Representative of the Issuer shall file a similar certificate with the Trustee when and 
as such claim or claims shall have been fully paid or otherwise discharged. 

(e) The Trustee and the Issuer shall keep and maintain adequate records pertaining to 
each account within the Construction Fund and all disbursements therefrom. 

(f) Unless otherwise specified in a Supplemental Indenture, upon completion of a 
Project and payment of all costs and expenses incident thereto and the filing with the Trustee of 
documents required by the Indenture, any balance remaining in the applicable account in the 
Construction Fund relating to such Project shall, as directed by an Authorized Representative of 
the Issuer, be deposited in the Bond Fund, to be applied, (i) toward the redemption of the Series 
of Bonds issued to finance such Project or (ii) to pay principal and/or interest next falling due 
with respect to such Series of Bonds. 
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(g) The Trustee shall, to the extent there are no other available funds held under the 
Indenture, use the remaining funds in the Construction Fund to pay principal and interest on the 
Bonds at any time in the event of a payment default. 

Application of Revenues 

(a) All Revenues shall be deposited in the Revenue Fund and accounted for by the 
Issuer separate and apart from all other moneys of the Issuer. 

(b) As a first charge and lien on the Revenues, the Issuer shall cause to be paid from the 
Revenue Fund from time to time as the Issuer shall determine, all Operation and Maintenance 
Expenses of the Issuer as the same become due and payable, and thereupon such expenses shall 
be promptly paid. 

(c) So long as any Bonds are Outstanding, as a second charge and lien on the Revenues, 
i.e. from Net Revenues, the Issuer shall, on or before the first Business Day of each month, 
transfer to the Trustee for deposit into the Bond Fund from the Revenue Fund an amount equal 
to: 

(i) one sixth (1/6) of the interest falling due on the Bonds on the next 
succeeding Interest Payment Date established for the Bonds (provided, however, that so 
long as there are moneys representing capitalized interest on deposit with the Trustee to 
pay interest on the Bonds next coming due, the Issuer need not allocate to the Revenue 
Fund to pay interest on the Bonds); plus 

(ii) one twelfth (1/12) of the principal and premium, if any, falling due on the 
next succeeding principal payment date established for the Bonds; plus 

(iii) one twelfth (1/12) the Sinking Fund Installments, if any, falling due on the 
next succeeding Sinking Fund Installment payment date; 

(iv) the sum of which shall be sufficient, when added to the existing balance in 
the Bond Fund, to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds 
promptly on each such Interest Payment Date as the same become due and payable. The 
foregoing provisions may be revised by a Supplemental Indenture for any Series of 
Bonds having other than semiannual Interest Payment Dates. 

(d) As a third charge and lien on the Revenues (on a parity basis), the Issuer shall make 
the following transfers to the Trustee on or before the fifteenth day of each month of each year: 

(i) To the extent the Debt Service Reserve Requirement, if any, is not funded 
with a Reserve Instrument or Instruments, (A) to the accounts in the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund any amounts required hereby and by any Supplemental Indenture to 
accumulate therein the applicable Debt Service Reserve Requirement with respect to each 
Series of Bonds at the times and in the amounts provided described in the Indenture and 
in any Supplemental Indenture and (B) if funds shall have been withdrawn from an 

B-2! 



account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund or any account in the Debt Service Reserve 
Fund is at any time funded in an amount less than the applicable Debt Service Reserve 
Requirement, the Issuer shall deposit Revenues in such account(s) in the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund sufficient in amount to restore such account(s) within one year with twelve 
(12) substantially equal payments during such period (unless otherwise provided for by 
the Supplemental Indenture governing the applicable Debt Service Reserve 
Requirement); or a ratable portion (based on the amount to be transferred pursuant to the 
Indenture of remaining Revenues if less than the amount necessary; and 

(ii) Equally and ratably to the accounts of the Reserve Instrument Fund with 
respect to all Reserve Instruments which are in effect and are expected to continue in 
effect after the end of such month, such amount of the remaining Revenues, or a ratable 
portion (based on the amount to be transferred pursuant to the Indenture) of the amount 
so remaining ifless than the amount necessary, that is required to be paid, on or before 
the next such monthly transfer or deposit of Revenues into the Reserve Instrument Fund, 
to the Reserve Instrument Provider pursuant to any Reserve Instrument Agreement, other 
than Reserve Instrument Costs, in order to cause the Reserve Instrument Coverage to 
equal the Reserve Instrument Limit within one year from any draw date under the 
Reserve Instrument. 

(e) As a fourth charge and lien on the Revenues, the Issuer shall deposit in the Repair 
and Replacement Fund any amount required hereby and by any Supplemental Indenture to 
accumulate therein the Repair and Replacement Reserve Requirement. In the event that the 
amount on deposit in the Repair and Replacement Fund shall ever be less than the Repair and 
ReplaCement Reserve Requirement for the Bonds then Outstanding (or, after the issuance of 
Additional Bonds, the amount required to be on deposit therein), from time to time, the Issuer 
shall deposit to the Repair and Replacement Fund from the Revenue Fund all remaining 
Revenues of the VIA Network after payments required by the Indenture have been made until 
there is on deposit in the Repair and Replacement Fund an amount equal to the Repair and 
Replacement Reserve Requirement. Subject to the provisions of the Indenture, this provision is 
not intended to limit, and shall not limit, the right of the Issuer to deposit additional moneys in 
the Repair and Replacement Fund from time to time as the Issuer may determine. 

(f) Subject to making the foregoing deposits, the Issuer may use the balance of the 
Revenues accounted for in the Revenue Fund for any of the following: 

(i) redemption of Bonds; 

(ii) refinancing, refunding, or advance refunding of any Bonds; 

(iii) any amounts owing from the Issuer to any Contracting Member under the 
Service Contract; or 

(iv) for any other lawful purpose, including any intergovernmental transfers, 
including but not limited to transfers to UTOPIA. 
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Use of Bond Fund. The Issuer may direct the Trustee, pursuant to a Supplemental 
Indenture, to create an account within the Bond Fund for a separate Series of Bonds under the 
Indenture. 

(a) The Trustee shall make deposits to the Bond Fund, as and when received, as 
follows: 

(i) accrued interest received upon the issuance of any Series of Bonds; 

(ii) all moneys payable by the Issuer as specified in the Indenture; 

(iii) any amount in the Construction Fund to the extent required by or directed 
pursuant to the Indenture upon completion of a Project; 

(iv) all moneys transferred from the Debt Service Reserve Fund or from a 
Reserve Instrument or Instruments then in effect as provided in the Indenture; and 

( v) all other moneys received by the Trustee under the Indenture when 
accompanied by directions from the person depositing such moneys that such moneys are 
to be paid into the Bond Fund. 

(b) Except as provided in the Indenture and except as otherwise provided by 
Supplemental Indenture, moneys in the Bond Fund shall be expended solely for-the following 
purposes and in the following order of priority: 

(i) on or before each Interest Payment Date for each Series of Bonds, the 
amount required to pay the interest due on such date; 

(ii) on or before each Principal Installment due date, the amount required to 
pay the Principal Installment due on such due date; and 

(iii) on or before each redemption date for each Series of Bonds, the amount 
required to pay the redemption price of and accrued interest on such Bonds then to be 
redeemed. 

Such amounts shall be applied by the Paying Agent to pay Principal Installments and 
redemption price of, and interest on the related Series of Bonds. 

The Trustee shall payout of the Bond Fund to the Security Instrument Issuer, if any, that 
has issued a Security Instrument with respect to such Series of Bonds an amount equal to any 
Security Instrument Repayment Obligation then due and payable to such Security Instrument 
Issuer. Except as otherwise specified in a related Supplemental Indenture all such Security 
Instrument Repayment Obligations shall be paid on a parity with the payments to be made with 
respect to principal and interest on the Bonds; provided that amounts paid under a Security 
Instrument shall be applied only to pay the related Series of Bonds. If payment is so made on 
Pledged Bonds held for the benefit of the Security Instrument Issuer, a corresponding payment 
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on the Security Instrument Repayment Obligation shall be deemed to have been made (without 
requiring an additional payment by the Issuer) and the Trustee shall keep its records accordingly. 

The Issuer hereby authorizes and directs the Trustee to withdraw sufficient funds from 
the Bond Fund to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds and on Security Instrument 
Repayment Obligations as the same become due and payable and to make said funds so 
withdrawn available to the Trustee and any Paying Agent for the purpose of paying said 
Principal and interest. 

(c) After payment in full of the Principal of and interest on (i) all Bonds issued under 
the Indenture (or after provision has been made for the payment thereof as provided in the 
Indenture so that such Bonds are no longer Outstanding); (ii) all agreements relating to all 
outstanding Security Instrument Repayment Obligations and Reserve Instrument Repayment 
Obligations in accordance with their respective terms; and (iii) the fees, charges, and expenses of 
the Trustee, the Paying Agent and any other amounts required to be paid under the Indenture or 
under any Supplemental Indenture and under any Security Instrument Agreement and under any 
Reserve Instrument Agreement; all amounts remaining in the Bond Fund shall be paid to the 
Issuer. 

Use of Sinking Fund Account. 

(a) The Trustee shall apply moneys in the Sinking Fund Account to the retirement of 
any Term Bonds required to be retired by operation of the Sinking Fund Account under the 
provisions of and in accordance with the Supplemental Indenture authorizing the issuance of 
such Term Bonds, either by redemption in accordance with such Supplemental Indenture or, at 
the direction of the Issuer, purchase of such Term Bonds in the open market prior to the date on 
which notice of the redemption of such Term Bonds is given pursuant to the Indenture, at a price 
not to exceed the redemption price of such Term Bonds (plus accrued interest which will be paid 
from moneys in the Bond Fund other than those in the Sinking Fund Account). 

(b) On the maturity date of any Term Bonds, the Trustee shall apply the moneys on 
hand in the Sinking Fund Account for the payment of the principal of such Term Bonds. 

Use of Debt Service Reserve Fund. Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture or by 
Supplemental Indenture, and subject to the immediately following sentence, moneys in each 
account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall at all times be maintained in an amount not less 
than the applicable Debt Service Reserve Requirement, if any. In calculating the amount on 
deposit in each account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund, the amount of any Reserve Instrument 
Coverage will be treated as an amount on deposit in such account in the Debt Service Reserve 
Fund. Each Supplemental Indenture authorizing the issuance of a Series of Bonds shall specifY 
the Debt Service Reserve Requirement, if any, applicable to such Series which amount shall, 
unless otherwise specified by the respective Supplemental Indenture, either be (a) deposited 
immediately upon the issuance and delivery of such Series from (i) proceeds from the sale 
thereof or from any other legally available source, or (ii) by a Reserve Instrument or Instruments, 
or (iii) any combination thereof, (b) deposited from available Net Revenues over the period of 
time specified therein, or (c) deposited from any combination of (a) and (b) above; provided 
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however, the foregoing provIsIOns shall be subject to the requirements of any Security 
Instrument Issuer set forth in the related Supplemental Indenture. If at any tinIe the amount on 
deposit in any account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund is less than the mininIum amount to be 
maintained therein, the Trustee is required on behalf of the Issuer to exercise the Issuer's 
remedies under the Service Contract to collect amounts payable under the Service Contract, 
including the advance of Franchise Tax Revenues, sufficient to replenish the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund. 

Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, all amounts deposited in the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee solely for the purpose of making 
transfers to the Bond Fund in the event of any deficiency at any time in the Bond Fund of the 
amount then required for payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds or, in accordance 
with the provisions of the Indenture, for the purpose of redeeming Bonds. Transfers shall be 
made from the Debt Service Reserve Fund to the Bond Fund in the event of a deficiency in the 
Bond Fund, in accordance the Indenture. 

In the event funds on deposit in an account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund are needed 
to make up any deficiencies in the Bond Fund as aforementioned, and there is insufficient cash 
available in such account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund to make up such deficiency and 
Reserve Instruments applicable to such Series are in effect, the Trustee shall inImediately make a 
demand for payment on such Reserve Instruments, to the maxinIum extent authorized by such 
Reserve Instruments, in the amount necessary to make up such deficiency, and immediately 
deposit such payment upon receipt thereof into the Bond Fund. Thereafter, the Issuer shall be 
obligated to reinstate the Reserve Instrument as provided in the Indenture. 

No Reserve Instrument shall be allowed to expire or terminate while the related Series of 
Bonds are Outstanding unless and until cash has been deposited into the related account of the 
Debt Service Reserve Fund, or a new Reserve Instrument has been issued in place of the expiring 
or terminating Reserve Instrument, or any combination thereof in an amount or to provide 
coverage, as the case may be, at least equal to the amount required to be maintained in the related 
account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund. 

Except as otherwise provided by Supplemental Indenture, moneys at any time on deposit 
in the account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund in excess of the amount required to be 
maintained therein (taking into account the amount of related Reserve Instrument Coverage) 
shall be transferred by the Trustee to the Bond Fund at least once each year. 

Moneys on deposit in any account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be used to 
make up any deficiencies in the Bond Fund only for the Series of Bonds secured by said account 
and any Reserve Instrument shall only be drawn upon with respect to the Series of Bonds for 
which such Reserve Instrument was obtained. 

Whenever the balance in an account the Debt Service Reserve Fund exceeds the amount 
required to redeem or pay the related Series of Outstanding Bonds, including interest accrued to 
the date of payment or redemption and premium, if any, due upon redemption, the Trustee shall, 
upon receipt of a written direction of the Issuer, transfer the amount in the related account of the 
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Debt Service Reserve Fund to the Bond Fund to be applied, on the next succeeding Interest 
Payment Date to the payment and redemption of all of the related Series of Outstanding Bonds. 

Use of Reserve Instrument Fund. There shall be paid into the Reserve Instrument Fund 
the amounts required by the Indenture and by a Supplemental Indenture to be so paid. The 
amounts in the Reserve Instrument Fund shall, from time to time, be applied by the Trustee on 
behalf of the Issuer to pay the Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations which are due and 
payable to any Reserve Instrument Provider under any applicable Reserve Instrument 
Agreement. 

Use of Repair and Replacement Fund. All moneys in the Repair and Replacement Fund 
may be drawn on and used by the Issuer for the purpose of (a) paying the cost of unusual or 
extraordinary maintenance or repairs of the UIA Network; (b) paying the costs of any renewals, 
renovation, improvements, expansion or replacements to the UIA Network; and (c) paying the 
cost of any replacement of buildings, lines, equipment and other related facilities, to the extent 
the same are not paid as part of the ordinary and normal expense of the operation of the UIA 
Network. 

Funds shall be deposited monthly from available Revenues in such amounts as may be 
required from time to time by each Supplemental Indenture until the Repair and Replacement 
Fund has an amount equivalent to the Repair and Replacement Requirement. Any deficiencies 
below the Repair and Replacement Requirement shall be made up from Revenues of the UIA 
Network available for such purposes. Funds at any time on deposit in the Repair and 
Replacement Fund in excess of the amount required to be maintained therein may, at any time, 
be used by the Issuer for any lawful purpose. 

Use of Rebate Fund. 

(a) If it becomes necessary for the Issuer to comply with the rebate requirements of the 
Code and the Regulations, the Trustee shall establish and thereafter maintain, so long as the 
Bonds which are subject to said rebate requirements are Outstanding, a Rebate Fund, which shall 
be held separate and apart from all other funds and accounts established under the Indenture and 
from all other moneys of the Trustee. 

(b) All amounts in the Rebate Fund, including income earned from investment of the 
fund, shall be held by the Trustee free and clear of the lien of the Indenture. In the event the 
amount on deposit in the Rebate Fund exceeds the aggregate amount of Rebatable Arbitrage for 
one or more Series of Bonds, as verified in writing by an independent public accountant or other 
qualified professional at the time the Rebatable Arbitrage is determined, the excess amount 
remaining after payment of the Rebatable Arbitrage to the United States shall, upon the Issuer's 
written request accompanied by the determination report, be paid by the Trustee to the Issuer. 

( c) The Issuer shall determine the amount of Rebatable Arbitrage and the 
corresponding Required Rebate Deposit with respect to each Series of Bonds on each applicable 
Rebate Calculation Date and take all other actions necessary to comply with the rebate 
requirements of the Code and the Regulations. The Issuer shall deposit into the Rebate Fund the 
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Required Rebate Deposit, if any, with respect to each Series of Bonds (or instruct the Trustee to 
transfer to the Rebate Fund moneys representing such Required Rebate Deposit from the Funds 
and Accounts held under the Indenture other than the Rebate Fund) or shall otherwise make 
payment of the rebate to be paid to the United States at the times required by the Code and the 
Regulations. If applicable, the Issuer shall instruct in writing the Trustee to withdraw from the 
Rebate Fund and pay any rebate over to the United States. The determination of Rebatable 
Arbitrage made with respect to each such payment date and with respect to any withdrawal and 
payment to the Issuer from the Rebate Fund pursuant to the Indenture must be verified in writing 
by an independent public accountant or other qualified professional. The Trustee may rely 
conclusively upon and shall be fully protected from all liability in relying upon the Issuer's 
determinations, calculations and certifications required by the Indenture and the Trustee shall 
have no responsibility to independently make any calculations or determination or to review the 
Issuer's determinations, calculations and certifications required by the Indenture. 

(d) The Trustee shall, at least 60 days prior to each Rebate Calculation Date, notify the 
Issuer of the requirements of the Indenture. By agreeing to give this notice, the Trustee assumes 
no responsibility whatsoever for compliance by the Issuer with the requirements of Section 148 
of the Code or any successor. The Issuer expressly agrees that (notwithstanding any other 
provision of the Indenture) any failure of the Trustee to give any such notice, for any reason 
whatsoever, shall not cause the Trustee to be responsible for any failure of the Issuer to comply 
with the requirements of said Section 148 or any successor thereof. 

(e) The provisions of the Indenture may be amended or deleted without Bondowner 
consent or notice, upon receipt by the Issuer and the Trustee of an opinion of nationally 
recognized bond counsel that such amendment or deletion will not adversely affect the 
excludability from gross income of interest on the Bonds or the status of the Bonds as entitled to 
Direct Payments, if applicable. 

Investment of Funds. Unless provided otherwise by Supplemental Indenture, any moneys 
in the Bond Fund, the Construction Fund, the Reserve Instrument Fund, the Rebate Fund, the 
Debt Service Reserve Fund, or the Repair and Replacement Fund shall, at the discretion and 
authorization of the Issuer, be invested by the Trustee in Qualified Investments; provided, 
however, that moneys on deposit in the Bond Fund, the Debt Service Reserve Fund and the 
Reserve Instrument Fund may only be invested in Qualified Investments having a maturity date 
of one year or less. If no written authorization is given to the Trustee, moneys shall be held 
uninvested. Such investments shall be held by the Trustee, and when the Trustee determines it 
necessary to use the moneys in the Funds for the purposes for which the Funds were created, it 
shall liquidate at prevailing market prices as much of the investments as may be necessary and 
apply the proceeds to such purposes. All income derived from the investment of the 
Construction Fund, the Bond Fund, the Reserve Instrument Fund and the Rebate Fund shall be 
maintained in said respective Funds and disbursed along with the other moneys on deposit 
therein as provided in the Indenture. All income derived from the investment of the Debt 
Service Reserve Fund shall be disbursed in accordance with the Indenture, except as otherwise 
provided by Supplemental Indenture. All moneys in the Revenue Fund may, at the discretion of 
the Issuer, be invested by the Issuer in Qualified Investments. 

B-27 



The Trustee shall have no liability or responsibility for any loss resulting from any 
investment made in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture. The Trustee shall be 
entitled to assume that any investment, which at the time of purchase is a Qualified Investment, 
remains a Qualified Investment thereafter, absent receipt of written notice or infonnation to the 
contrary. 

The Trustee may, to the extent pennitted by the State Money Management Act of 1974, 
Title 51, Chapter 7, Utah Code, make any and all investments pennitted by the provisions of the 
Indenture through its own or any of its affiliate's investment departments. 

The Issuer acknowledges that to the extent regulations of the comptroller of the currency 
or any other regulatory entity grant the Issuer the right to receive brokerage confinnations of the 
security transactions as they occur, the Issuer specifically waives receipt of such confinnations to 
the extent permitted by law. The Trustee will furnish the Issuer periodic cash transaction 
statements which include the detail for all investment transactions made by the Trustee under the 
Indenture. 

The Issuer may invest the amounts on deposit in the Repair and Replacement Fund as 
pennitted by applicable law. 

Trust Funds. All moneys and securities received by the Trustee under the provisions of 
the Indenture shall be trust funds under the tenns of the Indenture and shall not be subject to lien 
or attachment of any creditor of the State or any political subdivision, body, agency, or 
instrumentality thereof or of the Issuer and shall not be subject to appropriation by any 
legislative body or otherwise. Such moneys and securities shall be held in trust and applied in 
accordance with the provisions of the Indenture. Except as provided otherwise in the Indenture, 
unless and until disbursed pursuant to the tenns of the Indenture, all such moneys and securities 
(and the income therefrom) shall be held by the Trustee as security for payment of the principal 
of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds and the fees and expenses of the Trustee payable 
under the Indenture. 

Method of Valuation and Frequency of Valuation. In computing the amount in any fund 
or account, Qualified Investments shall be valued at market, exclusive of accrued interest. With 
respect to all funds and accounts, valuation shall occur annually, except in the event of a 
withdrawal from the Debt Service Reserve Fund, whereupon securities shall be valued 
immediately after such withdrawal. 

Covenants 

General Covenants. The Issuer covenants and agrees with each and every Registered 
Owner of the Bonds issued under the Indenture, Security Instrument Issuer and Reserve 
Instrument Provider as follows: 

(a) While any of the principal of and interest on the Bonds are outstanding and unpaid, 
or any Repayment Obligations are outstanding, any resolution or other enactment of the 
Governing Body of the Issuer, applying the Revenues for the payment of the Bonds and the 

B-28 



Repayment Obligations shall be irrevocable until the Bonds and/or any Repayment Obligations 
have been paid in full as to both principal and interest, and is not subj ect to amendment in any 
manner which would impair the rights of the holders of those Bonds or the Repayment 
Obligations which would in any way jeopardize the timely payment of principal or interest when 
due. Furthermore, the Revenues, for all services of the UIA Network including to the Members 
under the Service Contract and to all end users within the boundaries of said Members, shall be 
sufficient to pay the Operation and Maintenance Expenses, and to provide moneys for each Bond 
Fund Year sufficient to meet the Issuer's payment obligations under the Indenture. The Issuer 
agrees that should its annual financial statement made in accordance with the provisions the 
Indenture disclose that during the period covered by such financial statement the Revenues were 
not at least equal to the above requirement, the Issuer may modify its rates, fees and charges. 

(b) The Issuer will maintain the UIA Network in good condition and operate the same 
in an efficient manner. 

(c) Each Registered Owner, Security Instrument Issuer and Reserve Instrument 
Provider shall have a right, in addition to all other rights afforded it by the laws of the State, to 
apply to and obtain from any court of competent jurisdiction such decree or order as may be 
necessary to require the Issuer to charge or collect reasonable rates for services supplied by the 
VIA Network sufficient to meet all requirements of the Indenture and of any applicable Reserve 
Instrument Agreement. 

(d) So long as any principal and interest payments of the Bonds are Outstanding, or any 
Repayment Obligations are outstanding, proper books of record and account will be kept by the 
Issuer separate and apart from all other records and accounts, showing complete and correct 
entries of all transactions relating to the UIA Network. Each Registered Owner, Security 
Instrument Issuer and Reserve Instrument Provider, or any duly authorized agent or agents 
thereof shall have the right at all reasonable times to inspect all records, accounts and data 
relating thereto and to inspect the VIA Network. Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, 
the Issuer further agrees that it will within two hundred and ten (210) days following the close of 
each Bond Fund Year cause an audit of such books and accounts to be made by an independent 
firm of certified public accountants, showing the receipts and disbursements for account of the 
Revenues and the VIA Network, and that such audit will be available for inspection by each 
Registered Owner, Security Instrument Issuer and Reserve Instrument Provider. 

All expenses incurred in compiling the information required by the Indenture shall be 
regarded and paid as an Operation and Maintenance Expense 

First Lien of Bonds; Equality of Liens. The Bonds and any Security Instrument 
Repayment Obligations constitute an irrevocable lien upon the Net Revenues. The Issuer 
covenants that the Bonds and Security Instrument Repayment Obligations hereafter authorized to 
be issued and from time to time outstanding are equitably and ratably secured by a lien on the 
Net Revenues and shall not be entitled to any priority one over the other in the application of the 
Net Revenues regardless of the time or times of the issuance of the Bonds or delivery of Security 
Instruments, it being the intention of the Issuer that there shall be no priority among the Bonds or 
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the Security Instrument Repayment Obligations regardless of the fact that they may be actually 
issued and/or delivered at different times. 

Any assigmnent or pledge from the Issuer to a Reserve Instrument Provider of (a) 
proceeds of the issuance and sale of Bonds, (b) Net Revenues, or (c) Funds established hereby, 
including investments, if any, thereof, is and shall be subordinate to the assignment and pledge 
effected hereby to the Registered Owners of the Bonds and to the Security Instrument Issuers. 

Payment of Principal and Interest. , The Issuer covenants that it will punctually payor 
cause to be paid the Principal of and interest on every Bond issued under the Indenture, any 
Security Instrument Repayment Obligations and any Reserve Instrument Repayment 
Obligations, in strict conformity with the terms of the Bonds, the Indenture, any Security 
Instrument Agreement and any Reserve Instrument Agreement, according to the true intent and 
meaning hereof and thereof. The Principal of and interest on the Bonds, any Security Instrument 
Repayment Obligations and any Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations are payable solely 
from the Net Revenues (except to the extent paid out of moneys attributable to Bond proceeds or 
other funds created under the Indenture or the income from the temporary investment thereof), 
which Net Revenues are hereby specifically pledged and assigned to the payment thereof in the 
manner and to the extent specified in the Indenture, and nothing in the Bonds, the Indenture, any 
Security Instrument Agreement or any Reserve Instrument Agreement should be considered as 
pledging any other funds or assets of the Issuer for the payment thereof. 

Performance of Covenants; Issuer. The Issuer covenants that it will faithfully perform at 
all times any and all covenants, undertakings, stipulations and provisions contained in the 
Indenture, and in any and every Bond, Security Instrument Agreement and Reserve Instrument 
Agreement. The Issuer represents that it is duly authorized under the Constitution of the State to 
issue the Bonds authorized hereby and to execute the Indenture, that all actions on its part for the 
issuance of the Bonds and the execution and delivery of the Indenture have been duly and 
effectively taken, and that the Bonds in the hands of the Registered Owners thereof are and will 
be valid and enforceable obligations of the Issuer according to the import thereof. 

List of Bondholders. The Trustee will keep on file at its Corporate Trust Office a list of 
the names and addresses of the Registered Owners of all Bonds which are from time to time 
registered on the registration books in the hands of the Trustee as Registrar for the Bonds. At 
reasonable times and under reasonable regulations established by the Trustee, said list may be 
inspected and copied by the Issuer or by the Registered Owners (or a designated representative 
thereof) of 10% or more in Principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding, such ownership and the 
authority of any such designated representative to be evidenced to the satisfaction of the Trustee. 

Management of Assets. The Issuer, in order to assure the efficient management and 
operation of its assets and to assure each Registered Owner, Security Instrument Issuer and 
Reserve Instrument Provider from time to time that the Issuer's assets will be operated on sound 
business principles, will employ competent and experienced management for said assets, will use 
its best efforts to see that said assets are at all times operated and maintained in first-class repair 
and condition and in such manner that the operating efficiency thereof shall be of the highest 
character. 
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Use of Legally Available Moneys. Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Indenture, 
nothing in the Indenture shall be construed to prevent the Issuer from (a) paying all or any part of 
the Operation and Maintenance Expenses from any funds available to the Issuer for such 
purpose, (b) depositing any funds available to the Issuer for such purpose in any account in the 
Bond Fund for the payment of the interest on, premium, if any, or the principal of any Bonds 
issued under provisions of the Indenture or for the redemption of any such Bonds, or (c) 
depositing any funds available to the Issuer for such purpose in the Reserve Instrument Fund for 
the payment of any amounts payable under any applicable Reserve Instrument Agreement. 

Payment of Taxes and Other Charges. The Issuer covenants that all taxes and 
assessments or other municipal or governmental charges lawfully levied or assessed upon the 
VIA Network or upon any part thereof or upon any income therefrom will be paid when the 
same shall become due, that no lien or charge upon the VIA Network or any part thereof or upon 
any Revenues thereof, except for the lien and charge thereon created under the Indenture and 
securing the Bonds, will be created or pennitted to be created ranking equally with or prior to the 
Bonds (except for the parity lien thereon of Additional Bonds issued from time to time under the 
Indenture and under Supplemental Indentures to the Indenture), and that all lawful claims and 
demands for labor, materials, supplies or other objects which, if unpaid, might by law become a 
lien upon the VIA Network or any part thereof or upon the Revenues thereof will be paid or 
discharged, or adequate provision will be made for the payment or discharge of such claims and 
demands within 60 days after the same shall accrue; provided, however, that nothing in the 
Indenture shall require any such lien or charge to be paid or discharged or provision made 
therefor so long as the validity of such lien or charge shall be contested in good faith and by 
appropriate legal proceeding . 

Insurance. The Issuer, in its operation of the System, will self-insure or carry insurance, 
including, but not limited to, workmen's compensation insurance and public liability insurance, 
in such amounts and to such extent as is normally carried by others operating public utilities of 
the same type. The cost of such insurance shall be considered an Operation and Maintenance 
Expense of the System. In the event ofloss or damage, insurance proceeds shall be used first for 
the purpose of restoring or replacing the property lost or damaged. Any remainder shall be paid 
into the Bond Fund. 

Covenant Not to Sell. The Issuer will not sell, lease, mortgage, encumber, or in any 
manner dispose of the VIA Network or any substantial part thereof, including any and all 
extensions and additions that may be made thereto, until all principal of and interest on the 
Bonds, and all Repayment Obligations, have been paid in full, except as follows: 

(a) The Issuer may sell any portion of said property (i) which shall have been replaced 
by other property of at least equal value, (ii) which shall cease to be necessary for the efficient 
operation of the VIA Network and the disposition of which will not, as determined by the 
governing body of the Issuer, result in a material reduction in Revenues in any year; or (iii) the 
value, as determined by the governing body of the Issuer, of the property to be sold, leased, 
abandoned, mortgaged, or otherwise disposed of (together with any other property similarly 
disposed of within the 12 calendar months preceding the proposed disposition) does not exceed 
five percent (5%) of the value of the VIA Network assets, as determined by the governing body 
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of the Issuer, provided, however, that in the event of any sale as aforesaid, the proceeds of such 
sale not needed to acquire other VIA Network property shall be paid into the Bond Fund. 

(b) The Issuer may lease or make contracts or grant licenses for the operation of, or 
make arrangements for the use of, or grant easements or other rights with respect to, any part of 
the VIA Network, provided that any such lease, contract, license, arrangement, easement or right 
does not impede the operation of the UIA Network; and any payment received by the Issuer 
under or in connection with any such lease, contract, license, arrangement, easement or right in 
respect of the VIA Network or any part thereof shall constitute Revenues. 

Default Provisions 

Events afDefault. Each of the following events is declared an "Event of Default": 

(a) if payment of any installment of interest on any of the Bonds shall not be made by 
or on behalf of the Issuer when the same shall become due and payable, or 

(b) if payment of the principal or Sinking Fund Installment or the redemption premium, 
if any, on any of the Bonds shall not be made by or on behalf of the Issuer when the same shall 
become due and payable, either at maturity or by proceedings for redemption in advance of 
maturity or through failure to fulfill any payment to any fund under the Indenture or otherwise; 
or 

(c) if the Issuer shall for any reason be rendered incapable of fulftlling its obligations 
under the Indenture; or 

(d) if an order or decree shall be entered, with the consent or acquiescence of the Issuer, 
appointing a receiver or custodian for any of the Revenues of the Issuer, or approving a petition 
ftled against the Issuer seeking reorganization of the Issuer under the federal bankruptcy laws or 
any other similar law or statute of the United States of America or any state thereof, or if any 
such order or decree, having been entered without the consent or acquiescence of the Issuer shall 
not be vacated or discharged or stayed on appeal within 30 days after the entry thereof; or 

(e) if any proceeding shall be instituted, with the consent or acquiescence of the Issuer, 
for the purpose of effecting a composition between the Issuer and its creditors or for the purpose 
of adjusting the claims of such creditors pursuant to any federal or state statute now or hereafter 
enacted, if the claims of such creditors are or may be under any circumstances payable from 
Revenues; or 

(f) if (i) the Issuer is adjudged insolvent by a court of competent jurisdiction, or (ii) an 
order, judgment or decree be entered by any court of competent jurisdiction appointing, without 
the consent of the Issuer, a receiver, trustee or custodian of the Issuer or of the whole or any part 
of the Issuer's property and any of the aforesaid adjudications, orders, judgments or decrees shall 
not be vacated or set aside or stayed within 60 days from the date of entry thereof; or 
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(g) if the Issuer shall file a petition or answer seeking reorganization, relief or any 
arrangement under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law or statute of the 
United States of America or any state thereof; or 

(h) if, under the provisions of any other law for the relief or aid of debtors, any court of 
competent jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the Issuer or of the whole or any 
substantial part of the property of the Issuer, and such custody or control shall not be terminated 
within 30 days from the date of assumption of such custody or control; or 

(i) if the Issuer shall default in the due and punctual performance of any other of the 
covenants, conditions, agreements and provisions contained in the Bonds, or in the Indenture or 
any Supplemental Indenture on the part of the Issuer to be performed, other than as set forth in 
the Indenture, and such Default shall continue for 30 days after written notice specifying such 
Event of Default and requiring the same to be remedied shall have been given to the Issuer by the 
Trustee, which may give such notice in its discretion and shall give such notice at the written 
request of the Registered Owners of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate 
Principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding under the Indenture; or 

(j) any event specified in a Supplemental Indenture as constituting an Event of Default 

Remedies; Rights of Registered Owners. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the 
Trustee, upon being indemnified pursuant to the Indenture, may pursue any available remedy by 
suit at law or in equity to enforce the payment ofthe principal of, premium, if any, and interest 
on the Bonds then Outstanding or to enforce any obligations of the Issuer under the Indenture; 
provided however, that nothing in the Indenture shall be construed to grant to the Bondholder, 
the Trustee, any Security Instrument Issuer or any Reserve Instrument Issuer, any right of 
acceleration of the payment of the Principal of or interest or premium on the Bonds. 

If an Event of Default shall have occurred, and if requested so to do by (a) Registered 
Owners of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate Principal amount of the Bonds 
then Outstanding, (b) Security Instrument Issuers at that time providing Security Instruments 
which are in full force and effect and not in default on any payment obligation and which secure 
not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate Principal amount of Bonds at the time 
Outstanding, or (c) any combination of Registered Owners and Security Instrument Issuers 
described in (a) and (b) above representing not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate 
Principal amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding, and indemnified as provided in the 
Indenture, the Trustee shall be obligated to exercise such one or more of the rights and powers 
conferred by the Indenture as the Trustee, being advised by counsel, shall deem most expedient 
in the interest of the Registered Owners and the Security Instrument Issuers. 

No remedy by the terms of the Indenture conferred upon or reserved to the Trustee (or to 
the Registered Owners or to the Security Instrument Issuers) is intended to be exclusive of any 
other remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to any 
other remedy given to the Trustee, the Registered Owners or the Security Instrument Issuers or 
now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute. 
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No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any Event of Default 
shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any Event of Default 
or acquiescence therein; and every such right and power may be exercised from time to time and 
as often as may be deemed expedient. 

No waiver of any Event of Default under the Indenture, whether by the Trustee or by the 
Registered Owners or the Security Instrument Issuers, shall extend to or shall affect any 
subsequent Event of Default or shall impair any rights or remedies consequent thereon 

Right of Registered Owners to Direct Proceedings. Anything in the Indenture to the 
contrary notwithstanding, unless a Supplemental Indenture provides otherwise, either (i) the 
Registered Owners of a majority in aggregate Principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, 
(ii) the Security Instrument Issuers at the time providing Security Instruments which are in full 
force and effect and not in default on any payment obligation and which secure not less than 
50% in aggregate Principal amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding, or (iii) any combination of 
Registered Owners and Security Instrument Issuers described in (i) and (ii) above representing 
not less than 50% in aggregate Principal amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding, shall have the 
right, at any time, by an instrument or instruments in writing executed and delivered to the 
Trustee, to direct the time, method and place of conducting all proceedings to be taken in 
connection with the enforcement of the terms and conditions of the Indenture, or for the 
appointment of a receiver or any other proceedings under the Indenture; provided, that such 
direction shall not be otherwise than in accordance with the provisions of law and of the 
Indenture. 

Application of Moneys. All moneys received by the Trustee pursuant to any right given 
or action taken under the provisions of the Indenture shall, after payment of Trustee's fees and 
expenses including the fees and expenses of its counsel for the proceedings resulting in the 
collection of such moneys and of the expenses and liabilities and advances incurred or made by 
the Trustee and any other outstanding fees and expenses of the Trustee relating to its duties under 
the Indenture, be deposited in the Bond Fund and all moneys so deposited in the Bond Fund shall 
be applied in the following order: 

(a) To the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest then due and 
payable on the Bonds and the Security Instrument Repayment Obligations as follows: 

(i) Unless the Principal of all the Bonds shall have become due and payable, 
all such moneys shall be applied: 

FIRST-To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all installments 
of interest then due on the Bonds and the interest component of any Security 
Instrument Repayment Obligations then due, in the order of the maturity of the 
installments of such interest and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to 
pay in full any particular installment, then to the payment ratably, according to the 
amounts due on such installment, to the persons entitled thereto, without any 
discrimination or privilege; and 
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SECOND-To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of the unpaid 
Principal of and premium, if any, on the Bonds which shall have become due 
(other than Bonds called for redemption for the payment of which moneys are 
held pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture), in the order of their due dates, 
and the Principal component of any Security Instrument Repayment Obligations 
then due, and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full all the 
Bonds and the Principal component of any Security Instrument Repayment 
Obligations due on any particular date, then to the payment ratably, according to 
the amount of Principal due on such date, to the persons entitled thereto without 
any discrimination or privilege. 

(ii) If the principal of all the Bonds shall have become due and payable, all 
such moneys shall be applied to the payment of the Principal and interest then due and 
unpaid upon the Bonds and Security Instrument Repayment Obligations, without 
preference or priority of Principal over interest or of interest over Principal, or of any 
installment of interest over any other installment of interest, or of any Bond or Security 
Instrument Repayment Obligation over any other Bond or Security Instrument 
Repayment Obligation, ratably, according to the amounts due respectively for Principal 
and interest, to the persons entitled thereto without any discrimination or privilege. 

(iii) To the payment of all obligations owed to all Reserve Instrument 
Providers, ratably, according to the amounts due without any discrimination or preference 
under any applicable agreement related to any Reserve Instrument Agreement. 

Whenever moneys are to be applied pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture, such 
moneys shall be applied at such times, and from time to time, as the Trustee shall determine, 
having due regard to the amounts of such moneys available for such application and the 
likelihood of additional moneys becoming available for such application in the future. Whenever 
the Trustee shall apply such funds, it shall fix the date upon which such application is to be made 
and upon such date interest on the amounts of principal paid on such dates shall cease to accrue. 

Remedies Vested in Trustee. All rights of action (including the right to file proof of 
claims) under the Indenture or under any of the Bonds may be enforced by the Trustee without 
the possession of any of the Bonds or the production thereof in any trial or other proceedings 
related thereto and any such suit or proceedings instituted by the Trustee shall be brought in its 
name as Trustee without the necessity of joining as plaintiffs or defendants any Registered 
Owners of the Bonds, and any recovery of judgment shall be for the equal benefit of the 
Registered Owners of the Outstanding Bonds. 

Rights and Remedies of Registered Owners. Except as provided in the Indenture, no 
Registered Owner of any Bond or Security Instrument Issuer shall have any right to institute any 
suit, action or proceeding in equity or at law for the enforcement of the Indenture or for the 
execution of any trust thereof or for the appointment of a receiver or any other remedy under the 
Indenture, unless an Event of Default has occurred of which the Trustee has been notified as 
provided in the Indenture, or of which by the Indenture it is deemed to have notice, nor unless 
also Registered Owners of25% in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding or 
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Security Instrument Issuers at the time providing Security Instruments which are in full force and 
effect and are not in default on any payment obligation and which secure not less than 25% in 
aggregate principal amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding shall have made written request to 
the Trustee and shall have offered reasonable opportunity either to proceed to exercise the 
powers granted in the Indenture or to institute such action, suit or proceeding in its own name, 
nor uuless also they have offered to the Trustee indemnity as provided in the Indenture nor 
unless the Trustee shall thereafter fail or refuse to exercise the powers granted in the Indenture, 
or to institute such action, suit or proceeding in its own name or names. Such notification, 
request and offer of indemnity are hereby declared in every case at the option of the Trustee to be 
conditions precedent to the execution of the powers and trust of the Indenture, and to any action 
or cause of action for the enforcement of the Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver or 
for any other remedy under the Indenture; it being understood and intended that no one or more 
Registered Owner of the Bonds or Security Instrument Issuer shall have any right in any manner 
whatsoever to affect, disturb or prejudice the lien of the Indenture by its action or to enforce any 
right under the Indenture except in the manner provided in the Indenture, and that all proceedings 
at law or in equity shall be instituted, had and maintained in the manner provided in the 
Indenture and for the equal benefit of the Registered Owners of all Bonds then Outstanding and 
all Security Instrument Issuers at the time providing Security Instruments. Nothing contained in 
the Indenture shall, however, affect or impair the right of any Registered Owner or Security 
Instrument Issuer to enforce the covenants of the Issuer to pay the principal of, premium, if any, 
and interest on each of the Bonds issued under the Indenture held by such Registered Owner and 
Security Instrument Repayment Obligations at the time, place, from the source and in the manner 
in said Bonds or Security Instrument Repayment Obligations expressed. 

Termination of Proceedings. In case the Trustee, any Registered Owner or any Security 
Instrument Issuer shall have proceeded to enforce any right under the Indenture by the 
appointment of a receiver, or otherwise, and such proceedings shall have been discontinued or 
abandoned for any reason, or shall have been determined adversely to the Trustee, the Registered 
Owner, or Security Instrument Issuer, then and in every such case the Issuer and the Trustee shall 
be restored to their former positions and rights under the Indenture, and all rights, remedies and 
powers of the Trustee shall continue as if no such proceedings had been taken. 

Waivers of Events of Default. Subject to the Indenture, the Trustee may in its discretion, 
and with the prior written consent of all Security Instrument Issuers at the time providing 
Security Instruments, waive any Event of Default under the Indenture and its consequences and 
shall do so upon the written request of the Registered Owners of (a) a majority in aggregate 
Principal amount of all the Bonds then Outstanding or Security Instrument Issuers at the time 
providing Security Instruments which are in full force and effect and are not in default on any 
payment obligation and which secure not less than 50% in aggregate Principal amount of Bonds 
at the time Outstanding in respect of which an Event of Default in the payment of principal and 
interest exist, or (b) a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding or 
Security Instrument Issuers at the time providing Security Instruments which are in full force and 
effect and are not in default on any payment obligation and which secure not less than 50% in 
aggregate Principal amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding in the case of any other Event of 
Default; provided, however, that there shall not be waived (i) any default in the payment of the 
principal of any Bonds at the date that a Principal Installment is due, or (ii) any default in the 
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payment when due of the interest on any such Bonds, unless prior to such waiver or rescission, 
all arrears of interest, with interest (to the extent pennitted by law) at the rate borne by the Bonds 
in respect of which such Event of Default shall have occurred on overdue installments of interest 
and all arrears of payments of principal and premium, if any, when due and all expenses of the 
Trustee, in connection with such Event of Default shall have been paid or provided for, and in 
case of any such waiver or rescission, or in case any proceeding taken by the Trustee on account 
of any such Event of Default shall have been discontinued or abandoned or determined 
adversely, then and in every such case the Issuer, the Trustee, the Registered Owners and the 
Security Instrument Issuers shall be restored to their former positions and rights under the 
Indenture, respectively, but no such waiver or rescission shall extend to any subsequent or other 
Event of Default, or impair any right consequent thereon. 

Cooperation of Issuer. In the case of any Event of Default under the Indenture, the Issuer 
shall cooperate with the Trustee and use its best efforts to protect the Registered Owners, 
Reserve Instrument Providers and the Security Instrument Issuers. 

Trustee Provisions 

Acceptance of the Trusts. The Trustee accepts the trusts imposed upon it under the 
Indenture, and agrees to perform said trusts as a corporate trustee ordinarily would perform said 
trusts under a corporate indenture, but no implied covenants or obligations shall be read into the 
Indenture against the Trustee. 

(a) The Trustee may execute any of the trusts or powers thereof and perform any of its 
duties by or through attorneys, agents, receivers, or employees and the Trustee shall not be 
responsible for any misconduct or negligence on the part of any agent or attorney appointed with 
due care and shall be entitled to advice of counsel concerning all matters of trusts hereof and the 
duties under the Indenture, and may in all cases pay such reasonable compensation to all such 
attorneys, agents, receivers and employees as may reasonably be employed in connection with 
the trusts under the Indenture. The Trustee may act upon the opinion or advice of counsel. The 
Trustee shall not be responsible for any loss or damage resulting from any action or non-action in 
good faith in reliance upon such opinion or advice. 

(b) The Trustee shall not be responsible for any recital under the Indenture, or in the 
Bonds (except in respect to the certificate of the Trustee endorsed on the Bonds), or collecting 
any insurance moneys, or for the validity of the execution by the Issuer of the Indenture or of any 
supplements thereto or instruments of further assurance, or for the sufficiency of the security for 
the Bonds issued under the Indenture or intended to be secured hereby; and the Trustee shall not 
be bound to ascertain or inquire as to the performance or observance of any covenants, 
conditions or agreements on the part of the Issuer; but the Trustee may require of the Issuer full 
information and advice as to the performance of the covenants, conditions and agreements 
aforesaid and as to the condition of the property conveyed by the Indenture. The Trustee shall 
not be responsible or liable for any loss suffered in connection with any investment of funds 
made by it in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture. The Trustee shall have no 
responsibility with respect to any information, statement, or recital in any offering memorandum 
or other disclosure material prepared or distributed with respect to the Bonds. 
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(c) The Trustee shall not be accountable for the use of any Bonds authenticated or 
delivered under the Indenture, except as specifically set forth in the Indenture. The Trustee may 
become the owner of Bonds secured hereby with the same rights which it would have if not 
Trustee. 

(d) The Trustee shall be protected in acting upon any notice, request, consent, 
certificate, order, affidavit, letter, telegram or other paper or document believed to be genuine 
and correct and to have been signed or sent by the proper person or persons. Any action taken by 
the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture upon the request or authority or consent of any person who 
at the time of making such request or giving such authority or consent is the Registered Owner of 
any Bond, shall be conclusive and binding upon all future Owners of the same Bond and upon 
Bonds issued in exchange therefor or in place thereof. 

(e) As to the existence or nonexistence of any fact or as to the sufficiency or validity of 
any instrument, paper or proceeding, the Trustee shall be entitled to rely upon a certificate signed 
on behalf of the Issuer by an Authorized Representative as sufficient evidence of the facts therein 
contained and prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default of which the Trustee has been 
notified as provided in the Indenture, or of which by said Paragraph it is deemed to have notice, 
shall also be at liberty to accept a similar certificate to the effect that any particular dealing, 
transaction or action is necessary or expedient, but may at its discretion secure such further 
evidence deemed necessary or advisable, but shall in no case be bound to secure the same. The 
Trustee may accept a certificate of an Authorized Representative of the Issuer under its seal to 
the effect that a resolution in the form therein set forth has been adopted by the Issuer as 
conclusive evidence that such resolution has been duly adopted, and is in full force and effect. 

(f) The permissive right of the Trustee to do things enumerated in the Indenture shall 
not be construed as a duty and the Trustee shall not be answerable for other than its negligence or 
willful misconduct. 

(g) The Trustee shall not be required to take notice or be deemed to have notice of any 
Event of Default under the Indenture, except an Event of Default described in the Indenture, 
unless the Trustee shall be specifically notified in writing of such Default by the Issuer, a 
Security Instrument Issuer or by the Registered Owners of at least twenty-five percent (25%) in 
the aggregate principal amount of any Series of the Bonds then Outstanding and all notices or 
other instruments required hereby to be delivered to the Trustee must, in order to be effective, be 
delivered at the Principal Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee, and in the absence of such notice 
so delivered, the Trustee may conclusively assume there is no Event of Default except as 
aforesaid. 

(h) At any and 'all reasonable times and upon reasonable prior written notice, the 
Trustee, and its duly. authorized agents, attorneys, experts, engineers, accountants and 
representatives, shall have the right fully to inspect all books, papers and records of the Issuer 
pertaining to the Bonds, and to take such memoranda from and in regard thereto as may be 
desired. 
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(i) The Trustee shall not be required to give any bond or surety in respect of the 
execution of the said trusts and powers or otherwise in respect of the premises. 

(j) Notwithstanding anything elsewhere contained in the Indenture, the Trustee shall 
have the right, but shall not be required, to demand, in respect of the authentication of any 
Bonds, the withdrawal of any cash, the release of any property, or any action whatsoever within 
the purview hereof, any showing, certificates, opinions, appraisals, or other information, or 
corporate action or evidence thereof, in addition to that by the terms hereof required as a 
condition of such action by the Trustee, deemed desirable for the authentication of any Bonds, 
the withdrawal of any cash, or the taking of any other action by the Trustee. 

(k) All moneys received by the Trustee or any Paying Agent shall, until used or applied 
or invested as provided in the Indenture, be held in trust for the purposes for which they were 
received but need not be segregated from other funds except to the extent required by law. 
Neither the Trustee nor any Paying Agent shall be under any liability for interest on any moneys 
received under the Indenture except such as may be agreed upon. 

(I) If any Event of Default under the Indenture shall have occurred and be continuing, 
the Trustee shall exercise such of the rights and powers vested in it hereby and shall use the same 
degree of care as a prudent man would exercise or use in the circumstances in the conduct of his 
own affairs. 

(m) The Trustee shall be under no obligation to exercise any of the rights or powers 
vested in it by the Indenture at the request, order or direction of any of the Registered Owners, 
Security Instrument Issuers or Reserve Instrument Providers, pursuant to the provisions of the 
Indenture, unless such Registered Owners, Security Instrument Issuers or Reserve Instrument 
Providers shall have offered to the Trustee security or indemnity satisfactory to it against the 
costs, expenses and liabilities which may be incurred therein or thereby. 

(n) The Trustee shall not be required to expend, advance, or risk its own funds or incur 
any financial liability in the performance of its duties or in the exercise of any of its rights or 
powers if it shall have reasonable grounds for believing that repayment of such funds or 
satisfactory indemnity against such risk or liability is not assured to it. 

Fees, Charges and Expenses of Trustee. The Trustee shall be entitled to payment andlor 
reimbursement for reasonable fees for its services rendered as Trustee under the Indenture and all 
advances, counsel fees and other expenses reasonably and necessarily made or incurred by the 
Trustee in connection with such services. The Trustee shall be entitled to payment and 
reimbursement for the reasonable fees and charges of the Trustee as Paying Agent and Registrar 
for the Bonds as provided in the Indenture. Upon an Event of Default, but only upon an Event of 
Default, the Trustee shall have a right of payment prior to payment on account of interest or 
principal of, or premium, if any, on any Bond for the foregoing advances, fees, costs and 
expenses incurred. The Trustee's rights under the Indenture will not terminate upon its 
resignation or removal or upon payment of the Bonds and discharge of the Indenture. 
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Notice to Registered Owners if Event of Default Occurs. If an Event of Default occurs of 
which the Trustee is by the Indenture required to take notice or if notice of an Event of Default 
be given to the Trustee as in said Section provided, then the Trustee shall give written notice 
thereof by registered or certified mail to all Security Instrument Issuers or to Registered Owners 
of all Bonds then Outstanding shown on the registration books of the Bonds kept by the Trustee 
as Registrar for the Bonds. 

Intervention by Trustee. In any judicial proceeding to which the Issuer is a party and 
which in the opinion of the Trustee and its counsel has a substantial bearing on the interest of 
Registered Owners of the Bonds, the Trustee may intervene on behalf of such Owners and shall 
do so if requested in writing by the Registered Owners of at least twenty-five percent (25%) in 
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding. The rights and obligations of the 
Trustee under the Indenture are subject to the approval of a court of competent jurisdiction. 

Successor Trustee. Any corporation or association into which the Trustee may be 
converted or merged, or with which it may be consolidated, or to which it may sell or transfer its 
corporate trust business and assets as a whole or substantially as a whole, or any corporation or 
association resulting from any such conversion, sale, merger, consolidation or transfer to which it 
is a party, ipso facto, shall be and become successor Trustee under the Indenture and vested with 
all of the title to the whole property or trust estate and all the trusts, powers, discretions, 
immunities, privileges and all other matters as was its predecessor, without the execution or 
filing of any instrument or any further act, deed of conveyance on the part of any of the parties to 
the Indenture, anything in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding. 

Resignation by the Trustee. =The Trustee and any successor Trustee may at any time 
resign from the trusts created in the Indenture by giving written notice to the Issuer, served 
personally or by registered or certified mail, and by registered or certified mail to each Reserve 
Instrument Issuer, Security Instrument Issuer and Registered Owner of Bonds then Outstanding, 
and such resignation shall take effect upon the appointment of and acceptance by a successor 
Trustee appointed in the manner set forth in the Indenture; provided, however that if no 
successor Trustee has been appointed within sixty (60) days of the date of such notice of 
resignation, the resigning Trustee may petition any court of competent jurisdiction for the 
appointment of a successor Trustee, and such court may thereupon, after such notice, if any, as it 
deems proper and prescribes, appoint a successor Trustee. 

Removal of the Trustee. The Trustee may be removed at any time, by an instrument or 
concurrent instruments (a) in writing delivered to the Trustee, and signed by the Issuer, unless 
there exists any Event of Default, or (b) in writing delivered to the Trustee and the Issuer, and 
signed by the Registered Owners of a majority in aggregate Principal amount of Bonds then 
Outstanding if an Event of Default exists; provided that such instrument or instruments 
concurrently appoint a successor Trustee meeting the qualifications set forth in the Indenture. 
No removal of a Trustee shall become effective under the Indenture unless and until a successor 
Trustee has been appointed; provided, however that if no successor Trustee has been appointed 
within 60 days of the date of such notice of resignation, the resigning Trustee may petition any 
court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor Trustee, and such court may 
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thereupon, after such notice, if any, as it deems proper and prescribes, appoint a successor 
Trustee. 

Appointment of Successor Trustee; Temporary Trustee. In case the Trustee under the 
Indenture shall resign or be removed, or be dissolved, or shall be in course of dissolution or 
liquidation, or otherwise become incapable of acting under the Indenture, or in case it shall be 
taken under the control of any public officer or officers, or of a receiver appointed by a court, a 
successor may be appointed by the Issuer (or, if an Event of Default exists, by the Registered 
Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding, by an instrument 
or concurrent instruments in writing signed by such Owners, or by their attorneys in fact, duly 
authorized; provided, nevertheless, that in case of such vacancy the Issuer by an instrument 
executed by an Authorized Representative under its seal, may appoint a temporary Trustee to fill 
such vacancy until a successor Trustee shall be appointed by the Registered Owners in the 
manner above provided; and any such temporary Trustee so appointed by the Issuer shall 
immediately and without further act be superseded by the Trustee so appointed by .such 
Registered Owners). Every successor Trustee appointed pursuant to the provisions of the 
Indenture or otherwise shall be a trust company or bank in good standing having a reported 
capital and surplus of not less than $50,000,000. 

Each Reserve Instrument Provider and Security Instrument Issuer shall be notified 
immediately upon the resignation or termination of the Trustee and provided with a list of 
candidates for the office of successor Trustee. 

Concerning Any Successor Trustee. Every successor Trustee appointed under the 
Indenture shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to its predecessor and also to the Issuer an 
instrument in writing accepting such appointment under the Indenture, and thereupon such 
successor, without any further act, deed or conveyance, shall become fully vested with all the 
estates, properties, rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of its predecessor; but such 
predecessor shall, nevertheless, on the written request of the Issuer, or of the successor Trustee, 
execute and deliver an instrument transferring to such successor Trustee all the estates, 
properties, rights, powers and trusts of such predecessor under the Indenture; and every 
predecessor Trustee shall deliver all securities and moneys held by it as Trustee under the 
Indenture to its successor. Should any instrument in writing from the Issuer be required by any 
successor Trustee for more fully and certainly vesting in such successor the estates, rights, 
powers and duties hereby vested or intended to be vested in the predecessor, any and all such 
instruments in writing shall, on request, be executed, acknowledged and delivered by the Issuer. 
The resignation of any Trustee and the instrument or instruments removing any Trustee and 
appointing a successor under the Indenture, together with all other instruments provided for in 
Article VIII of the Indenture shall be filed or recorded by the successor Trustee in each recording 
office, if any, where the Indenture shall have been filed and/or recorded. 

Trustee Protected in Relying Upon Indenture, Etc. The indentures, opinions, certificates 
and other instruments provided for in the Indenture may be accepted by the Trustee as conclusive 
evidence of the facts and conclusions stated in the Indenture and shall be full warrant, protection, 
and authority to the Trustee for the release of property and the withdrawal of cash under the 
Indenture. 
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Successor Trustee as Trustee, Paying Agent and Bond Registrar. in the event of a 
change in the office of Trustee, the predecessor Trustee which has resigned or been removed 
shall cease to be Trustee under the Indenture and Registrar for the Bonds and Paying Agent for 
principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, and the successor Trustee shall become 
such Trustee, Registrar and Paying Agent for the Bonds. 

Trust Estate May Be Vested in Separate or Co-Trustee. It is the purpose of the Indenture 
that there shall be no violation of any law of any jurisdiction (including particularly the laws of 
the State) denying or restricting the right of banking corporations or associations to transact 
business as Trustee in such jurisdiction. It is recognized that in case of litigation under the 
Indenture, and in particular in case of the enforcement of remedies on Event of Default, or in 
case the Trustee deems that by reason of any present or future law of any jurisdiction it may not 
exercise any of the powers, rights, or remedies granted under the Indenture to the Trustee or hold 
title to the trust estate, as granted in the Indenture, or take any other action which may be 
desirable or necessary in connection therewith, it may be necessary that the Trustee appoint an 
additional individual or institution as a separate or co-trustee. The following provisions of the 
Indenture are adapted to these ends. 

In the event that the Trustee appoints an additional individual or institution as a separate 
or co-trustee, each and every remedy, power, right, claim, demand, cause of action, immunity, 
estate, title, interest and lien expressed or intended hereby to be exercised by or vested in or 
conveyed to the Trustee with respect thereto shall be exercisable by and vested in such separate 
or co-trustee, but only to the extent necessary to enable the separate or co-trustee to exercise such 
powers, rights and remedies, and every covenant and obligation necessary to the exercise thereof 
by such separate or co- trustee shall run to and be enforceable by either of them. 

Should any deed, conveyance or instrument in writing from the Issuer be required by the 
separate trustee or co-trustee so appointed by the Trustee for more fully and certainly vesting in 
and confirming to it such properties, rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations, any and all 
such deeds, conveyances and instruments in writing shall, on request of such trustee or co­
trustee, be executed, acknowledged and delivered by the Issuer. In case any separate trustee or 
co-trustee, or a successor to either, shall die, become incapable of acting, resign or be removed, 
all the estates, properties, rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of such separate trustee or 
co-trustee, so far as permitted by law, shall vest in and be exercised by the Trustee until the 
appointment of a new trustee or successor to such separate trustee or co-trustee. 

Annual Accounting. The Trustee shall prepare an annual accounting for each Bond Fund 
Year by the end of the month folIowing each such Bond Fund Year showing in reasonable detail 
all financial transactions relating to the funds and accounts held by the Trustee under the 
Indenture during the accounting period and the balance in any funds or accounts created by the 
Indenture as of the beginning and close of such accounting period, and shall mail th~ same to the 
Issuer, and to each Reserve Instrument Provider requesting the same. The Trustee shall also 
make available for inspection by any Registered Owner a copy of said annual accounting (with 
the names and addresses of Registered Owners receiving payment of debt service on the Bonds 
deleted therefrom) and shall mail the same if requested in writing to do so by Registered Owners 
of at least twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding to 
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the designee of said Owners specified in said written request at the address therein designated. 
On or before the end of the month following each Bond Fund Year, the Trustee shall, upon 
written request, provide to the Issuer and the Issuer's independent auditor representations as to 
the accuracy of the facts contained in the financial reports concerning the transactions described 
in the Indenture that were delivered by the Trustee during the Bond Fund Year just ended. 

Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law and subject to the provisions of the 
Indenture, the Issuer shall indemnify and save Trustee harmless against any liabilities it may 
incur in the exercise and performance of its powers and duties under the Indenture, other than 
those due to its own negligence or willful misconduct. 

Trustee's Right to Own and Deal in Bonds. The bank or trust company acting as Trustee 
under the Indenture, and its directors, officers, employees or agents, may in good faith buy, sell, 
own, hold and deal in any of the Bonds issued under the Indenture and secured by the Indenture, 
and may join in any action which any Bondholder may be entitled to take with like effect as if 
such bank or trust company were not the Trustee under the Indenture. 

Supplemental Indentures 

Supplemental Indentures Not Requiring Consent of Registered Owners, Security 
Instrument Issuers and Reserve Instrument Providers. The Issuer and the Trustee may, without 
the consent of any of the Registered Owners, or Reserve Instrument Providers, but with the 
consent of the Security Instrument Issuer and with notice to all Reserve Instrument Providers, 
enter into an indenture or indentures supplemental to the Indenture, as shall not be inconsistent 
with the terms and provisions of the Indenture, for anyone or more of the following purposes: 

(a) To provide for the issuance of Additional Bonds in accordance with the provisions 
of the Indenture; 

(b) To cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission in the Indenture; 

(c) To grant to or confer upon the Trustee for the benefit of the Registered Owners, any 
Security Instrument Issuers and any Reserve Instrument Providers any additional rights, 
remedies, powers or authority that may lawfully be granted to or conferred upon the Registered 
Owners or any of them which shall not adversely affect the interests of any Reserve Instrument 
Providers or Security Instrument Issuers without its consent; 

(d) To subject to the Indenture additional Revenues or other revenues, properties, 
collateral or security; 

(e) To provide for the issuance of the Bonds pursuant to a book-entry system or as 
uncertificated registered public obligations pursuant to the provisions of the Registered Public 
Obligations Act, Title 15, Chapter 7 of the Utah Code, or any successor provisions oflaw; 

(f) To make any change which shall not materially adversely affect (determined as if 
there were no Security Instrument in place) the rights or interests of the Owners of any 
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Outstanding Bonds, any Security Iilstrument Issuers or any Reserve Instrument Provider, 
requested or approved by a Rating Agency in order to obtain or maintain any rating on the Bonds 
or requested or approved by a Security Iilstrument Issuer or Reserve Instrument Provider in order 
to insure or provide other security for any Bonds; 

(g) If the Bonds affected by any change are rated by a Rating Agency, to make any 
change which does not result in a reduction of the rating applicable to any of the Bonds so 
affected, provided that if any of the Bonds so affected are secured by a Security Instrument, such 
change must be approved in writing by the related Security Instrument Issuer; 

(h) If the Bonds affected by any change are secured by a Security Instrument, to make 
any change approved in writing by the related Security Instrument Issuer, provided that if any of 
the Bonds so affected are rated by a Rating Agency, such change shall not result in a reduction of 
the rating applicable to any of the Bonds so affected; 

(i) Unless otherwise provided by a Supplemental Indenture authorizing a Series of 
Bonds, the designation of the facilities to constitute a Project by such Supplemental Indenture 
may be modified or amended if the Issuer delivers to the Trustee (1) a Supplemental Indenture 
designating the facilities to comprise the Project, (2) an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect 
that such amendment will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status (if applicable) or validity of 
the Bonds and (3) a certificate of the Issuer to the effect that such amendment will not adversely 
affect the Issuer's ability to comply with the provisions of the Indenture; and 

(j) To correct any references contained in the Indenture to provisions of the Act, the 
Code or other applicable provisions of law that have been amended so that the references in the 
Indenture are correct. 

Supplemental Indentures Requiring Consent of Registered Owners, Security Instrument 
Issuers and Reserve Instrument Providers; Waivers and Consents by Registered Owners 
Exclusive of Supplemental Indentures covered by the Indenture and subject to the terms and 
provisions contained in the Indenture, and not otherwise, the Registered Owners of 66 2/3% in 
aggregate Principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding shall have the right, from time to 
time, anything contained in 'the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, to (i) consent to and 
approve the execution by the Issuer and the Trustee of such other indenture or indentures 
supplemental to the Indenture as shall be deemed necessary and desirable by the Issuer for the 
purpose of modifying, altering, amending, adding to or rescinding, in any particular, any of the 
terms or provisions contained in the Indenture or in any Supplemental Indenture, or (ii) waive or 
consent to the taking by the Issuer of any action prohibited, or the omission by the Issuer of the 
taking of any action required, by any of the provisions of the Indenture or of any indenture 
supplemental to the Indenture; provided, however, that nothing in the Indenture contained shall 
pennit or be construed as permitting (a) an extension of the date that a Principal Installment is 
due at maturity or mandatory redemption or reduction in the principal amount of, or reduction in 
the rate of or extension of the time of paying of interest on, or reduction of any premium payable 
on the redemption of, any Bond, without the consent of the Registered Owner of such Bond, or 
(b) a reduction in the amount or extension of the time of any payment required by any Fund 
established under the Indenture applicable to any Bonds without the consent of the Registered 
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Owners of all the Bonds which would be affected by the action to be taken, or (c) a reduction in 
the aforesaid aggregate principal amount of Bonds, the Registered Owners of which are required 
to consent to any such waiver or Supplemental Indenture, or (d) affect the rights of the 
Registered Owners ofless than all Bonds then outstanding, without the consent of the Registered 
Owners of all the Bonds at the time Outstanding which would be affected by the action to be 
taken. In addition, no supplement to the Indenture shall modifY the rights, duties or immunities 
of the Trustee, without the written consent of the Trustee. If a Security Instrument or a Reserve 
Instrument is in effect with respect to any Series of Bonds Outstanding and if a proposed 
modification or amendment would affect such Series of Bonds, then, except as provided in the 
Indenture, neither the Indenture nor any Supplemental Indenture with respect to such Series of 
Bonds shall be modified or amended at any time without the prior written consent of the related 
Security Instrument Issuer or Reserve Instrument Provider, as applicable. 

Trustee Authorized to Join in Amendments and Supplements; Reliance on Counsel. The 
Trustee is authorized to join with the Issuer in the execution and delivery of any Supplemental 
Indenture or amendment permitted by of the Indenture and in so doing shall be-fully protected by 
an opinion of Counsel that such Supplemental Indenture or amendment is so permitted and has 
been duly authorized by the Issuer and that all things necessary to make it a valid and binding 
agreement have been done. 

Opinion of Counsel for Supplemental Indentures. Before the Issuer and the Trustee shall 
enter into any Supplemental Indenture pursuant to the Indenture, there shall have been delivered 
to the Trustee an opinion of Counsel stating that such Supplemental Indenture is authorized 
under the Indenture, and that such Supplemental Indenture will, upon the execution and delivery 
thereof, be valid and binding upon the Issuer in accordance with its terms. 

Discharge ofIndenture 

If the Issuer shall payor cause to be paid, or there shall be otherwise paid or provision for 
payment made, to or for the Registered Owners of the Bonds, the principal of and interest due or 
to become due thereon at the times and in the manner stipulated therein, and shall payor cause to 
be paid to the Trustee all sums of moneys due or to become due according to the provisions of 
the Indenture, and to all Security Instrument Issuers and all Reserve Instrument Providers all 
sums of money due or to become due according to the provisions of any Security Instrument 
Agreements, Reserve Instrument Agreements, as applicable, then these presents and the estate 
and rights hereby granted shall cease, terminate and be void, whereupon the Trustee shall cancel 
and discharge the lien of the Indenture, and release, assign and deliver unto the Issuer any and all 
the estate, right, title and interest in and to any and all rights assigned or pledged to the Trustee, 
held by the Trustee, or otherwise subject to the lien of the Indenture, except moneys or securities 
held by the Trustee for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, the payment of 
amounts pursuant to any Security Instrument Agreements or the payment of amounts pursuant to 
any Reserve Instrument Agreements. 

Any Bond shall be deemed to be paid within the meaning of the Indenture when payment 
of the principal of such Bond, plus interest thereon to the due date thereof (whether such due date 
be by reason of maturity or upon redemption as provided in the Indenture, or otherwise), either 
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(a) shall have been made or caused to have been made in accordance with the tenns thereof, or 
(b) shall have been provided by irrevocably depositing with or for the benefit of the Trustee, in 
trust and irrevocably setting aside exclusively for such payment, (i) moneys sufficient to make 
such payment, or (ii) Direct Obligations, maturing as to principal and interest in such amount and 
at such times as will insure the availability of sufficient moneys to make such payment, and all 
necessary and proper fees, compensation and expenses of the Trustee and any paying agent 
pertaining to the Bond with respect to which such deposit is made shall have been paid or the 
payment thereof provided for to the satisfaction of the Trustee. At such times as a Bond shall be 
deemed to be paid under the Indenture, as aforesaid, it shall no longer be secured by or entitled to 
the benefits of the Indenture, except for the purposes of any such payment from such moneys or 
Direct Obligations. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case of Bonds, which by their tenns may be 
redeemed prior to their stated maturity, no deposit under the immediately preceding Paragraph 
shall be deemed a payment of such Bonds as aforesaid until the Issuer shall have given the 
Trustee, in form satisfactory to the Trustee, irrevocable instructions: 

( a) stating the date when the principal of each such Bond is to be paid, whether at 
maturity or on a redemption date (which shall be any redemption date permitted hereby); 

(b) directing the Trustee to call for redemption pursuant to the Indenture any Bonds to 
be redeemed prior to maturity pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture; and 

(c) if the Bonds to be redeemed will not be redeemed within 90 days of such deposit, 
directing the Trustee to mail, as soon as practicable, in the manner prescribed by the Indenture, a 
notice to the Registered Owners of such Bonds and to each related Security Instrument Issuer 
that the deposit required by the Indenture has been made with the Trustee and that such Bonds 
are deemed to have been paid in accordance with the Indenture and stating the maturity or 
redemption date upon which moneys are to be available for the payment of the principal or 
redemption price, if applicable, on said Bonds as specified in Subparagraph 0 above. 

Any moneys so deposited with the Trustee as provided the Indenture may at the direction 
of the Issuer also be invested and reinvested in Direct Obligations, maturing in the amounts and 
times as set forth in the Indenture, and all income from all Direct Obligations in the hands of the 
Trustee pursuant to the Indenture which is not required for the payment of the Bonds and interest 
thereon with respect to which such moneys shall have been so deposited, shall be deposited in 
the Bond Fund as and when realized and collected for use and application as are other moneys 
deposited in that fund; provided, however, that before any excess moneys shall be deposited in 
the Bond Fund, the Trustee shall first obtain a written verification from a certified public 
accountant that the moneys remaining on deposit with the Trustee and invested in Direct 
Obligations after such transfer to the Bond Fund shall be sufficient in amount to pay principal 
and interest on the Bonds when due and payable. 

If the Bonds to be defeased pursuant to the Indenture are Variable Rate Bonds, the Issuer 
must receive a prior written confirmation from the Rating Agency to the effect that such 
defeasance will not result in a downgrade or withdrawal of the rating on the Bonds. 
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Notwithstanding any provision of any other Article of the Indenture which may be 
contrary to the provisions of the Indenture, all moneys or Direct Obligations set aside and held in 
trust pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture for the payment of Bonds (including interest 
thereon) shall be applied to and used solely for the payment of the particular Bonds (including 
interest thereon) with respect to which such moneys or Direct Obligations have been so set aside 
in trust. 

Anything in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, if moneys or Direct 
Obligations have been deposited or set aside with the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture for the 
payment of Bonds and such Bonds shall not have in fact been actually paid in full, no 
amendment to the provisions of the Indenture shall be made without the consent of the 
Registered Owner of each Bond affected thereby. 

Applicable Law 

The Indenture shall be governed exclusively by the applicable laws of the State. 
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APPENDIXC 

FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

Upon the issuance of the Series 2017 Bonds, Gilmore & Bell, P.c., Bond Counsel to the Agency, 
proposes to issue its approving opinion in substantially the following form. 

December 20,2017 

Utah Infrastructure Agency 
Murray, Utah 

ZB, National Association, dba Zions Bank 
Corporate Trust Department 
Salt Lake City, Utah 

Re: Utah Infrastructure Agency $73,905,000 Tax-Exempt Telecommunications 
Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 A and $3,500,000 Taxable 
Telecommunications Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B 

We have acted as bond counsel to the Utah Infrastructure Agency (the "Issuer") in 
connection with the issuance by the Issuer of its $73,905,000 Tax-Exempt Telecommunications 
Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 20l7A (the "Series 20l7A Bonds") and $3,500,000 
Taxable Telecommunications Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B (the "Series 2017B 
Bonds" and, together with the Series 2017A Bonds, the "Series 2017 Bonds"). The Series 2017 
Bonds are being issued pursuant to (a) a resolution of the Issuer adopted on October 16,2017, 
(b) a General Indenture of Trust dated as of December 1,2017 (the "General Indenture"), as 
supplemented by a First Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated as of December 1, 2017 (the 
"First Supplemental Indenture" and together with the General Indenture, the "Indenture"), each 
between the Issuer and ZB, National Association, dba Zions Bank, as trustee. 

We have examined the law and such certified proceedings and other documents as we 
deem necessary to render this opinion. As to questions of fact material to our opinion, we have 
relied upon the certified proceedings and other certifications of public officials furnished to us 
without undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation. Our opinion is limited to 
the matters expressly set forth herein, and we express no opinion concerning any other matters. 

Based on our examination and the foregoing, we are of the opinion as of the date hereof 
and under existing law, as follows: 

1. The Indenture has been authorized, executed and delivered by the Issuer, 
constitutes a valid and binding obligation of the Issuer and creates a valid lien on the Revenues 
(as defined in the Indenture) and the other amounts pledged thereunder for the security of the 
Series 2017 Bonds. 



2. The Series 2017 Bonds are valid and binding special obligations of the Issuer 
payable solely from the Revenues and other amounts pledged therefor in the Indenture, and the 
Series 2017 Bonds do not constitute a general obligation indebtedness of the Issuer within the 
meaning of any State of Utah constitutional provision or statutory limitation, nor a charge against 
the general credit of the Issuer. 

3. The interest on the Series 2017 A Bonds (including any original issue discount 
properly allocable to an owner thereof) (i) is excludable from gross income for federal income 
tax purposes and (ii) is not an item of tax preference for purposes of computing the federal 
alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations, but is taken into account in 
determining adjusted current earnings for the purpose of computing the alternative minimum tax 
imposed on certain corporations. The opinions set forth in this paragraph are subject to the 
condition that the Issuer complies with all requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended, that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Series 2017 A Bonds in order 
that interest thereon be, or continue to be, excludable from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes. The Issuer has covenanted to comply with all of these requirements. Failure to 
comply with certain of these requirements may cause the interest on the Series 2017 A Bonds to 
be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of 
the Series 2017 A Bonds. 

4. The interest on the Series 2017B Bonds is included in gross income for federal 
income tax purposes, in accordance with an owner's normal method of accounting. 

5. The interest on the Series 2017 Bonds is exempt State of Utah individual income 
taxes. 

We express no opinion herein regarding the accuracy, completeness or sufficiency of the 
Official Statement or any other offering material relating to the Series 2017 Bonds. 

The rights of the holders of the Series 2017 Bonds and the enforceability thereof and of 
the documents identified in this opinion may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, 
reorganization, arrangement, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium, and other similar laws 
affecting creditors' rights heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent applicable, and their 
enforcement may be subject to the application of equitable principles and the exercise of judicial 
discretion in appropriate cases. 

This opinion is given as of its date, and we assume no obligation to revise or supplement 
this opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may come to our attention or any changes 
in law that may occur after the date of this opinion. 

Respectfully submitted, 
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APPENDIXD 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

This Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the ''Disclosure Undertaking''), is executed and 
delivered by the Utah Infrastructure Agency (the "Agency"), in connection with the issuance by 
the Agency of its $73,905,000 Tax-Exempt Telecommunications Revenue and Refunding Bonds, 
Series 20l7A (the "Series 2017A Bonds"), and $3,500,000 Taxable Telecommunications 
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B (the "Series 2017B Bonds" and, together with the 
Series 2017 A Bonds, the "Series 2017 Bonds"). The Series 2017 Bonds are being issued 
pursuant to a General Indenture of Trust dated as of December 1, 2017, as supplemented by a 
First Supplemental Indenture of Trust, dated as of December 1,2017 (together, the "Indenture"), 
between the Agency and ZB, National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"). In connection 
with the aforementioned transaction, the Agency covenants and agrees as follows: 

Section 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Undertaking. This Disclosure Undertaking is 
being executed and delivered by the Agency for the benefit of the Bondholders of the Series 
2017 Bonds and in order to assist the Underwriter in complying with the Rule (as each such term 
is defined below). The Agency represents that it will be the only obligated person with respect to 
the Series 2017 Bonds at the time the Bonds are delivered to the Underwriter and that no other 
person is expected to become so committed at any time after issuance of the Series 2017 Bonds. 

Section 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Indenture or 
parenthetically defined herein, which apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure 
Undertaking unless otherwise defined in this Section, the following capitalized terms shall have 
the following meanings: 

"Annual Report" means the Annual Report provided by the Agency pursuant to, and as 
described in Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Undertaking. 

"Dissemination Agent" shall mean any person or entity engaged by the Agency to 
provide the reports and notices required hereunder and which has been designated in writing by 
the Agency as the Dissemination Agent. Written notice of the engagement and designation of a 
Dissemination Agent shall be filed by the Agency with the Trustee. The initial Dissemination 
Agent shall be the Agency. 

"Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5 of this Disclosure 
Undertaking. 

"MSRB" shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, the address of which is 
currently 1300 I Street, NW, Suite 1000, Washington D.C. 20005; Telephone (202) 838-1500; 
the current website address of which is www.msrb.org and www.emma.msrb.org (for municipal 
disclosures and market data). 

"Official Statement" shall mean the Official Statement of the Agency dated December 
13,2017, relating to the Series 2017 Bonds. 



"Rule" shall mean Rule ISc2-12(b)(S) adopted by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time 
to time. 

"Underwriter" shall mean KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc., as the original underwriter of 
the Series 2017 Bonds and required to comply with the Rule in connection with the offering of 
the Series 2017 Bonds. 

Section 3. Provision of Annual Reports. 

(a) The Agency shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent, not later than 210 days 
after the end of each fiscal year of the Agency (presently June 30) commencing with the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2018, provide to the MSRB in electronic format an Annual Report which is 
consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Undertaking. Not later than 
fifteen (IS) business days prior to said date, the Agency shall provide the Annual Report to the 
Dissemination Agent and the Trustee (if the Dissemination Agent is other than the Trustee). The 
Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a 
package, and may cross-reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure 
Undertaking; provided that the audited financial statements of the Agency may be submitted 
separately from the balance of the Annual Report. If the Agency's fiscal year changes, it shall 
give notice of such change in the same manner as for Listed Event under Section S( e). 

(b) If by ten (10) business days prior to the date specified in Section 3(a) for 
providing the Annual Report to the MSRB, the Dissemination Agent has not received a copy of 
the Annual Report, the Dissemination Agent shall contact the Agency to determine if the Agency 
is in compliance with Section 3(a). 

(c) If the Dissemination Agent is unable to verify that the Annual Report has been 
provided to the MSRB by the dates required in Sections 3( a), the Dissemination Agent shall, in a 
timely manner, send a notice of failure to file the Annual Report to the MSRB in electronic 
format. 

(d) The Dissemination Agent shall: 

(i) determine each year prior to the dates for providing the Annual Report, the 
website address to which the MSRB directs the annual reports to be submitted; and 

(ii) send a notice to the Agency certifying that the Annual Report has been 
provided pursuant to this Disclosure Undertaking, stating the date it was provided, and 
listing the website address to which it was provided. 

Section 4. Content of Annual Reports. (a) The Annual Report of the Agency shall 
contain or incorporate by reference the following: 

(i) A copy of the Agency's annual financial statements prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and audited by a certified 
public accountant or a firm of certified public accounts. If the Agency's audited annual 
financial statements are not available by the time specified in Section 3(a) above, 
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unaudited financial statements will be provided as part of the Annual Report of the 
Agency and audited financial statements will be provided when and if available. 

(ii) An update of the financial and operating information in the Official 
Statement relating to the Agency of the type contained in tables under the headings: 

NET REVENUES OF THE AGENCY 
-Revenue and Expense Details 
-Customer Concentration 

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2017 BONDS 
-Debt Service Coverage for the Series 2017 Bonds 

THE AGENCY - Financial Summaries and Budget 
-Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Net Position 
-Statement of Net Position 
-Budget 

THE NETWORK - Intersection ofUIA Network and UTOPIA Network 
-Combined UTOPIAlUIA Networks - Customers, Take-Rate and Chum Rate 

(b) Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other 
documents, including official statements of debt issues of the Agency, as appropriate or related 
public entities, which have been submitted to the MSRB or the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. If the document included by reference is a final official statement, it must be 
available from the MSRB. The Agency, as appropriate, shall clearly identify each such other 
document so incorporated by the reference. All of the items contained in the Annual Report 
shall be submitted in a pdf word-searchable format. 

Section 5. Reporting of Significant Events. 

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section Sea), the Agency shall give or cause to 
be given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following Listed Events with respect to the 
Series 2017 Bonds in a timely manner but not more than ten (10) Business Days after the event: 

(i) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(ii) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial 
difficulties; 

(iii) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 
difficulties; 

(iv) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

(v) Adverse tax opinions or the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of 
proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 
S701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the 
Series 2017 Bonds or other material events affecting the tax status of the Series 2017 
Bonds; 
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(vi) Defeasances; 

(vii) Tender offers; 

(viii) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar proceedings; or 

(ix) Rating changes. 

(b) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5(b), the Agency shall give or cause to 
be given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following Listed Events with respect to the 
Series 2017 Bonds in a timely manner not more than ten (10) Business Days after the Listed 
Event, if material: 

(i) Mergers, consolidations, acquisitions, the sale of all or substantially all of 
the assets of the obligated persons or their termination; 

(ii) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of the name 
of a trustee; 

(iii) Non-payment related defaults; 

(iv) Modifications to the rights of the owners of the Series 2017 Bonds; 

(v) Series 2017 Bond calls; or 

(vi) Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Series 
2017 Bonds. 

(c) Whenever the Agency obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event 
under Section 5(b), whether because of a notice from the Trustee or otherwise, the Agency shall 
as soon as possible determine if such event would be material under applicable federal securities 
laws. 

(d) If the Agency has determined that knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event 
under Section 5(b) would be material under applicable federal securities laws, the Agency shall 
promptly notify the Dissemination Agent in writing. Such notice shall instruct the Dissemination 
Agent to report the occurrence pursuant to subsection (t). 

(e) If the Agency determines that the Listed Event under Section 5(b) would not be 
material under applicable federal securities laws, the Agency shall so notify the Dissemination 
Agent in writing and instruct the Dissemination Agent not to report the occurrence pursuant to 
subsection (t). 

(1) If the Dissemination Agent has been instructed by the Agency to report the 
occurrence of a Listed Event, the Dissemination Agent shall file a notice of such occurrence with 
the MSRB in an electronic format in a timely manner not more than ten (10) Business Days after 
the Listed Event. 
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Section 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The Agency's obligations under 
this Disclosure Undertaking shall tenninate upon the earlier of: (i) the date of legal defeasance, 
prior redemption or payment in full of all of the Series 2017 Bonds; (ii) the date that the Agency 
shall no longer constitute an "obligated person" within the meaning of the Rule; or (iii) the date 
on which those portions of the Rule which require this written Disclosure Undertaking are held 
to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction in a non-appealable action, have been repealed 
retroactively or otherwise do not apply to the Series 2017 Bonds. 

Section 7. Dissemination Agent. The Agency may, from time to time, appoint or 
engage a Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure 
Undertaking, and may discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a 
successor Dissemination Agent. 

Section 8. Amendment: Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provIsion of this 
Disclosure Undertaking, the Agency may amend this Disclosure Undertaking and any provision 
of this Disclosure Undertaking may be waived, provided that the following conditions are 
satisfied: 

(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3(a), 4, 
5(a) or 5(b), it may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises 
from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature or 
status of an "obligated person" (as defined in the Rule) with respect to the Series 2017 
Bonds, or the type of business conducted; 

(b) The undertaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, 
in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the 
requirements of the Rule at the time of the original issuance of the Series 2017 Bonds, 
after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well. as any 
change in circumstances; and 

(c) The amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by the Bondholders of the 
Series 2017 Bonds in the same manner as provided in the Indenture for amendments to 
the Indenture with the consent of Bondholders, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of 
nationally recognized bond counsel, materially impair the interests of the Bondholders of 
the Series 2017 Bonds. 

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Undertaking, 
the Agency shall describe such amendment in the next Annual Report of the Agency, and shall 
include, as applicable, a narrative explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver and its 
impact on the type (or in the case of a change of accounting principles, on the presentation) of 
financial information or operating data being presented by the Agency, as applicable. In 
addition, if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing 
financial statements, (i) notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed 
Event under Section 5(a), and (ii) the Annual Report for the year in which the change is made 
should present a comparison (in narrative form and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) 
between the financial statements as prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and 
those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles. 

D-5 



Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Undertaking shall be 
deemed to prevent the Agency from disseminating any other information, using the means of 
dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Undertaking or any other means of communication, or 
including any other information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, 
in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Undertaking. If the Agency chooses to 
include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in 
addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Undertaking, the Agency shall 
have no obligation under this Disclosure Undertaking to update such information or include it in 
any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. 

Section 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the Agency or the Dissemination 
Agent to comply with any provision of this Disclosure Undertaking, any Bondholder of the 
Series 2017 Bonds may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including 
seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the Agency or Dissemination 
Agent, as the case may be, to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Undertaking. A 
default under this Disclosure Undertaking shall not be deemed an "event of default" under the 
Indenture, and the sole remedy under this Disclosure Undertaking in the event of any failure of 
the Agency or the Dissemination Agent to comply with this Disclosure Undertaking shall be an 
action to compel performance. 

Section II. Duties Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent. The 
Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure 
Undertaking, and the Agency agrees to indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, 
directors, employees and agents, harmless against any loss, expense and liabilities which it may 
incur arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties hereunder, 
including the costs and expenses (including attorneys' fees) of defending against any claim of 
liability, but excluding liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent's gross negligence or willful 
misconduct. 

The Dissemination Agent shall have no duty with respect to the content of any 
disclosures or notice made pursuant to the terms hereof. The Dissemination Agent shall have no 
duty or obligation to review or verify any information, disclosures or notices provided to it by 
the Agency and shall not be deemed to be acting in any fiduciary capacity for the Agency, the 
Registered Owners of the Series 2017 Bonds or any other party. The Dissemination Agent shall 
have no responsibility for the Agency's failure to report to the Dissemination Agent a Listed 
Event or a duty to determine the materiality thereof. The Dissemination Agent shall have no duty 
to determine or liability for failing to determine whether the Agency has complied with this 
Disclosure Undertaking. The Dissemination Agent may conclusively rely upon certifications of 
the Issuer at all times. The obligations of the Agency under this Section shall survive resignation 
orremoval of the Dissemination Agent and payment of the Series 2017 Bonds. 

Section 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Undertaking shall inure solely to the 
benefit of the Agency, the Dissemination Agent, the Underwriter and the Bondholders from time 
to time of the Series 2017 Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 
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Section 13. Counterparts. This Disclosure Undertaking may be executed in several 
counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the 
same instrument. 

Date: December 20,2017. 

ATTEST: 

By: _____ ---=-_____ _ 
Secretary-Treasurer 

UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 

By: _____ -=---:-_____ _ 
Chair 
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COMMUNICAT!ONS SERVICE C01'!TRACf 

This CllII1munlcatloos Service Connct (the "Service Contract'') Is entered Into PS 
of this I" day ofMa)', 2011, by and among the UtaJl'lnfi'Jslruclure Agen9Y ("UlA',),.n 
InterlocPl cooperative IIIId sop.,.te legal ,,",ity, body politic and oorporate and • political 
subdivision of the StateofUt.h. organi7.Od under the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Title I I, 
Chapter 13, Utab Code Annotated 1953, as amonded, and Brigbam City, Centerville City, 
La)'lon City. Lindon City, Midvale City, Murtay, City, City Of DIem, and West Valley 
City (Individually the "City," and col!~lvely,the "Cities"), each a municipal corporation 
and a political subdivision of the State of Utah (UIA and the Cities are sometimes 
referred to individually as a "Party" and collectively as "Parties" herein). 

RECITALS 

1. Pursuant to Section 10·8·i4, Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended, 
cities may con8l1'Uct, maintain, and operate telecommunication lines and cablQ television 
lines. 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of 1he Interlocal Cooperation Act, TItle II, 
Chapler 13, Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended (the "lntcrJocaI Act"), 'cities may 
exercise and enjoy joindy with other Ditles aDy Power, privileges or authority exercised or 
capable ofexetclse by. cily. 

3. The lnterlocal Aet pennlts cities to make'the most efficient use of their 
power by enabling them to coopinte with other cities, on the basis of mutual advantage 
and thereby 10 provide scrviees and tlIcilities in a manner and under forms of 
BOvemmenllll organlzation that will accord b~ with geographic, econ!)l1llc, population 
and other factors inflUDllcing the needs of developmont of local communities and will 
provide the benefit of ,economy of scale, economic developmen~· and utilization of 
naturill resources for the overall promotion of the seneral welfare of the, State of Utah. 

4. Pursuant to the Interlooal Aet the Cities orJlllllized UIA to provide for tbe 
acquisition. construction, and Installation of telecommunication. lines and cable 
lel.vl.lon iines together with related improvements and facilities (the "ImproVements") 
for the purpose of IlOnnecting properties within the Cities to the Network (JS herein 
defined), all of which shall directly 0/' indirectly beoefit each of the Cities. 

5, U1A is a separate ie~~1 entity, body pOlkic and corporate and a political 
subdivision of the State of Utah regularly created, established, orpniECd and existing 
under and by virtue of the provisions of the Interloca\ ACt and of the Constitution of tlte 
Stale of Utah. 

6. Through UIA, the Cities ire desirous to wolf< together cooperatively to 
provide their residents with tho opportunity to connoet to the Network and each City has 
determined that there is a need within that City to provide the Connection Services (os 
herein defined). Based on tlte Feasibility Report (as herein defined), the Cities anticipate 
thJl the Service Fees (as herein defined) charpd by the Cities to the end users through 



their ComllllDlicoIiuns Enterpr!te. (as herein defined) will be sufficient to satisfy their 
obligations hereunder. 

7. Section 11.\3.21' oflho Interlocal AQI provlcles \bat the Cltios may share 
tholr taxes or OIlIer revenuas with ono .nathO/' fbr the purpose. of BCCompllsblnl their 
objectives lIS sot fbrth in an In_local .g~cnt, provided that each of the Cities 
complies with the roqui ... mentr of$ection 11-13-202.S oflhc Inlcrlocai ACt. 

8, In ordor to _ura thai the Cities Oolloctively meet !heir obligations 
hereunder 10 UIA, each City desires 10 p1edac 11$ Pranchi~ Tax Revenues 10 doC Iimilod 
extont providod ha'ein, 10 ac;complbh the Cities' 1l\1IIU&I . objcctlvc' of roc;iving 
Connedion S«VfCeI (u helcln deBnad). 

9, II is the intealion of the Pllitics that the Improvements to provide tile 
Connection Services be operated *Id managed for tile mutual bctIeflt of !he lW1ies and 
!hilt the Cltloa Will pay Service Peas to VIA calcUlaled in ICCOI'dance with Sectloa 3.2 of 
ibis Service Con\nl:L The '8I1IOII1IIs paid by Ibe CltillS heteundcr <10 not constitute a 
purolwc of &II)' Uloll or facilities owned by VIA, and .... made Jol~ly In aonskleradon 
for the ConnectioRl S.,.."lces provided by UIA to the Citica. 

10. The Connections Services provided under this Serviee Contract are not 
Cable Television Service. or Public Telocommunications SClVices as dofillecl in the 
Municipal Cable Television or Publio TeleoommuniCllions Services A.cl, Thtc .10, 
Chap1llr 18, Utah Code Annotated 19S1, II amended (the ''TeiCl'l.lmmunicatians Act"). 
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· AOREEMI!NT 
In consideration of the Conn~lion Scrvioc herem provided, the benefit the Cities 

shall re<:cive individually and u a group In connecting end users within the Cities 10 the 
Network Bnd the mutual covenants contained herein. the Parties agn:e lIS follows: 
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ARTICLE I 

DBl'INITlONS 
. . 

The following Ierms, whether In the singular or In the plural, when lIaed herein 
and in the exhibits hereto, shall have the moanings sot forlh below: 

"Annual Budget" means the InIdgel adopted by UIA. 

"Capi1al Costs" means all Clipil,1 costs relllled ·10 the Impro~menl:l incurred by 
UlA In any psrtiuuler Filcal YO$! or period \0 .which said ICI'III la applicable or chargos 
made therefor during BUch Fiscal Year or period, lnoluding amounts set. aside In reserves 
for the payment of Capital Costs, Capital Costs include, without duplication, (8) the 
payment of allY obligations Inouned· by UIA 10 finance Dr refinance the costs of tho 
Improvements; (b) amounls required to be deposited fi'om time to time into required 
reserves, and <c) all otlier "'pita) costs (determined in ~nce with gcnmaJlYlICCepkld 
accountilll: principles) of the Improvem..,t •. 

"Cities" mDIllS collectively all cities that we participants in UIA and that have 
emered Inlo this SeM/lce Contrici. 

"Communications Enterprise" means the OIlterpriSC established by eaowh City 
PUl'$uant to the Uniform Fiscal Pl'(lCO!dures Act fot Utah Cili .. , Title 10, Chapter 6, Utah 
Code Anno\lllled ·1953, as amended, 10 facililale the providing of .high speed 
communiclllions sorvlcea ihrougb the Network 10 ~ew end users within the City pumant 
to this Service ConIl1\ll. 

"Conneciion Services" means the wholesale servicas prOVided by UlA to _h 
City pursuant to this Service Contract wborcby end users within _h City.ha¥c ~ to 
UIA Improvements through which they mall contract with private providers to receive tile 
Cable TelovisiOll Services and Public Telecomlllunication Services (as those terms ere 
defined In the Telecommunications Act) provided thr. the Notwork. The !Grm 
Connection Services includes Comactlon Services CIpaoiI)I and is m_ pertloularly 
describoclln Bxhlblt A attached heretct and 1000l)loJQd ~n. . 

"ConnllQtion Services Capacity" maans the access rights 10 III)d capacity in lIIe 
Network. 

"Feasibility Re~· means the feaslllility report prepared by Design NIne and 
dated Ootober ,. 2010. with respect to the eonstruction of the bnprovemenlll and liIe 
sufficienoy oltho Service Fees to meet llUluall)' the UrA Revonuo Requirement. 

"Flseal Year" means a period commencing on July I and ending on the next 
suc~ing June 30. 

"Pranchlse TalC ReValues" mops all fr/lllQbiso tall revcnuca received by a City 
pursuantto Title 10, Chaptet I, Part 3. Utah Code Annotated 19S3, as amended. 
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"Improvements" means those facilities, improvements, and access, lease, use· 
andlor Cllpeeily rights aequlred, constructed. lIIdIor installed, operated and maintalned by 
UIA to provide Connection Services 10 tlte Cities pursuant to this Service Contract, as 
morc l\IlIy dcscrlbod In Exhibit B Itt.C~ed hereto, and incorporated herein. 

"NCIWork" means the UTOPIA adYlnced communications fiber optic to the 
premises open accw communications network.. 

"Operating Contingelll'Y" mIllIS 1/1 unpllllMd event or clJclllllBtance, I 5erles of 
events or cbcumstuces, or any restriclion or condition impo&ed by any govotnlJlenlal 
authority whieh reduces l/Id m'lorillly 1Idv~ alfccu _ 10 the ImproYelllellb. 

"Operation and Mainten8llllC ~ .... II1C8IIS "I cx"enscsreasonably Incurred 
by UIA in connection wit/! the operation and maintenanco of the Improvements, whether 
illC\lmd by UIA or paid 10 any other entity pursuIIIIl to COIIIraet or otherwise, necessary 
10 keep the ImprovemenlB in efficient opcraling ·condltion. includln. cost of audits 
hereinafter required. payment of promotional and marketing CXpcnlles and rQ) C5IaIC 
brokerage fees, payment of proml"m' for insurance, and, generally all ClqICD!IeS, 

exClusive of depreciation (Including depreciation ~llIted expen", of any Joint vCIlture) 
which under generally accePted accounting practices are properl)' allocable 10 operation 
and maintenance; however. onl)' such cxpcnlll. as arc relSOllsbly and properly necessary 
to the efficient operation and maintenance of tile Improvemcnl$ shall be tn~lIIdod. 

"Revenues" moahs all Scrvico: Fees and other reYeI1ues, fees, InCOOlc, rents, and 
receipts rec:oived or earned by U1A under this Service Contract. together with all Interest 
earned by and DIOIIe)'I derived Jiom lite salc ofinveotmenl$ in the relotod lUnda thereof. 

"ScrvIt:e COIIIDct" __ lhiJ CommuIIIcaliDll8 Senl..c Conlreot dated as of 
October 1,2010, as II may bUlllCllded 110m lOne III time io acc:crdanco wid! SecIion 5.15 
herein. 

"Scryice Fees" IIIOaIlI all f'CCI charced by each of 1he Cities III the end \UClII 

within the bouadIIrtes of eaQ/! such CIty. A <kII1gnaIcd portion of the Servit:e Fees of 
each City shall be payable III UIA In COII!idCl'lltlon fur the Connection Services provided 
. by VIA to that City pursuant to Ihis Service Contract The designated portion of tho 
Service Fccs shall be caloulated and paid pursulllt 10 Article 1\1 of this Servloc Co~tnIClt. 
Service Fccs do nollnclude ally Franchise Tax Rovenues. 

"UIA" mean. the UllIb InffastruCIIIIVAgenoy, ueparate legal entity. body, palltio 
end corporate and a political aubdlvJslon of the Stato of Utah. croated ""d",lhe Interlocel 
Act. UlA is separate tom CI!Ch of the Citl ... thai ercalCd it. .. 

MUlA Revenue Requ~t" mean. the BUIll of the Operation and Malnb:r'l8noc 
~ and !he Caplllli CQI\U of utA dI.mng each Fitcal Yea 01' other ~ 
period. . 

"Vnccmtrollablo Pon:es" mC&nl any _ beyond the control of tIIo P.rty 
affiocted, including. but not limltod to. fioilure of faoilltles, flood. earthcruake. storm, 
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lightening, fire, epidemic, Will", rioC, cillU disturbances, labor disturbance. IIIboragc, I\Ild 
restrainl by 001111 or public auihorily. 
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ARTICLE II 

CONNECTION SIlRVICBS 

Section 2.1 COnD!Ction Seryipes. UIA shall· provide to the Cities and the 
Cities shall receive from UIA, Cooncction Services, Including ·Connec:tlon Servicc 
Capacil)'. sufficient 10 allow not less thlll1 the total number of end U91:rs within eaCh City 
as set forth In B'l.bibil C attached hereto and inaDrpQratcd herein. to connocl to tbe 
Network. In the event a City de!ermino.to provide Connecllon Services to more than tho 
number of end Uselll allocated 10 it as set filr{b in Bxh;bll C. it shall submit to UlA a 
written propoSllI. requesting additional Connection Service Capacity 110m UIA. Said 
proposalshal\ specifY !he total additiOl'\al number of GIld users to be provided Connection 
ServIces and Ihe dille on which tho City requests such capacity to be elrectiv.. UlA shall 
eccept or reject saId proposal wIthin t1l1een (I') days fi'om Ibe date It receivod the 
proposal. 

Section 2.2 Avallabllltv. UIA shall provide continuous Connection Servic •• 
barring only emergency or scheduled downtime. curtailments. and Operating 
Contingencies. 
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ARTICLEm 

PAYMENT FOR CONNECTION SBRVICF,s 

Section 3.1 petmnlnatlon otPaymenl In.~onsiderlllion fur the provldlnll of 
Connection Services by UIA, each City shall pay III UlA tiJr04ch Fiscal YCIl'j iflllon di/C 
and owing, 95% of irs S_illC Pees ebarged by tbe City during said Fisc.ol Yell. to be 
paid and remillCd to UIA on a mombly basis In IICCOI'IIaIIIIC with SectIon 3.3. Such 
Service Pees sbaU only be due to UIA from each City ifBDd wh~ such City is \JI'Qvldcd 
with Connection SDrVieOI and the City INu aotuaIly ohatpd SClfYlce Fec:o to nd """'" 
BaclI ~ sball ehqe ,II end IIIetI Servlco Poes through hi CommunlcetionJ I!nIerprIse 
and lhell renrit Mid Service Peel to UIA on I monthly basis and in 1JI;COI'd_ witb 
Section 5.12. 

SectIon 3.2 Qbliptjon Is Ablolulp. Subject to the provilkmJ of Section 3.3 
hereof limiting the SO\ll1leS of payment ~undcr, each City's obliptions III pay Scrvk:e 
Pees to UI.... Ibr Connection Services purSIIM!. to thil Article !JI shall be ilmlocab~. 
ab~olu. and uncondltional and shall not be lubject to any reduction, whethor by delUse, 
reooupment, counten;l,im or oftiat or otherwiae. and shill not be conditioned upon the 
construction, pcrfunnance or non-JICI fonllAnec IIf the rmprovemenrs or UIA, the remedy 
for non·performance being Iimillld to mlllldamu5. specific performahllC or equitable 
remedy. Notwithstanding the foregOing. It Is not intended that the Cities by !hit Sarvl4:e 
Contract assume any obligatillD or liability as a 8u~rantor. cndors~r, surety, or nlherwi~ 
with respect to lilly obligations i~ by UIA willi respect to the Improvements. 

Sl!Ctlon ).3 S!!S!cJa! Umhpl Obl\g!!on. EadI City II&tCeI to pay .the Scrvico 
Fees du~ to UIA for Conl1CCllon Servfc:es in monthly iMIIIlments. Subjecllo sec.lon 3,' 
hetein. each CIIy's obligations to illite monthly pIIymen15 PUmJaDt to litis SccIIon 3.3 
shall QOIlS/ilUw 1/1 obIla"IOII Pll)'llble solely frmn Sc:rvIoc Fees. In no event nil tbc 
obIigallons of a City hc~der be conslrucd as a general obltplion or indcblednea of 
ChI( Cil)' wi""n the mC4llina of Illy <:OII$tltutional or SIIIUfOry limitation or provision or 
payable from lid vaIol'I!III proport;y taxOi oftl1&t City. The Plrtie. IICJcnowlcdae IIIICI qn:e 
\lull such pa)'lllCllu lIIall be made 011\ of \he CII\el'prbe IIInd Ilstabllshed with reapec:t to 
eaeh City'. CommUDications Enterprise. I!a~ monthly Instanmiml chall be due and 
payable by tho Cities to UIA not later than tho fifteeatb day of the nex! succ:cccling 
month. A filial &QCOUIltl"ll orall trIIIslICI\onl between UIA IIlId the Cities In each Fiscal 
Year shall be Rlldercd to tblS Cltic:s by IDA on III' before the 90th day of th" lIIICCecding 
Fiscal Y CIII'. The final a<Xiounling sha/I specifY tbe 8Jn0Ull1, if an),. which Cities must pay 
to IDA to reconc:ile total monthly I*Ymcnts wltb actuallll\lOlllll8 due VIA with S~Io. 
Pees indicated by 11\ Llbderpl)'lnont or Ol'!!rpayment to be made by 1110 CI~ or UIA 
raspectiYely. which lIIIOunt shaU be payable to UIA no Iller than 30 days after the receipt 
of the lInal 8C<lOUding. 

Section 3.4 Pcfabilin I'mnoo!t. If a City's Service F_ ere not paid 11\ tull on 
Dr bofon: the oiose of bwinoss 0fI1ho fifteonIh day ·of the IIlOII1b in wbich said Peos IQ'O 

due, an I_cst clIIIIJIO will be made at the rate or ten pcn:ent (\0%) pol annum or the 
maximum I'IIIc of inIcreIt legally cNrpbIe, l'I'hIoMver IS leis. If all or. ponian of the 
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Service Fees remain unpaid SIIbsC'quonl to .lhe faftemtIJ day of !he llIonth in whleh tho 
Pees are due, U1A may, upon giving thirty (3D) days' edvaroce written notice calculated 
from the date of receipt of such notice by !he applicableOty. discontinue Connection 
Servioes to said City unless. and may refuse to resume said services to said City until, the 
delinquent installment Iuu; been paid. From IIId after the etJeclive date of sucb aotlllC, 
UIA shall nQl provide Conneelion Servioes to said City. 

Section 3.5 Use ofl'rancbiseTa1c Revenue5. 

(a) The Cities engllged Design Nine to ptCpare the Feasibillty·Roporl 
with rC5pCCt to the constRIction of the Improvements.and the sufficiency of the 
Service Pees of all of the Cilies to /llGCt tile VIA RiveRuc Requlromcnt. The 
Feasibility Report demonstrates that the combined City Revenues of.1I Cities are 
expected to equal nQl less th!U1 the UIA Revenuc Requ lrement. However. in the 
ovont and to the extent there shall be a sbortfl!1I in SUch City Reven1lll.S (the 
"Shortfall"), such that UIA shall not bave suffioient moneys to pay the UIA 
Revenue Requirement when due, eaCh City hereby pledges and agre'"' to lend jtg 

Franc:bise Tax Revonues in the maximum annual principal amount alklc;ated to 
caeh City as set forth in §x!!ibit p attached hereto and incorporated herein. On or 
prior to eac:b January 1 and July I commencing January .I, 2012, UIA shall 
dC\lOIltIinc: 

(i) the UTA Revenue Requirement due on the next succeeding 
Mareh IS or Septembct IS, as applicable, and 

(ii) the lIDIoun! of the Rovenues VIA n:asonably believes ",ill 
be available for payment of the UJA Revenue Requirement on said 
M....,h IS Dr September 15. In addition, UJA shall, on or prior to each 
JQluar)' IS or July IS. lIS IIPplf~.blc. submit • request to each Cily lOr 
Fl:anchlsc T.,i: Revenues equal to tIllII City's percentage oflhe Shortrall set 
fbrth in Exhibit D aI1Bched hereto and incorporated herein, but in no event 
more than die maximum prloclpal amount set forth In E1<hlblt D. Eac:b 
City agll!Cs to pay its pm:enlage ofthe ShurtIaIl to UIA no later !!ian the 
next su_ding Man:h IS or September I S, lIS applicable. UIA oovcnanrs 
to talce $\I\lh other Billion as it hlwfilily may ·take to USIItC that each City 
lCmits to UtA Iiom Franchise Tax RcvenlJCS Its share of said Shortfall 
pursuant to this Service Contnu:!. 

(b) Ilaeh City shall be oIilisated to pay its percentage of the Shortfall 
as provided in Exhibit D finm Franohlle Tax Rcvenucsregan:llo.ss of the amount 
ofServico Fees payable by that City punuant to Scolion 3.1 herein. 

(c) Bach City may create or irlcur additional debt on a parity with any 
outstanding debt secured by /I priority lien pledge of thaI City's FranQh~ Tax 
Revenues or on parity with the pledge created pursuant to this Section J.S so long 
as the pledpd Franchise Tax Rovenu,", received by that City during the Fiscal 
VGIll' ImRlccliolely preceding the Fiscal Vear in "'hic:b the additional priority or 
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parity debt Is to be issued is DOl less than ISO% of the nwdm\llll IInDual debt 
service 011 d1c $11m of (I) tl>e ..Iditional priority 01' parity debt plus (Ii) Illy debt 
previously IlIUcd and outsIIl1Cfin& plus (iii) Ih. toIlII II1Mlmum Imual -mount 
pledged by Ihe applieabl, Cily hereunder. tealed Ibr Ihe period of such ackIillonal 
priority o~ parity debt. 

(d) Ail Franchile Tax Revenues ptlicI by a City to UIA or lis designee 
pursuantlD this Secdo!l 3.S allall eonstitule a loin by thai City 10 UIA whkh .,.11 
be paid by UIA at the tlnK: and In the manllCl as provided in the form of a 
promissol}' note atlllchcd hereto IS Ilxbib/, H lImnils./laturc UIA RcYenucs. B8C)h 
Cily shall bl entillcd to InlOIaII on eIKlh loan IIdVllngC, ft"om the! dille seld IIdvI/lCC 
iI nwIc by \hat City to UIA Of Its dosignee, at • rate of.ill percent (~) per 
annum, unlllls • i_ Intetc:st nile is set I.Orth In the IIUCIIIcd JlI"OIIIiuol}' note for 
said Io&n. Each City IIclaIowlcdges thlt the loan obligation incurrcci by utA 
herein chall be subordinate lad junior to VIA's oilier PIIyment obUplIOIIs. 

Section 3.6 SYm,ion Prpc:p!jl!(S. I1lA or Us dcsianeo .hall haYU the ri&hl 
ftam time to time 10 beclo IIId IIIIinIaIn __ In proocedmsl .piNt a CiI,y for the 
lOCO\'ety of all Service F_ or Shnn&lllleqqirec/ 10 be II*Ie under Ibis Servkxi Coalnlct 
by that City and to recover the SlUM upon the liability of that City herein provided. 
NoIhiDg h •. ",in contained shall be deemed to.rcqulre UIA to defer commcom,cmtllt or any 
such proceeding until the end of the ""'" of this Servi<:e Contract. 

~tfon 3.1 pisc;onti!!l!lll!lC; Termination. No dllCondn_ oflllY or.u Df 
the rights of. City 10 the Coonecllon SarvICCll allall be CUDltrucd as In oloctlon on Ibe 
pert of UIA or its delignee to terminate the Intore5t of Chat CII)" uilder thi. Service 
Contract unless. notfce of in1l!ntion be given to that City or unless SllCh tDmoiIuIdon be 
decreed ot the installU of UIA or its deaiancc by B c;ou/t of Competent jurisdiction. 

Section 3.8 Remedies, I1lA III il! designee tnay take wh&lever ·.aion It law or 
in equity may."".,.... n_sal")' or desirable 10 collccllhe .mounts pl\Yllble by each City 
hereunder, thon dllC and thereafter to becoMe due, III 10 onfOlcc pcrfOl1ll8llCC *nd 
o!leervlllco of an)' obligation, agrcc:rncnt or covenant of each Cil)" under the proviSion. of 
Ihla Servlc:o Contract. Each City -y t.ake whItover lOtion at law or in equity may 
&ppeIII" _y or desirable to caQwge ~ IIJd ~ of any obllplion, 
qreemcmt, or OOY_ orl1lA under the proYillons oftllis Servi<:e Contract. 

Section 3.9 No BxclullnRcmedy. No rlahl or remedy heroin conferred IIPOn 
or reserved to lIlA orits deaignee or Illy City is Intended to be eQ<Cluslvc of any. other 
right or mnedy. and .m II1d overy risJrt and remody shill be Olll1\ula!lvo IIId In 1dd!1lon 
10 Iny IJthcr n,bt or remedy glVCD beniunder. or !\OW or hercIIfter lepUy CIlIlsth!I. The 
failure of UIA or ha designee or. any City 10 insist at any time Up<ID the strict oblel'VlIIlCO 

Or performance by 1M other putica to tIIis Sc!vi<:e Contract of any ohhe provilion. of 
Ihi. Service Contract, or to ex.,lOl~ any right or remedy provided for in till. Service 
Contract, shall not impair any suc;b rJabt or remedy nor . be oonSlrUed as • waiver or 

. n:llnquillvnent Ihercof for 1M /la1lW. Reoclpl bY UIA or lis desiJlllcc of any ScrYIce Fees 
required to be made under thl, Service Contnot with kDowledge of the ~ of 1/1)' 
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proviJlon5 of this SerIIict Conn.:!. shall not be dccmcd a waiver of IiUdI bn:aoh. In 
addition to all other ~es pfoV~ in this ServIce Co~ UIA or its des~ or 
any City shall be DDlIIIed. to the went permlltecl by applk:able law. to l'liunctlve lfilicf In 
AIC pf lho violation. or attempted or threatened violation, of any of lho provisions ·oftllio 
Service Contract, or to a decree concemJns perfonnanoe orany ofllle provisions orllli. 
Service Contrllllt, .or to lUIy other remedy legally allowed. If lUIy prooeeding shall be 
brought for the enforc:cmcllt Df any rlshl or remedy provided for In IIIls S.."ice ContI1lGt 
Inwklllh it shall be de!ennincd tI1.t a City !IIaI1 bave ailed aad c:onticlucd'w call to mUc 
a payment of Service fcea due UIidcr lIIis Service CoII!I'aI:t at the lime of commencement 
thereof, said City .hall pay IDA or its deslpec all expenses Incurred in connection 
therewilll includina. without limitation, reasonable attOrneys' r_ and expc:ases. In li~ 
manner. Ifltahould becoPle necessary fOr a City 10 bring legal proceedings against UlA 
or Its designee to onfOrce Iny right given it hereunder. the City aball have tho right. if It II 
SUC4;CSsflll in such proccodings, 10 Ihe payment by UTA of ail expenseS Incurred In 
connecllon therewith including. without limtlation, reasonable attomoys' fees, and 
expenses. 

Section 3.10 Rip of Psi",,. to UIA to E1temISO Bemedif:!. At any lime the 
UTA or lis desienee Is enlltled 10 enforce any of the rights or remedies provided for In this 
Service Contract, and lIIe designee Play proceed. elthor in its own name IUId..s trustee of 
any e>tpress lrull or otherwise, 10 protect IUId enforce: its rights III1d tho ... of UIA uadc:r 
this Sorvice Contrac~ whetbor or not UIA shall have complied with any oftbe pro"ilionl 
hereof or proceeded 10 take any action authorized Dr pcrmiUed under applicable law, 
Such rights II1d remodles as are giVen UIA hereunder shall also coxtend 10 its designee and 
the: designee nil be emiIIcd 10 the benefit of all 00YeNIII1s and ~ in this 
Servlce.Conuact contained, . 

Section 3.11 Cit!. not QbligBl!d for UIA i)ebl. All obllptlons of UIA are 
payable solely by VIA and. In accordance with the provisions IIfthe Act, ~e not a· debt or 
other obllglllion of allY of the Cities. 
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AkTlCLEIV 

APPROVAL AND PUBLICA nON REQUIREMENTS 

SeetiOD 4.1 Submlllion Iq AuthQr. Al!qmev. This SC/Vlce COII!dCt 511.11 
COIl!llitulc an qrecmcnl for joint and coopcrlllive ac:.tion pUl1Uan! to the Intttincal Act. In 
accordance with tho requiremenll of Section 11-13·202.5 of the Interloca1 Act as 
amended, this Servk:e'Contraetlhall be submitted for approva.110 the lovernlng bodies of 
UlA II!ld each City and to an authoriZed l1!orney r..,r UTA and for each Clly who shall 
lIJlProve this Service Contract If 5\l1:li lIIIomey dctennIJIcs thaI it is in Propel fbrm and 
compatible with Ibo laws oflho SIIIc of Utah. 

Sectlon 4.2 ' Publication. Tn acconIlUKlC with the requircmCIIIS 'of sGctfon II · 
13-219 ofthc InIerloo.l Me, as _ded. 1he govCrnin& body of U1A shad provide for 
the publication of1hc ~ution adoptoiI'by It p~rsuant 10 the requitcntents ofSccdon II· 
13·202 of the In1I:rIoc:al Act, as IlllClldod, in !he offilllal newspaper or the IICWSpIIper 
published wi!hin its boundaries, or ffno newspaper is SO published, then in'. newspaper 
baYing general cln:ulatlon titorein. 

Secti..,n 4.3 Improvements Owned by UIA. In accordance with the 
n:quircmcnts of Ibe Intcrlooal Acl, II lIIIIended, it is agreed and understood thai all ~ 
and personal property constltutina the Improvements .hall be acquired. owned. held, 
maintained, and disposed of by IJlA. 
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ARTICLBV 

OENERAL PROVISIONS 

Section S. I Acquisition and Construction of the ImlD"Qvomcnts. VIA 
represents thAt it will acquire or cause to be acquired all pcrmhs. lIeeno;s, rights and 
privileges, structures, equipment, and fal:ilities with respect to the acquisition and 
cOll3lruction of the linpro'IICmeDts necesaary for the performance by UlA of this Sav"'" 
Contract. VIA shall mainlaln and defend such permits, licenses, and rIghts and privileges 
and shalillo! Vlliuntarily pennit any change therein that would result In impainnent of the 
performance by U1A of its obligation under this Service Contract. 

Section 5.2 Risk of Loss. Each Ptrty Is solely responsible for the r~k of loss 
of, or damage to, equipment oflh.t Party (regardless ofwhr:re located), unless the IOSlor 
damage resulu from the negligence Dr fault ·of the other Party. 

Section S.3 SevelJl Obligations. ·Except where specifically stared in this 
Service Contract to be otllerwlse, tile duties, obligations, and liabilities of tho Parties IIi'O 
intended to he several aud not joint or collective. NoIhlng contained in this Service. 
Conllact shall ever be construed to croate an associatlon, trust, partnership, or joint 
venture or impose a trust or partnership dilly, obligation, or liability on or with regard to 
either Party. Each Party 1IIall be individually lind severally liable for its awn obliglllions 
unde:r this Service Contract, and shal! not be liable for any obligation of the ather Cities 
hereundef. 

Section ,.4 Uabj 1m Dedication.. Nothing in !his Service Conb'act shall be 
construed 10 create any duty·to, any standard of care wiih reference to, or any liability 10 
any person not a party to this Service COIiIJacI. 

Section S,S Books Bod Record';. UIA III!,fCCS that it sh.n maintain scparale 
books and records relating to the Improvements and that proper and equitable: allocations 
of revenues and expenses will be made with respect 10 the operations of the 
Improvomoms.· UIA &hall submit to eaoh City suoh supporting data with respect to all 
Alinual BudllCtB and ytWly acoounting ~onc:iJlations as 111'0· reasonably nccessary III 
enable each City to effiK:t proper \lCWuntlng IhCl1lfor. All books of a"""unl and 
accounting records of VIA shall be .'IIailable for inspection and utilization by a dilly 
authori~ officer or designee of each City at all reasonable times. UIA shall cause such 
books of account of tho Im)ll'O¥emenlll to be audited lI1lIIually by independlmt puhlic 
accountants expcrienocd in utility ICCOIIntlng. A copy of each such annual audit, 
Including any rl)CQlllJnCndations ortho acoountants with ~ thereto, shal! be prompdy 
made.availab/c: byUIA to Qch City. . 

Section '.6 Relationship 10 Other In!!ln'mppp, It Is n>eognized thai UIA m1lSt 
comply with aIllicenlCl, pennils and rl!&Uiallll')' approvals neccS$lll')' for the ownership, 
acquisition, conSlJ'\ICtion and opcor~ of the ImprovlOTDClltS, and it 1$, Iheremrc, agreed 
that this Service Contract is made subject to \he tenns and provisions of SUM licenses, 
pennits and regQiatory approvals, except lllat each Cily shall not be bound by any tenn or 
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provision of any license,· penni!, or ",_tory approval, which may contradict or vary the 
lefT!1S hereofunlcss it expressly consent, in wriline to be so boutld. Each City Igrees Ihat 
it will not ",vise or ~d ill Sorvioe Fe. c/Iarpd 10 cnd users under its 
Col1lmunlc:etlons EnlOrprlae In lilY 1IIIIIIII« thlt would aclvc:nely atl'oct the priority of or 
tho lCCurity Ibr tho payments 10 be made thareundcr to UlA without obtalJlllla die prior 
written consent of UIA. 

SlClion S.7 LlabmtjOl. Bach City. l1li offi..eis, designees, and employee ... or 
eny of tbem, shall "'" be liable for lilY claims. demands, cOSIo. losses, caulCS of aotion. 
damages or Jlmility of w.hatsoeYar kind or natlll'D arislDl OUt of or rcsultlna tom the 
ownership. acquisition, oonJlnlcldon IlId opcqtion by IJI}, of thO ImpromTIlIIII5 Dr 
Brilln, oul of eny obllptions ot tho 0Ihcr CltIc8 hlll'Ounder. VIA, iu oftlccn. dasllIIOCM, 
and em!'loyee., or Illy of !hom, JhalIIIOt be liable for any claims, dc:mands, cocs. I~. 
causes of' lII:tion, dllllllges or liabilil)o of ...... tsoever kind or nature willa out of or 
resulting from tho perfurmancc: by tae:h City under thii Service Contraet. 

Seclion 5.. Assi8DmQll. Except for security purposes in coMectlon with any 
obliptlol1l Incuned by UIA, nel!her t'''. Servfoe Conlr/ICt nor IIny pert thereof !I/IaI/ be 
assJsnedby any Party without prior wrttt.n consent of tho Illbel's. 

Section 5.9 Furnjshing savice to Other •. UTA, by entering into this Servlco 
Conlra(.t, docs not hold Itself out 10 provide the Improvements or similar service 10 Bny 
other pel'$On or entity. . . 

Scaion S.10 Uocontro'!tbJe F!/fllC1. No Party shall be eonsiderad to be in 
dofillilin ~ 10 lIIyobllptloll hIII'Oundor, oCher than UDder Article RI, If prevented 
tom titlfilling suoh obligation by rcuon or III UIICOIIInlUable Force. If a PUI)' is 
rcnderod unab!c to IlilfiU any obllption by reason of an Un<:Ontrolleble Force such Party 
sIlall exercise due diligence to remove such inability wiIb ~I rea.ronable dispaldl and 
lhail keep the olber Parties wily informed of ch8llget and conditions as far in advance as 
possi~le. 

Section '.11 eommunlg!!lgql &tpr,priao. Ilacb City will operate and maintain 
Its COIIImllnlcadoll, Bnlerprlse In lood opcratln& order IIIId will fix, chargo, wi onllect 
rates, fees, and ohargcs In lICCOldanco with Section S.12 herein. 

Section S.12 !;Itles to ChaT", IDd Collect City Rcv~...!S. E~h City horeby 
agn:cs to create a Communications EuteJprlsc and to charge III end u.crs within that City 
through Its Conununications Enterprise monthly fees in the amount set forth in Exhjbjt C 
attached hereto ""' Inoorporatl!d borc1n fbr Cll.Oh oonneotion to the Network in 
consideration tbr the ConnBCtion Scn>ko proylded by the City. Bach City shall calabllsb 
lueh onforeernet\t proccliures 81 may be necessary to coiled such roes. Slid fllel, when 
onllected, ohall be used by each eil)' to pay its Service F_ under thl. Se ..... lce ContllCt. 

. Section S~ 13 r.,blp Tclcvl.ion Smioes .., Public ra'MommuniQtions 
Services. The.htt1e9 IIereIo ac:knowledBe and ,.."._,1 IhII neither party, by eotori/li 
into thIs Servioo ~ IiNtIl proyldc or be required to pro~idc Cable Telcvlllon 
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Serviges or Public Telecommunications Services lIS defined In the Tclocommunicatlons 
Act, nor is either party capablo of providing said services. Furthermore, the Partie, 
hereby acknowledge and I'CJIRIII'IIfthat to the best ofth~ knowledge, each City is paying 
for Ihe fun COilt of pmviding the Connection· Services received by It pursuant to this 
Servlae Contract. 

Section 5.14 Entire Agrcemegt. This Service Contraat constitutes ·the entire 
agreement among the p.,ucs with respeot to the subject matter hereof. No. change, 
variation, termination, or attempted waiw~r of any of the provisions of this Service 
Contract shall be bindinS on the Parties unless executed In writing by the other Party. 
This Service Contract shan not be moditied, supplemented. or otherwise aifected by 
COllrsc of dealing. 

SClltion 5.15 Amendments. This Service Contract shall not be aniended, 
modified, or ollierwlse altered in any manner Without the consent of the parties heroto, 
which consent shall not be unreasonably wllhbeld. 

Section S.16 Effective Date and OrjRinaiTenn. This Service Contract shall be 
effective as oCthe date hereofllnd shan conUnue in effect urdU April I, 2041. 

Scation 5.17 NmillIl. Any notice. demand. or request provided for in this 
Service Ccintraet shall be in writing and shall brI deemed pl'Opcrly served, given, or made 
If delivered In person or !lent by registered or certllicd mail, postage prepaid, 10 the 
persons specified below: 

UIA: 

Brillham City 
20 North Main . 
POBoxlOO' 
Brigham City, UIUt 84302 
AIIII: Mayor 

Centerville City 
250 North Main 
Centerville; UW> 841114 
AM: Mayor 

Layton City 
437 Nonn Wasawh Drive 
Layton, Utah 84041 
Attn: Mayor. 

Lindon City 
100 Nonh State Street 
Lindon, Utah 84042 
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lTfOPIA 
217S S. Redwood Road 
West Valley City, UT 84119 

Midvalo City 
655 West Center SltCCt 
Midval~, Utah 84047 
Alln: Ma)ll>r 

Murray City 
502$ South Stale Street 
PO Box 57S20 
Murray, Utah 84157 
Attn: Mayor 

City ofOrem 
56 Nordl State Street 
<>rem. Utah 84057 
AIIII: Mayor 

west Valley City 
3600 Constitution Avenue 
West Valley City, Utah 84119 
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Attn:Ma)'or Attn: Mayor 

The Parties rnay. at any time. by notice \0 the othor designa\c dlff'orent or 
~iliDnal PC/JOIII or dlft'erenl.dd,..".. for I~e ,Mna ofnotice hereunder. 

. Scotion 5.18 Third Party BenefielariPs. The terms and provisiollS of this 
Service COIItrlll:t shell ~e blndln~ upon and inure to the benefit of the Pertios hereto. and 
their respeclive successors and SIll..... and Is made solely and spocifiwly fur their 
ber1ofit. No other perSOli shall have any rights, interest, or claim. hereunder or be entillcd 
to Iny benefit. weier or on aecDIIIIt ofdll, Service Contnc:I as .lhird-palty bcJIcfieiary or 
odIerwise. . 

Scotion 5.19 Governing Law" This Serviee COIItJ'a(;t shall be Ihtecpreted. 
governed by. and consirucd under ~ laws of the State ofUtalr. 

Section s.~ Ilm:utlon in Counterpart!. 111\, SOrvioe Conlnlct may be 
.illlllitancolisly erteC\ltcd in seyoral c;ounlOrparti. caoh of which sh,n be an original arid 
,II of which Ihall c:oIISlllUte but one and the same Inmument. 

Section S.21 Severability, Jfany provision ofthis Service Conlraclshall b. held 
or be deemed 10 be or slrall. in fact. be illegal; inoperatlye, 1)1' unenforceabJc. lhe .. me 
shall not aiTuelany other provisiDli or provisions herein contained or render the same· 
invalid, inoperative, or uncnfurceablc to any exlOnt what~r, 
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IN WITNESS WHBRaOF. 1ba Parties hereto "-ve Ol<eelltlld thi. contraet the day 
IlIId year herein tirsi abOve written. . 

UTAHINFRASTRUCTUREAGBNCY 

(SEAL) 

A TrEST AND COUNTERSION: 
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BRlGHAMCrrv. UTAH 

(S.EAL) 

A'ITEST ANDCOUNTElRSIGN: 

CI3NTERVn..u! CITY, UTAH 

(SEAL) 

By: ___ --:-;-____ _ 

Mayor 

ATTEST AND OOWfBRSlON: 

8y: ______ ~~~~--------
City Recorder 

LAYTONCITV. UTAH 

(SEAL) 

By:_ .. _ __ '":'7' _ ________ _ 

Mayor 

A. TrEST AND COUNTERSIGN: 

8y: ___ --:-___ ~----
City Recorder 
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(SEAl,) 

A TTF.ST AND COUNTBRSIGN: 

By;; ______ ~~~--------
City Recordtr 

(SEAl,) 

ATTF,ST AND~~ia 

1 
I 

By:/7l~ • r Ci' rller 

J3RJGI'IAM CITY. UTAH 

LAYTON CITY, UTAII 

(SEAL). 

A TlTlST AND COUNTERSIGN: 

By:, ____ :::-
CilY Record., 



BlUGHAM CITY, UTAH 

(SEAL) 

By. ______ ~~~--------
Mayor 

A TrEST AND COUN'l'ERSION: 

By:, ____ =-::-~:__-----
City Recorder 

CBNlllRVlLLIl CITY, UTAH 

(SEAL) 

By:, ____ ~------
Mayor 

A'ITEST ANDCOtnorrBRSlGN: 

By. _____ ~~~~ __ ------
Ci\y Recorder 

LAYTON CITY, ur AH 
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LlNDON CITY, UTAH 

AT'IEST ANDCOtlNl'BRSlaN: 

~y.i~~ 
MIDV.I\l.E em, UTAH . , 

(SEAL) 

By:~' ______ ~~ _________ ___ 

Mayor 

A'ITBS'f .ANDCOUN11!RSION: 

MORRAy CITY, UTAH 

(SEAL) 

B~ ______ ~~ __________ __ 

Mayor 
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LINDON Cl1Y, UTAH 

(SEAL) 

By:. ________ ~-----------
Mayor 

ATI'EST ANDCOUNTF.RSIGN: 

By:. ______ ~~--~--------
City Re<:ordor 

MmDVALEcrrY,UTAH 

(SEAL) 

.' 

ATI1!ST }.NO COUNTERSIGN: 

BC2·~,~ 
Y:l City ReCorder -

(SEAL) 

ATTEST }.NO COUNTERSIGN: 

By: _____ ~~ __ ~-------­
City Recorder 
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By: _____ ..,...,.--.., ____ _ 
Mayor 
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LINDON CI1Y. UTAl! 

(SEAL) 

BY:~ ___ :--:-_____ _ 

Mayor 

AYrEST ANDCOUNTBRSIGN: 

8y:----::':'--;:--7-__ -­
City Recorder 

MIDVALBCITY, UTAH 

(SEAL) 

By:, ____ ~------
Mayor 

ATTEST AND COUNTERSIGN: 

Dy: ___ -:::::-=_-:---:-__ _ 
City Recorder . 

MURRAY CITY. UTAH 

(SEAL) 
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CffVOPOREM. UTAH 

(SEAL) 

'"~~ " Mayor ' 

ATniST AND COUNTERSIGN: 

PAYSON CITY. UTAH 

(SEAl.) 

By. ________ ~--------
Mayor 

A TrEST AND COUNTERSIGN: 

By. ______ ~~~--------
City Recorder 

WEST VALUlY cn'Y. UTAH 

(SEAL) 
By. ________________ _ 

Mayor 

AITBST AND COUNTERSIGN: 

By:, ___ -=--=-_.,--___ _ 
Cily RcconIer 
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CITY OF ORBM, UTAH 

(SEAl.) 

By:. ________ ~-------------
MaYDf 

ATTEST AND COUNTERSIGN: 

By:; ______ ~~------------
C· Rewrdcr 11)' _ 

WBSTVALLBY. CITY, UTAH 

(SEAL) BY'/?;(~ 
Mayor 

A'ITEST AND COUNTERSIGN: 



PursUw to Scc:tion 11-13-202.5 of the Utah Code Annotated 19S3, lIumendcd, 
die forego inS Service Contract Is hereby apprOved. 

AUom(\y fur Brigham City, Utah 

Attorney for Centerville City, Ulah 

Auomey for LaytOn City, Utah 

Auorn\ly fur Lindon City, Utah 

~tIorney for Midvale City, Utah 
\ 

Attorney fur Murray City, Utah 

AUOrney for City of Orem. Utah 

Anomey for West Valley Cit'. Utah 

IJMWEtif #7el21"" vtC 
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PuISlllllt to Scotian 11·13·202.' oftbe Utah Code AmloIated 1953, as amended, 
tile foregoing Service Conlraill i. hereby approved. 

Attorney for CenlCrvntc City, UtDh 

AUQrney for Laytan City, Utah 

Attorney for Lindon City, Utah 

AltorftC)' for Midvale City. Utah 

AttOnIC)' tbr Murray City, Utah 

AIIorOC)' for City ofOrcm, Utah 

Attomey for West Valley City. Utah 



Pursuant to Section 11-13·202.5 of the Utah Code Amlotated 1953, lIS amended, 
the foregoing Service Contract Is her~y approved. 

Attorney for Utah Infrasll'Uc:ture Apey 

Attorney for Brigham City, Utah 

Attorney for LaY\DD City, Utah 

Attorney for Lindon City, Utah 

Attorney for MIdvale City, Utah 

Attorney for Mumly City, Utah 

Attorney for City ofOrem, Utah 

Attomey for West Valley City, U12Ih 
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Pursuant to Section 11·13.202.' of lite Utah Code Annotated 1953. as amended, 
the foregoing Service Contraat is Ito",by approved. 

Attorney for Utah Infrastrucl\lre Agency 

AIIome)' for Brigham City. Utah 

AUOrney for Centerville City. Ul8h 

~~ 
Attorney for Lindon City. Utah 

Attorney tor Midvale: City. Utah 

AItomc:y for MII1'J'tY City. Utah 

AItoI'l\eY for City ofOrem, Utah 

Attorney tor West VllIlc:yCity. Utah 

DMWEST #1632944 vii 



Punuant ta ScetiOll" 11.13.20Z.5 of the I1I1h CodD Amlot!Ited 1953, all IIII1CIIded. 
tile foregojng Service Contract iE bereby approved. 

Attotney far Cent8r!iUe City. Utah 

Auomey fOl'Laytlm City, Utlih 

~'" 
AtlDtncy for Midvale City. Utah 

AttoJ'Dey fOl'Mnmly City. Utah 

"~~Y for PaySDII dty. Utah 

Aaomey for Wert Vl1Jcy City. Utah 

• 

8·5 



· /'uI'llUlIllt to Section II·13·202.S offJJe lJtlih Code Annolall:d 19S1. u amCPdcd, 
th~ fon:>8oing ~rvicc Contract I. hlll'C!by approved. 

Attomc)' for Utah In1I'aSIrUc\ure Agenc), . 

.... tlDrney for Brigham City, Utah 

Attomey for Centerville City, Utah 

Anomey for -Layton City. Utah 

AUomcy for Murray City. Ytah 

Attomey for City of Orem, utah 

AUornc), for West Valley City, Utah 

OM WEST (17632944 v II 
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PursUIJ!! to Section 11-13-202.5 of the Utah Code AnnDlaad ]9S3, 811 &mended. 
the foregoing Service Contract is hereby approved. 

. Attorney foI Utah In&as1ruC1Ure Agency 

, Atturney fur Brigham City. Utah 

Attorney foI Centerville City. Utah 

Attorney for Laytull City, Utah 

Attorney for Lindon City, Utah 

Attorney for Mictvsle City, DUb 

~ ... I/MIJ~~ 
~~ City, Utali 

Attorney fur City of Orem, Utah 

Attorn..,. fur West Valley City, UIaI! 

s-s 



_ PlIISlIIIIlt to Section 11-13-202.5 of tile Utah Code Armotated 1953. as amended, 
the fozegoing ServiQe Contlal;t ill benli)y approved. 

Attorney tOr Utah InftBstrudure Agency 

Attorney rot BrigJwn City. UtIIh 

Attorney fur CenteMlle City, Utah 

-- ---_._-,-----
Attorney fur Layton City. Utah 

Attorney fur Lindon City, Utah 

Attor\IeY for Midvale City. Utah 

-Attomlly fur City of ~ Utah 

Attorney fur West Valloy City. Utah 

8-5 



PUI'SUIIIIt to Section 11-13-202.5 of the Utah Code Annotated 19S3, IS emended, 
h foregoing Servitt; Contrllc:t i. hen:by approved. . . 

Attomey for ·Utah Infrastructure Agency 

Attl)mey fill' Brigham City, Utah 

Attl)1Jley for Centerville City, Utah 

Attorney for LayroD City, U1ah 

Attorney fur Undon City, Utah 

Attorney fur Midvale City. Utah 

Attorney for Mmtay City. Utah 

Attorney for City of Orem, UCah 

A ey for west Valley City, UbIh 
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EXHIBIT A 

CONNJlCTION SBRVICBS 

Strategic Partrier MIInapmltnl 

Recruit and manlll" 1lIII!1e&ic: [)8I1iIenhips, wbich will i~ but not be IimiWd to 
BWlinesa and Raidenlial S.",ico Proviclcn and SCtvic:ell Providers. Allraet new 
technologies 10 the network to facilitate ncw servi~o otrerlllCS on die network and 
leverage the Cillos cKirting networli and it. ~mmunit~. . 

UIA will n~oti.,,, on behalf ofch. Cities tho CORlnleI ond oontract Nnencimenll, enforce 
contrac(l with Providers a(Id ensure $enoicc Level Agreemcnu I/'e met accord/lIB to 
business and conlrBctwll obligations. 

ProdUCI Mall'lement 

Recommend, develop wltolcsalc pricing modef along with CIties and slrBtc8ie patIn~. 
This will Include IICW wholesale Pricing for newly dcvoloped prod~ brought by VIA 
and Its Strategic Partners. 

Present developed model and any changes 10 Cilies and siratcgic par1ners for rollout on 
the Nerworlc Maintain. modlMns and bring to CIId-of-lift: wholesale produc:ts on the 
netwo..... . 

PllOning, Dall" and IlIIplemeatllion 

VIA will provide planning, dcsian and implementation of tlte Cities networks u 
roquClled. " .. lidl outoidc plant dcsIp. RCtwotk deslen and operalional implCt review 
will be prcrvided liong with a project implcmelUBdon plan tI1IIeUne.-,<>ng wlIb ..,claled 
budg~ lbr the plan. The plan '11111 include: . 

• Creationllmport of citY reconIslnto OIS SYIICm 

• EstImated COlI for the OUISido plant build requested _ 
Estim~ted COli for the IIClWOrk enginecrlnc build 

• Project Engln_ to interact and ~nswer question, .&out the proposals and 
present&tlona 

SuPport for submittal of ehalllle ordcr$ for .... y c:/Iangco on the design plan 

• -Supporting production mapC.) and documenlltion for propo&cd build arcas 

• ExtraCt of infonnation in supported Ibrmat provided by VIA 

DMWBST #7632944 vii 
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MllrketingfAdvo .. te Awareneu Program 

UIA will instigate and oversee l1li)' marketing and llOII1IIIuniQlltlons cfforlr that are 
necesaary to the neIWork's suocess. This llOuld. im;lude QIImpaigns within cily 
goYernments, telidantial' markets, multl-dwelling unit II\II'bIs, buslness mark$, or with 
oommunity and national thought [ead(:l'S, policy II18kcrs and other auclienees. In 
JiartioUlar, UIA will sed! opport)lnitics 10 develop and odaca~ abClut futIII'CI quaJit)'-Df-
1i1i>, public sat\::ty, and oconomic development opportunities on the network. working to 
build tho network's reputation as neceswy public Infi'lIsIruatu",. 

mA. will rocrult and manage per!IOMel and/or COIltTaclon to wist In promlItinB the 
network and srowinIlhc subBcrlber base. 

GIS Servicell 

Upon Implementation of nCY/ network designs UlA will Cl'ellte, manage and maintain a 
Ooo-spatial database to track the build of the Cities network. VIA. will provide a 
c:cnversian method to Import cnllinec:rint dC>l:umentatioo, (CAD Conversion) and moditY 
the gee-spatial database to inlllude AS-Built updlllaS as IqIDl1ed. 

~ontinucd support w!ll be offered by taking GPS data coIlectiQn for kO)' asp elements. 
recording that information into the database, providing and IracklllJ fiber assignments 
IIUIdc Ibr provisioning services ond wil8n requested, provide an exttact of the database for 
the Cities in al) ayailable fonnat 

Outside Plant Serviecs 

During constlVCiion UtA will appoint a Project Managor to oversee all approved 
coll9trucdon fur the specific project. They will monage 1b; RFJ> process umng UIA 
standard policies to award conslr\Jctiol\ bids and select qualified contracloni. They will 
provido management over employ.,... and contrpotors during the construction process by 
assillhed constructlon walk ~ and ensuring industry bost practices and IlOnslstent 
engineering specification, aro met. 

The Project Mailap will ensure: . 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Budgo! traddng and reportiRl! is 'available for Cities 

Obtain nccessllQ' field pennils,_ obligations 

Issues n traaked and brought to resolution for CitIes 01' their resldelllS 

llMA p_ J$ followed 

InventOl)' is man~ and accounted fOl 

Maintaining necessary Jevels of inwntory to complm work packages 

A·2 
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Ensll!e consuuction worlc Ihrough QUill!)' AmIran~ pfoeedures 

FIeld Serviees 

UlA will provide field Cl"CWS andlor cootrac:1On 10 b~ deployed In the fi~1d In manage the 
phy,icaI plllnt which Is con_ted for the Cldes. VIA , will maintain physical huts lind 
eabinclS on the IICIIWOtL During Ibc event IIf lUI issue the Field Swvk:es Group will 
respond to an aaual damage to physical plant ud mane.ge and CllCCQ~ 1hc repair needed 
for restoring the p/l),liCIII plant III deemed nCGDSllry. 

Network EIlBillocring Services 

VIA will provide ndwork engineers and/or conlractoia to eva/uale, I'CX>OII\IIIcmd the 
nccdod electronics In provide wholesale SIInIlces 01\ the netwoIt. These Network 
enginccf5 will; 

• Teat ind certiry network electronics for dcplllymcnt 

Create, maintiln physical and logical topology ofltic NetwOlt . 

• Configure and InSlail the necessary devices in the nCIWork •• needed 

• Resolve any illllucs with th_ devices and rcpl_parts or device .. needed 

• RMA IhrotoBh standetd PI oolSm 

• Research and DevelopmC/lt of ncw tcc:/Inologies along with strategic: pannora 

• Capacity planning oftbc neIWortc 

Operation. Man .. _t 

UlA will provide Inanegcll\ent oversight of operational support of the network. This will 
inolude: 

(nlc!!ratjgg: Integration of ltnItesJc pIII1neI'I OI1to die nclWDrf<, cstIbIishlllg IIcndard 
inter"fiM;cs and operatiOnal methodl' and procedureo with these partners. VIA will _lst 
stratc&ic partners in understanding integration points of produ<:ls and services on the 
netwoJt. 

()PCrational Mc!hodo Uld Prpcecjun;s; Oevclop supporting 1I1111hods Uld proccdQr05 to 
coordinetc deliWlry of ICrvicea to curtomers. 

Network Operations Ccn1!;[ <NOCl:, 24,,7 NOC to lIlonitor hl$&lth of devices and aerv~ 
on the network. Respond to Sttatelie I'aI1IIcr requests, mllllllae to fC90lution rcporlfJd 
Issues on the nmvolk. 

A·] 
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NGtWor!; Repair !lOCI M4lntenance: Dm:eI, teCOfd (via a trouble tieketln,g solulion) III1d 
I'ospond to network maintenance and issues, Record and dispotch opproprillc teama into 
tho fiold fer lillie reeolutlon, 

.Order ManatFl!!G!!t SVI'M!: ProYldo syS1ems to allow the- ordering and activation of 
wholesale services' on the network. track customer allqllisltion and produco in~oiCCII, as 
ncccIcd, of whoJcaale services for cities so that Ii1ey l11li)' invoice residCII!s IIICi lnA may 
invoice Service 1'J'ov1den. 

R£portjnc. Provide reportins of cu5lomers Oil !he networit. 

lnyolcjn,: Provide inlOrml!lon 10 Cider 10 .11ow the Involelng of applicable wholMle 
SOn/IlleS on the nc:twont. . 
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EXHIBit Il 

DESClUYrION OF IMPROVEMEN'TS 

PllyJk:allmprov_nts 

Fiber OptIc Ccmmunicatlon lines wiD be deployed thnlupout the member's 
. communities. 1'beso lines will be CCJNIrqctcd both o.crttead and undCl'8fOUlld in eac/I of 
dt~ cities "rights of way" following eUlocaI, Slale and federal reauJalions using Industry 
best practices to deploy the most efficient and cost effective inftllStructllre. 

Elements of the IrtIi1I$IruoIurc inolude 3 separate categories: BlICkbonc. or middle mile 
construction, _ ~I or IUt mile \XII\StnlCtion and drop level <:OnICruCtiolL 

Backbo •• or Middle MD, Conllr.ctloa 

ConslSlS of both overhead and underground paths, communication shelter. 10 00_ 
dislribu1ion sWitcbN, fiber optic patcl1 paneb, imlnterruptabie power suppli~ (UPS) and 
generator&. The communication lIIekers will serve as dimlbUllon pohItJ within \be 
member cities and will be connClCted divol'Slly with ring atchitecturo; Other el_1I 
Include fiber optic cable, QoJ1dult, ·strand, pole mountins hardware. Vl\UiIlI, rplic:e closlll'Cs 
and .11 other Items nec:essary to construct and operate the network. The teSting and 
ccrti fJC/llion of 1M improvements will be in accordanc:e willi national industrY standard! 
&lid UTOPIA's Bn~ring S1andvcIs cIocIIment. . 

Acccss Level or La,I MD, CODltnletlo. 

Consists of both ovorhead and undcra:round paths to ~ aubscrlbcd address within the 
bUild N'OL Elemcnb of this Iypc ofbliild iru;ludc fiber optic cable, COIIduh. ItnIIld, pole 
mountl,. hardwaR, vaults, spUcc o\ooun!s ,nd all other items neou&IIy ID C<lR8trUct and 
oporeCc tile notwork. This infrutructuro will Jilcflltatc and geFVC eo network acOCA points 
for .IIbseribei'l to UIA. 

Drop Lew! CollluaetJOII 

Cotuisl of drop !Ibcr aJIdIor conduit being plaond lillrn _ nctwoiIt aocesa point to tltc 
demarclllion point within the subll\ll'ibes's pl'C!mise where q networt interfau device will 
be placed. EI_lIIenlS of this type of blll\d joo\udo three quarter Inch drop condlllt, drop 
fiber, aerial &ttachmcnt hardware. network Intcrfllce devloc (NID). UPS, fiber ptetail, 
opllcal transc:elYcr/rec:elver, power cord and .11 other items necCisary to COIISItVct and 
operate the network. In IOIDCI IDI\IInCCS UIA will allIO be responsible lbr instaIIiq ellIS 
cable within the bomca to provide a connection for the scrvkcs orclet'cd. 

DMWEST #7632944 viI 
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EXHlBITC 

NUMBER OF END USERS ALLOCA IT'.D TO EACH CTrv 

Brlghllll City 896 

Cenlervillco. 2,020 

Layton 3,803 

Lindon 693 
Midvale i,2S' 
MUITlI), 2,578 

Orcm 4,730 

West Valley City bD.22 
Total .wm 

OMWE~'T 117631944 vII 
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BXHJBITO 

FRANCHISE TAX REVENUES 

&timated 
% of Shortfitll Maximum Annual AmOlll'lI of 

Flllnohise Tax Revenues AIIOQ&ted 10 

f!l!.~1§ !no: "'-h !::i\:r: Bacb ~i!X 
Brigham City 131,831 0.62% 
Contcrvill. 186.737 3.63% 
tayllm 937.272 18.20% 
Lbldon 172;S16 3 .3~% 

Midvale 339,91111 6.611% 
Murray 690,241 13.40% 
Orem 1,223,186 23.76% 
West Valley City 1.5611.781 30.4S% 
TOIllI 5,1'1 152 JOg·gall 

DMWEST 117632944 v II 
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BXHlBITI,> 

I'OR,M OF PROMIsSORY NOTE 

$ ___ (elate) 

POR VALVE RBCEIVBD, tho under.ipoci, Villi Infrastructure A&r:.ncy (the 
"Borrow~'), promises to pay to the order of(NAMB 01' CITY) ("Lender''), Iho principal 
sum of ($ >, together wlth all sub&cqucnt loan 
advances 1IIIIk, expet1d!tuni& author\l.cd and ~JIIl)'1Uen\a pt'(lYldcd for ill this 
PromlsSO')' Note and -purl1lant to the CoInmunicatlons Service Contract dated .. of May 
1,2011, among tile BOlTOwer, the Lehdct, and various other municipalidc5 In the State> of 
Utah (the "Scrvlce Co~. . 

I. DefInitIon.. As used In Ihls Nato. the following IIIrms shall have the 
JnCanlnll" SCI fortlt below: -

"Effective Dale" means lIIe da the ICIm3 of this NIIID, Including tho lICCn1inl: rate 
of Interest and tho payment obligations deacrlbcd herein, b~mc effective, which date 
alial! be the date tho proceeds of the Loan are dilburacd to or for the benefit ofBorro)\'u. 

"Bvent ofDeIlwIt" shall have the moaning given in tile Service Con_t. 

"Loan" moans the loan advanced by Lender to Borrower under the lenns and 
upon the condldons eonlained in the Serviec ConlJact in the principal amount of 
------($ ). 

"Maturity Datil" rnclUlS _____ .....,-

"Month" meano a calendar monIh. 

"Note" melDS this Pl'OmlssD!)' Naill and Bny extensions, renewals or 
modifications th~oor. ~ , 

"Paymoat Date" meanl th. _ day of eac:il Mcalh on which BalD_shall 
pay to Lender accrued InlAftst, or principal and accrued inrerost, on the OIIlStandlna 
prlnolpal of this NOIC, as required by the; .rms of this Note. 

"Prlncipallndebtcdness" means at 1liiY limo aDd ftom dille to time dwins tho term 
of this NQte all Idvanecs, disburscf11Cl\ls, expendilures, and payments mlde by Lender_ 
a~r the date ofthll Note pursuant to the tenns ofthls NCJte-or the Servicco Contract. 

"Service Contract" meana the Service ConllllCt referenced ahove. 
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2. Securfty. Reference Is llIIde to the Service Contract for a description of 
tho prop:rty and interclts ~ncumbmd 0/ pl~ed IS security for this Noce, and the rights, 
remedies and obllptions ofLcnder with raspeaI UImIo. 

3. l!!lerest AeIl!uaJs. Thd IInpqld principal balance will bear inltlI'C1I al a raltl 
ofslx percent (6%) pcunnllID. • . 

4. Inlerest CnkmlatJon Basil. All Interest acoruln& under this Note shall be 
calcllllltcd on the basis of. 36\M1ay ycarlilr tho 80lllal numb:er of days clllpllCld. 

S. Payments cifPrlOcjpaI arid ACC!'!!9!Ilnterest, 

(8) B .. &\nnlnl on , BOft'OWFr shall make .monthly 
installment payments to Lol!dor of prlill:ipa\ and accrued II\tc:est on the unpaid Principal 
IndDbtcdIlCS5 In 1hc ~t of' (S ) each. 

(b) . The entire unpaid Prillelplll Indebtedness, topther w1lh all aecrucd and 
unpaid Interest thereon, if not sooner . paid, 'hIIIl be due and payablo in filII on the 
Maturity Date. 

6. Pig of PaymcnL All PlymentlllDder this Note shall be made In lawful 
money of the United StlllO$ of Amerio, at Lender's officos a, , 
Utah, or 81 suc;b other place as LI!I\dCr may from timo to time designate. All paymcnts on 
ibis Nole shall, at tho option of L~, be aPPlied first to the payment of acorucd inlcrcst 
and after all such intcrtlt has' been paid, any rc:mainder shall be applied toward the 
reduction oFtlts Prinoipallndobtcdnds. 

! 

7. Dcfillllt Rate gf Ioterqt. Dllrina tilly poriod of time in which an Eyent of 
Default has occurred and II continulns, Interest shall accrue aaalllSt the oul5tandipg 
Principal IndebtedDCss cvidcneed hcnaby It a rate cqualto the otherwise off'ccIivc rate of 
Interest under this Note plus fiye peroent (5.0%) per 1lllllUm. fIlik:ulated on \be basis of a 
360-day y~ for tho actual number of day. elapsed. 

. 8. "r""",mens. Borrower may prepay all or I por1lon of the amount owed 
earlier than it Is due. 

9. 1.$ Foe Charaes. If In)' paymDJII required by this Note not l(!Celved by 
Lender within ten (10) day, lifter such payment II due, a late fcc: charse equal to five 
percent (5.0%) oflUch late peymcut s1!a1l be duo and payable. 

10. lncorpgmtlgn of Loan Pocumm1.. The terms, conditions, COVCtlants, 
proviSions, &tiplIlalions and asI'Cementl of .the·Service Contraot are· horeby made a part of 
this Note by referenoc to suoh docUDl.nI .ln tho aama ruannOl' and with the same effect as 
if 11K ServIce Contract were IUlly set forth hctcin. BolTOwor hereby OOVCIWIII and 
promi_ 10 abide by and comply wilh eaoh and cYe1j cowonant and condition sot forth ill 
Ihls Note and tho SCrYlco Contract. 
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II. A(IIljcatjon QfPfYD1CIII1I. All paymenl& on this Note shall, 8t 1M option of 
Lender, be applied fiJst to Ihe payll)eQl of accruod inlClat and after all such in£orest has 
been paid, any I'IIJUIInder shall be appIicd IOward repaymem of any IddiIionaI edvancea 
Lender has ~ hereunder which hlvo nat alrMdy bceiI added to die PrIncipal 
IndebtcclncsS 1IIcn outll8ndlns,' IIId the balance, If any, IQWIII'd the roductlon of the 
Principal Indebtedness. 

12. Wajvprs. Sub!litutlpn of Security. Borrower walvO$presentmcnt for 
payment, notice of dishonor and ptOtos/. lind consents to any extension of time with 
mpoct to any JlIYINIlt due iInder this Note. to any mbsliMlOll, or release of collateral, 
and to Ihe addidon Or release of any party. No wllvll' orlll), pa)lment undcrthls NolO 
shall opcrakl U • wal_ of any ,oIh.cr payment. No dellI)' QI' failure of !,onder in 1110 
exercise of any rlaht 01' remedy provided for under this Note shell be deaned a waiver of 
'such right by Lender, and 'no cxen;ise,ofany rlaht or remedy shall be docmed'a waiver of 
811)1 other right or remedy which Lender may have. 

\3. Opycmjpg Law. Thts Note is to be construed In aocordance with the laws 
of the Stale of Utah, without giving ClII'cet 10 princlplM of conflicli of I.ws. 

14. Cls;n&ra!. Time Is of th'e eSSGDce hll'OOf. Upon the occumnce and 
continuance of an Event of Default, Lender shall haYCl, In addition to all rights arid 
IeInOdjea available to Lender at law or in ;quity, all rlahts end remediea specified in any 
of the Loan DocumcnI3. 

DATED eftbclive as of the datil flrII.boYe wrllten. 

[Slghlltures appear on following pages.] 
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BORROWER: 

UTAH INP'RASTRUcrullE AGENCY 

By: ___ --:::-:-____ -'-

Chair 

______________ . UTAH 

(SEAL) 

By: ______ ~~ ______ ----
Mayor 

ATIEST AND COUNTERSIGN: 

BY: ___ ~-::-__ -:--____ _ 
City Recorder 
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